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Cautionary statement All written or verbal forward looking statements, made in this document
This decument contans certain forward looking statements’ with respect O made subsequently which are attributable to Severn Trent or any

to Severn Trent s financizl condition, results of operations and business other member of the group or persons acting on ther behalf are
and certain of Severn Trent s plans and objectives with respect {o these expressly qualified in their entirety by the factors referred to above
items. Severn Trent does not intend 1o update these forward looking statements.

This document is not an offer to sell exchange or transfer any secunties
————~Forward looking staternents are sometimes, but not always dentified by of Severn Trent Plc or any of its subsidiaries and 15 not seliciting an offer
their use of a date 1n the future or such words as antictpates  aims’ to purchase, exchange or transler such secunties in any junisdiction
‘due, could ‘may should expects, ‘believes intends’ plans' Securidies may not be oifered sold or transferred 1n the United States
targets pozl or estimates’ By their very nature forward looking absent registration or an apphicable exempiron from the registration
statements are inherently unpredictable, speculative and involve nsk and  requirements of the US Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)
uncerainty because they relate to events and depend on Crturmstances
that will occur in the future
There are a number of factors that could cause actual results and
developments to ciffer materially from those expressed or implied by
these forward looking statements These factors include but are not
Irmited to changes in the economies and markets i which the group
operates, changes in the regulatory and competition frameworks In which
the group operates ihe inpact of legal or other proceedings against or More information on Severn Trent Plc can be found on our
which affect the group and changes i interest and exchange rates. website at www severntrent com

Severn Trent Plc

Severn Trent Plc1s a public hmited company listed on the
London Stock Exchange and registered 1n England and
Wales with company number 2366619 This 1s the Annuat
Repert and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2007




FOCUSED
ACTIVITIES

> special dividend of £575 million paid
to shareholders in October 2006

> 1improved balance sheet efficiency
following payment of special dividend

no dilution of dividend per share as
a result of Biffa demerger

> sale of non core activities, including
US Laboratones, Aquafin and Property

> overhead costs to fali by £6-10 muiilion
over next 12 months

> gearing to move to 60% of Regulated
Capital Value

> dividends to increase by 3% above
inflation to 2010

v

Group turnover £m

Group profit before tax £m

2007 1,480 2

2006 14553

+1.7%

3255

1778

+83.19%

Group profit* £m

Earmings* per share pence

2007 2320

2302

+9.5%

2006

* befare tax, exceptional items and 1AS 39 fair value
adjustments {see income statement)

2007 824

71.4

+15.49,

2006

* from continuing operations before exceptional items
1AS 39 fair value adjustments and deferred tax (see note 14)

Final dividend pence

Total shareholder return

2007 3868

3197

+21.0%

2006
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® Severn Trent Plc O FTSE 100 Index

This graph shows the value at 31 March 2007, of £100 invested in Severn Trent on
31 March 2002 compared with the value of £100 snvested in the FTSE 100 Index
The others paints platted are the values al interversng fingngial year ends.
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What we do

Severn Trent Plc is a FTSE
100 group focused on water.
It serves over 3.7 million
household and business
customers in England and

Wales and provides water Group turnover
and waste water solutions £1480.2m
in the UK and overseas. 8,372 employees

OUR ;
INDUSTRY

The water industry in England and Wales invests more than £3 billien

a year and employs over 27,000 people There are ten water and
sewerage companies In England and Wales and sixteen water supply
companies Severn Trent Plc s the second largest water company listed
on the Lendon Stock Exchange

Coverage

Severn Trent Water's region
stretches from migd Wales to
Rutland and from the Bristol
Channel to the Humber We deliver
nearly 2 bilhon litres of water

a day to homes and businesses
through 46,000 km of pipes

A further 54,000 km of sewers
take waste water away to over
1,000 sewage works

The regulatory framework

Ofwat sets annual price imits for each water company The current
price limits were set 1n 2004 for the period 2005-10 (the 'AMP4’
penod) They will next be set in 2008

Each water company has to submit an annual return (the *June
Return') to Ofwat covering its actvibies This s the primary source

of regulatory information and enables Ofwat to monitor and compare
the performance of the companies

Water qualty in England and Wales i1s regulated by the Drinking
Water Inspectorate, nver pollution and flooding 1s regulated by
the Environment Agency

2 Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2007




SEVERN
TRENT
WATER

Turnover

£12181m
80.3%

of group turnover

5,289 employees

Severn Trent Water provides high quality water and sewerage services
to over 3 7 million household and business customers, (n England
and mid Wales

Key strengths

> lower tanff levels compared to other water companies

> drinking water and waste water quality significantly above average
> strong management team with clear and focused strategy

> sustained commitment to corporate responsibitity

For further information visit www stwater co uk

WATER
TECHNOLOGIES
AND SERVICES

Turnover

£2889m
19.0%

of group turnover

2,984 employees

Water Technologies and Services 1s one of the world's leading suppliers
of water and waste water treatment solutions Headguartered in the US,
it has a growing presence 1n the Middle East, Europe and Asia It has
three main businesses Water Punfication, Operating Services and
Analytical Services

Key strengths

> strong brand recognition

> market leadership in disinfection, filtration and arsenic removal —
all growing markets

> continually expanding product and technology base

> good track record of organic growth and cost control

For further information visit www severntrentservices com

Severn Trent 3
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Chairman’s statement

DRIVING
HIGHER
STANDARDS

Sir John Egan
Chairman

| am pleased to report on a year of significant
restructuring for the Severn Trent group

of companies which aliows us to implement
our focus on water business strategy

4 Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2007

| am pleased to report on a year of significant restructuring for the
Severn Trent group of companies which allows us to implement our
focus on water business strategy

In June 2006 the board announced its intention to restructure Severn
Trent Biffa Plc was successfully demerged on 9 October 2006, the sale
of Severn Trent Property was completed on 6 November 2006 and the
sale of US Laboratories was concluded at the end of December 2006

In addition, group balance sheet efficiency has been improved by
the payment an 20 October 2006 of a £575 millon spe¢ial dividend
to shareholders

As previously announced, the board intends to maintain group debt at
around the target 60% of regulated capital value, and to continue to
increase dividends by 3% above the rate of (nflation at feast up to 2010,
the remainder of the regulatory review penod

The current market capitalisation of the smaller and focused Severn
Trent at £3 5 billion 15 greater than it was at the end of 2004
Shareholders have received a demerged Biffa worth £1 1 brilron and
have received a special dwvidend of £575 milhion

Severn Trent Water's customers' top priority 1s the safety and rehability
of their drinking water and we have a strong track record on this

We have consistently achieved 99 9% compliance with water quality
standards since 1997, which represents one of the best compliance
records in cur ndustry

Qver and above these basic requirements, management 1s developing
detarled plans for fundamental improvements across all areas of

the business as outlined in the review by our Group Chief Executive,
Colin Matthews

Group results

Qverall, Severn Trent has delivered a positive performance in 2006/07,
with group protit from continuing operations before tax, |1AS 39 fair value
adjustments and exceptional items at £252 million and group profit from
continuing operations before tax was £325 5 mullion, an increase of 83 1%,

In line with our declared policy, the board 1s proposing a final divdend
of 38 68 pence (31 97 pence) to be paid on 3 August 2007 This would
give a total dividend for the year, excluding the special dividend paid
on 20 October 2006, of 61 45 pence per ordinary share, an increase

of 202%

Corporate responstbility

When | was invited to join the Severn Trent Plc board and became its
Charman [ did not know the full extent of the challenges which the
board and new incoming management team were to uncover and the
immense commitment of time and energy which has been needed to
manage these 1ssues

There 1s no point in dwelling unduly on the 2000 to 2004 era to apportion
blame or responsitbility as this dees not help ¢custamers or sharehelders

There 15, however, every peint in me stating here on behalf of the board
and management team that we have already accepted the respensibility
for making things nght

| believe that you will see from the considerable work outhined n this
annual report what we have achieved so far - and the considerable work
that we are determined still {o do

We are waiting to learn from Ofwat and the Serious Fraud Office the
conclusion of investigations into reporting irregulanities made to Otwat
by Severn Trent Water




We are continuing to co-operate fully to restore confidence in Severn
Trent Water going forward and we acknowledge that further amends may
be made to customers, depending on the outcome of the investigations

In response to Ofwat's interrm report of March 2006 concerring
allegations of false reporting made against Severn Trent Water in 2004,
we have already credited customer accounts and altered bills
appropnately for subseguent years

We have taken and will continue to take, all actions we think appropriate
to ensure the maintenance of both high ethical and professional
standards and resilient and effective controls throughout our companies

Our new strategy on corporate responsibility (CR) 1s to support the new
management team’s drive for excellence by achieving high standards on
a range of CR i1ssues

Those 1ssues include chmate change, the local environment, engagement
with local communities, health and safety, business ethics diversity and
investing 1n people Further details of cur CR strategy, values and action

plans are set out on the Severn Trent website (www severntrent com)

To be etfective, a company's CR strategy must be fully integrated with 1ts
core business planning The strategic and orgamisational change that
took place within Severn Trent in 2006/07 has reinforced this

As descnibed later in this Annual Report, Severn Trent Water has
determined 20 cnitical success factors and adopted 20 KPls, by which it
will measure performance and set targets Many of these indicators link
directly io Severn Trent Water's CR strategy - for example, the KPls on
health and safety, leakage, net energy use, pollution incidents and
employee motivation This ensures that CR s entrenched at the very
core of Severn Trent's activities

In addition, Severn Trent's Corporate Responsibility Committee, a board
committee, has introduced a2 more structured approach to reviewing
all areas of our CR performance

Take chmate change for example This has nsen up the political and
pubhc agenda in 2006/07 We welcome this Severn Trent Water has
been engaged in planning for the changing chimate for a number of
years We have built a leading reputation in this area with key
stakeholders such as the Carbon Trust

Severn Trent Water's work on climate change focuses on two main
aspects mitigating our impact on chmate change, and adapting to it In
turn, mitigation has two main aspects energy efficiency initiatives and
In-house renewable energy production, primanly biogas combined heat
and power {CHP) The effects of our work in both these areas are
redfected 1 our KPI on net energy use

Board, management and staff
The board of Severn Trent Plc continually reviews 1Its management plans
to ensure orderly succession and continuity of leadership

After a year of great strategic change, Chref Executive Colin Matthews 1s
reshaping the group to focus on water aided by Tony Wray, Managing
Drrector of Severn Trent Water, who 1s concentrating on improving
Severn Trent Water day to day operations As the prionty switches more
and more to implementing the improvement plans announced by Mr
Maithews, the two roles will combine

The board therefore wishes to provide clanty and confidence to
customers, employees and shareholders that there will be a smooth
leadership transition in due course from Mr Matthews to Mr Wray
particularly now that detaited preparations are underway to achieve an
appropriate regulatory settlement for 2010 to 2015

It 15 expected that the consideration of the two roles into one leading to
the appointment of Mr Wray as Chief Executive and the retirement of Mr
Matthews from the board and the company will take place around the
end of 2007

Martin Bettington, Managing Directer of 8iffa Ple, stood down from
Severn Trent Plc when Biffa was demerged 1n October | thank him for
his tremendous contribution te Severn Trent In helping to grow Biffa to
the pomnt where it 1s now an independent FTSE 250 company valued at
more than £1 billion

Manisa Cassoni stood down from the board 1n October after 5 years as a
non-executive director | thank her for her contribution, particularly her
membership of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees

Rachel Bryden Jannetta stood down from the board in December 2006
on completion of the sale of the US Laboratories, our US analytical
environmental testing firm, to TestAmerica Heldings As President and
CEQ of Severn Trent Laboratories, she made a significant cantribution te
Severn Trent during her 11 years with the company and the fast two
years on the board during a period of significant change

As part of our strategy of focusing on water, all the current executive
and non-executive directors of Severn Trent Plc now hold similar
positions on the board of Severn Trent Water Limited Since March
2007 the boards of directors of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent
Water Limited have been (dentical

We have carried out ngorous board effectiveness reviews with the help
of independent consultants, which have generated a number of actions
to secure improvements to board performance

| would also like to pay a special tribute to our commutted staff whose
perfarmance In a year of exceptional challenge and change has been
outstanding, ensunng we continue to achieve our business goals

Investment proposition

Severn Trent 1s a high quality business whose invesiment programme
drives strong growth prospects The management team has a clear and
focused strategy and i1s engaged in the single minded pursuit of higher
standards as the means to achieve both higher levels of customer
satisfaction and sustained strong financial returns to shareholders

Qutlook

The outlook for the coming year 1S one of significant improvement, with
our plans indicating that we will meet the Ofwat determination for
operating costs 1n 2007/08 This improvement Is driven by the fall in
energy prices (with prices now fixed for 2007708, our total energy costs
will be around £17 million lower than 2006/07), and the delivery of
efficiency savings of £5 mullion through the implementation of our
improvement plans

Qur plans encompass the medium and longer term, In some cases
extending beyond the end of the current AMP4 period Delivering
sustained improvemnent will result in cost efficiencies being realised,
but will necessitate iInvestment to succeed

With the exception of any unforeseen vartatton 1n commodity prices
(principally energy), we expect that the achievement of our plans

will enable us to deliver around £30 million of cost etficiencies over
the last two years of the AMP4 period, which represents around 3%
annual outperformance against the QOfwat determtnation for operating
costs, without affecting our ability to deliver the 6% efficiency on the
capital programme

Severn Trent 5
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Group Chief Executive’s review

ACHIEVING
GREATER
EFFICIENCY

Cobin Matthews
Group Chief
Executive

The successful transformation of the group
into a focused water company has enabled
the senior executive team to devote a
substantral amount of its time to operational
improvement n our core water business

& Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Introduction

We believe that to satisfy our customers and be cost effective we must
raise professional standards across the entire business Other industries
have demonstrated that higher quabty and continuous improvement
leads to lower costs

There 15 every reason why Severn Trent in particular and the water
industry (n general, can do the same This Is the best, probably the only
way, to satisfy customers, regulators, employees and shareholders

Safety 1s a pnme example of the principle we are pursuing Our
performance improved in the year, which (s welcome, but we can make
more progress The skills and attention to detail which achieve hugher
standards of safety are the same as those we need to smprove our
enviranmental impact

Moreover, as we achieve higher safety standards our operations wtll
become more cost effective There 1s no trade off between higher
standards and profits — they are closely aligned

Operational improvement

With the demerger of Biffa and the sale of the US Laboratones
completed by the end of 2006, the group's sentor executive team has
concentrated on operaticnal improvement

The group already has clear strengths - for example, Severn Trent
Water's consistent attainment of high water quahty standards In order
to satisfy our custormers and deliver continuing growth for shareholders,
we need to improve continuously in all areas

Therefore, in 2006/07 we examined every aspect of Severn Trent
Water’s current performance We benchmarked 1t against companies in
the water and sewerage sector and alse In other sectors We identified
major opportunities for improvement and we drew up detalled action
plans for achieving those improvements

We have identified 20 critical success factors against which we will
measure our performance and progress We have chosen these with
great care, because they represent what we believe are the key concerns
for customers, regulators, employees and shareholders These 20
factors will be represented by 20 KPIs In all but two cases, we have
defined our actual performance based on our benchmarking exercise
and we propose to use these as a basis for assessing our performance
going forward For each indicator, we will set ourselves ambitious targets
for the coming years, and have drawn up action plans for achieving
them Some improvements will be effected relatively quickly, others are
longer term, going beyond the current AMP4 perncd

We have completed the integration of the head office and Severn Trent
Water teams and now have one executive team focused on our core
water activities As a result of this integration, we expect to reduce our
recurring overhead costs by between £6 millton and £10 million over
the coming 12 months

Over the next five years, we expect staffing levels (permanent and
agency) in Severn Trent Water to be reduced by around 600 posts Our
plans indicate around 130 of thus total being achieved in the financial
year 2007/08 We expect to incur around £24 million of restructuning
costs over the remaining three years of the AMP4 peniod, with around
£8 mitlion beng incurred in 2007/08



We have changed the divisional structure In place of our previous
‘functional’ structure, which had distinct teams working on planning,
engineenng and operations, we have created integrated teams, one
focused on clean water, one focused on waste water and ane focused on
customer relations

Like the integration of Plc and Water teams, this new structure will raise
standards and drive greater efficiency It also aligns the organisation
with the processes that matter to our customers

in the following pages of this report, we describe those KPls and our
current position on them In future years, we will continue to measure
and report progress against the targets for each \ndicator

Safety

At Severn Trent health and safety 1s wtally important to us as a
company In 2006/07 (ex Biffa, Property and US laberatories) our
health and safety performance was 24% better than the previous year
there were 7 1 RIDDOR incidents per 1,000 employees, compared to
9 3.1n 2005/06 We reached our target for the year, but the figures are
still too high We aim to improve continuously in this area

We devote huge attention to health and safety for two reasons Itis
vitally important at a very personal level, because every salety incident
and every day lost has a2 human impact But it 1s also critical at
business level The skills and attention to detail that achieve higher
safety standards are the same as those that achieve higher operational
and environmental standards and productivity

Therefore, as our operations achieve higher safety standards, they witl
also achieve greater operational efficiency Far from trading off hugher
safety standards against profit goals, we pursue both together

Our stakeholders’ pnonties

| have said that the KPls represent the key concerns for our stakeholders
In 2006/07 two concerns 1n particular have dominated our relations
with many stakeholders leakage and customer service

Our leakage increased in the prior year 2005/06 As we announced in
this last year, 2006/07, we devoted greater resources to leakage
management We employed mare people, invested in new leak
detection technology, fixed 37,000 leaks, 8,000 more than the previous
year and invesied almost £20 million more than the previous year

This effort has reduced our leakage this year but 1t was not until the
month of March 2007 that we aitained a monthly level of leakage
commensurate with our Ofwat annual target Therefore, notwithstanding
this reduction, we believe that we will not attain the annual average
target level of leakage

We have kept Ofwat fully iniormed of our progress and we are in the
process of finalistng and veniying our leakage data for submission in
our annual June Return, which will be subrmitted in a few weeks In due
course we will be discussing with Ofwat our ongoing plans and
commitments to maintain our progress In reduging leakage

Reducing leakage will remain a priordy in 2007/08 and we are
determined to maintain the good progress we have made in the second
half of 2006/07 We are 1n a good position going into this new year

On customer service too, | am pleased to report good progress We
recruited and trained more staff and fixed problems with our IT billing
systemn Again, by the end of this year, this work was showing
encouraging results In the last guarter of the financial year, we were
once again approaching the levels of service that our customers and
regulators expect from us

Water Technologies and Services
This husiness now comprises our Water Punification, Operating Services
and UK Laboratories businesses It produced goed results in 2006/07

We made a number of disposals in the 2006/07 financial year, and one
acguisition following the year end We sold our stake in Aquafin NV to
the Flermish government for £29 6 milion We also sold our Pipeline
Products and Services assets to ADS LLC and we sold our Aztec
instrumentation product line to ABB Limited Cn 11 May 2007, we
acquired the assets of United Kingdom based Quay Technologies
Lirnited for £1 9 milon plus potential additional consideration of up

to £5 1 mullion tied to future earnings Quay Technalogies Limited
manufactures a proprietary ultraviolet technology for use in water

and waste water disinfection

These transactions enable us to concentrate on our core strengths, and
on higher margin and higher growth areas We have a twofold sirategy
for achteving organic growth in these areas First, we are expanding our
existing technologies into new geographical markets and secondly, we
are taking new technologies into cur existing markets

Qutlook

In 2007/08 we expect to make good progress in Severn Trent Water
on the AMP4 contract and on our own improvement plans We have
demanding targets in our capital programme, 1N water and waste
quality, In customer service and in other areas We intend to achieve
those targets cost effectively, providing value for our shareholders

We also have to invest to meet longer term targets the requirements
of the Water Framework Directive, the challenges of adapting to chimate
change and reducing our ewn carbon footpnnt

The investment in reaching those targets, in process improvements and
1N higher standards will go hand :n hand with operational efficiency and
impravement So as we implement those investments for the AMP4
period and beyond, we are confident they will lead to higher levels of
customer satisfaction as well as strong financial perfermance

The provision of water and waste water services requires operational
and investment planning over the long term We are working with
internal experts and external stakeholders to identify and understand
the key chaltenges we face over the next 25 years, ranging from obvious
ones like climate change and carbon footprinting, to more industry
specific anes ke separation of surface water or catchment degradation
and the impact they could have on our assets and their ability to
deliver the service customers expect This work will establish the
context for our short and medium term planming processes and also
inform our Strategic Direction staterment for Ofwat by the end of this
calendar year We will continually update this long term planning
pracess i future years

Severn Trent 7
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Our strategy

FOCUS
ON
WATER

OUR
STRATEGY
IN PRACTICE

Qur strategy takes into account the needs of
many different stakeholders Our plans for
higher standards will help us satisfy the
expectations of all the different groups For
example, greater operational efficiency will help
us keep charges to customers low, meet our
regulators’ standards and targets, create a safe
and motivating environment for our employees,
and produce good returns for shareholders

Our goal is to have highest standards, lowest
charges and great people. Phase one of
achieving that goal was to restructure the group
so we could focus on water With that done,

we have moved into phase two - the drive to
achieve higher standards and continuous
improvement in all we do

Greater
efficiency

Continuous
improvement

Higher
standards

8 Severmn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2007

MEASURING
OUR
PERFORMANCE |

Radical plans for improvement

Over and beyond these basic requirements, management Is fully
engaged in implementing plans for fundamental improvernent across
all areas of the business The successful execution of these
improvement activities will radically change our business over a period
of years

We have already effected organisational improvements In addition to
the integration of the head office and Severn Trent Water Executive
teams we have changed the divisional structure in Severn Trent Water
In place of our previous ‘functional’ structure, which had distinct teams
working on planning, engineering and operations, we have created
integrated teams, cne focused on clean water, one focused on waste
water and one focused on customer relations This new structure 1s
designed to raise standards and drive greater efficiency |t also aligns
the organisation with the processes that matter to our customers

During 2006/07 we examined every aspect of Severn Trent Water's
current performance We benchmarked it against companies in the
water and sewerage sector, and also in other sectors The benchmarking
exercise was detalled and thorough We used a range of publicly
avallable and internally generated data to dentify the population that
we should compare ourselves to This process invoived a number of
Jjudgements being exercised to ensure that we used appropriately
comparable data paints for each measure

We have identrfied 20 critical success factors against which we will
measure our performance and progress We have chosen these
indicators with great care, because they represent what we believe are
the key concerns for our custorners, regulators, employees and
shareholders These 20 factors will be represented by 20 KPIs In all but
two cases, we have defined our actual periormance based on cur
benchmarking exercise and we propose to use these as a basis for
assessing our performance going forward Two KPIs are new (first time
job resolution and capital process guality) and we need time to assess
our current performance and define our objectives For all other KPls,
we have shown where our starting potnt 1s on a relative scale based on
the results of our benchmarking exercise

For each \ndicator, we have set ourselves ambitious targets for the
coming years, and drawn up action plans for achieving them Some
improvements will be effected relatively quickly and easily, others are
longer term, going beyond the current AMP4 period

The table on the next page sets out our actual performance for the
penod under review Based on our benchmarking exercise, our
performance 1s shown i one of three categories, of what we consider to
be lower quartile performance, upper quartile perforrmange or median
(representing 2nd and 3rd quartile performance)



Key performance indicators

Koy ares ciectne B Memure [ormat  wosan  Uoperaue
Employee Provide a safe working environment MAT Lost time incidents per 100 000 hrs worked* D50
Develop a confident and productive workiorce ‘5‘3”,\,‘:,3),' Employee motivation? 76%
Customer Provide a hugh quality product MAA Water qualhty (mean zonal comphance)'* 99 98%
Quabty interaction with the customer MAT Customer written complaints per 1,000 properties? 1906
MAT First time call resolution for billing %® 80%
MAT Unplanned interruptions per 1 0C0 properties® 695
Provide a high standard of operational service Properties at risk of low pressure per 1000 properties®® 009
First time job resolution’ To be determined
Development of a sustainable service Performance against regulatory obligations®® 26%
Financial Asset base enhancement MAT Capex (gross) vs final determination®® 27%
Capital process gualty’ To be determined
Manage trade debt Debtor days* 375
Management of cost base MAT Cpex vs final determination £m° 479 1
MAT Cost to serve per property £ 22693
Epvironment  Mimimise environmental impact MAT Pollution incidents per 1,000 properties®® 008
MAT Sewer flooding — other causes per 1 000 properties® 016
MAT Sewage treatment works — breach of consents? 000%
Optimise use of resources MAA Raw water storage®® 0%
MAT Net energy use Kwh/MI? Gl8
Leakage MI/d - current DMA™ 446

Notes

All measures are for the period to 31 March 2007 except as stated

MAT = Moving Annual total

MAA = Moving Annual Average

1 Actual performance across all employees and agency staff

2 Performance based on annual all employee survey and quarterly survey of 10% of
permanent employees

3 As reported in June Return to Ofwat Performance figures are provisional at this
stage as the June Return will be submitted to Ofwat on 15 tune 2007

4 Measure for catendar year to 31 December 2006

For a number of KPIs, we have only commenced ¢captuning the data
and measuring our performance during the current financial year and
therefore corresponding amounts for the previous financial year are
not available

For others, the corresponding amounts are avallable and these are
as follows,

>  Water quality 99 95%
> Customer written complaints 1004

>  Unplanned interruptions 45

> Properties at risk of low pressure 010

> Capex vs final determination 6%

> Debtor days 3176

> Opexvs final determination £446 5m
> Cost to serve per property £219 56
> Pollution incidents 011

> Sewer flooding incidents 014

> Sewage treatment works breach of consents 031%

Actual performance based on internal data

Measure as at 31 March 2007

Measure and relative performance to be determined

Measure for guarter ended 31 March 2007

Actua! performance based on autited UK GAAP financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2007

1G Actual performance based on audited UK GAAP financial statements and
regulatory accounts for the year ended 31 March 2007

1} DMA leakage performance measured monthly Monih of March 2007 DMA

performance disciosed in table above Annual measure 15 MLE leakage

the calculation of which has not been completed as at 5 June 2007

WO~

It 15 not statistically realistic {0 expect any company to be at the top
of every single league table, but nevertheless, we aim to achieve upper
quartile performance over the next 3 to & years

Of course, the goal gosts will move, as companies in gur secior or
elsewhere redefine what upper quartile means, so we expect our target
to move with it

We will report on these measures in future results announcements
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Performance review

Performance
2007 2006
£m £m
Turngver 1,2181 1,1509
Profit* 4130 4004

*Befare interest tax and exceptional items (see note 5)

Turnover \n Water and Sewerage
increased by 5 8% 1n 2006/07, to
£1,218 1 millton Sales prices increased
by 6 58% (including inflation) from

1 April 2006 The price rise represented
the 7 23% increase allowed by Ofwat,
less a 0 65% voluntary abatement of K,
previously announced in 2005/06

Profit before interest, tax and excephonal
items (PBIT) was up by 3 1% on the
previous year, to £413 0 million as the
higher turnover was partially offset by
caost increases described opposite

Health and safety - RIDDORS
per 1,000 employees

2007 71

2006 93

Water quality %

2006 9998
2005 99,95
2004 99 96
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WATER
AND
SEWERAGE

Tony Wray
Managing Director
Severn Trent Water

Financial performance

Turnover 1n Water and Sewerage increased by 5 8% in 2006707, to
£1,218 1 million Sales prices increased by 6 58% (including inflation)
from 1 April 2006 The price rise represented the 7 23% increase
allowed by Ofwat, less a 0 65% voluntary abatement of K, previously
announced 1n 2005/06

Profit befare interest, tax and exceptional tems (PBIT) was up by 3 1%
on the previous year, to £413 0 milhon A number of factors impacted
PBIT They included increased energy costs of £23 5 million caused by
rising prices, other increases net of efficiencies in our cost base of
£17 4 million, increase 1n infrastructure renewals expenditure of £3 6
million and an increase in depreciaticn charges of £10 1 mullion
reflecting the growing asset base

The KPIs covered in the Group Chief Executive's review are
referred to here to prowide further deta:l on their use in driving
our performance improvements

Our asset base

During the financial year, we invested £103 mullion (£38m net of grants
received) In maintaining cur infrastructure network Capital expenditure,
excluding spending on :nfrastructure maintenance, was £399 million
Gross capital expenditure (including infrastructure maintenance
expenditure) was £502 milhon

One KPI, capex (gross) vs final determination, measures our
performance on managing the financial aspects of the delivery of

our investment programme This measures the percentage variance
between our capital expenditure and Ofwat's final determination for
AMP4 This assesses one aspect of performance against cur objective
of delivering services to our customers at the lowest costs Other KPls
{most notably the capital process quality measure} will assess our
delivery of high quality services

Adjusting for minor timing differences and modifications to the AMP4
capital programme (notified to Ofwat through the change control
process) we are on track to delver this programme over the AMP4
period We continue to be in ine to achieve around 6% efficiencies
compared to Ofwat's Final Determination for AMP4

Our cost base

We recognise that managing our operating costs 1$ a key component in
our success We continued the work started 1n 2005/06, including
process improvement leading to reducing employee nurnbers and
removing management layers

Two KPIs measure our performance on managing costs The first
measures the variance between our latest formal forecast of operating
costs and Ofwat’s Final Determination for AMP4




The second indicator 1s the total cost (Including operating costs,
depreciation, infrastructure renewals and third party costs) associated
with serving each customer property

Meeting our customers’ expectations

Our customers’ top priority Is the safety and reliability of their dninking
water supply and we have a strong track record We have consistently
achieved 99 9% compliance with water quality standards set by the
Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) since 1997, which represents one of
the best compliance records in cur industry

Water companies and regulators measure water quality in a number of
ways Our water qualty KPl s based on 'mean zonal comphance’ This
is an overall measure used by the DWI which measures the extent to
which samples taken at customers’ taps comply with all the
requirements of the Water Supply (Water Quality) Regutations 2000

The DWI's performance tables for the 2006 calendar year, which are
based on more than 500,000 tests from sampies of Severn Trent Water,
showed that we achieved 99 98% mean zonal comphance This 1s an
improvement on our previous year's performance

During 2006/07 we delivered a number of programmes designed to
maintain and improve water quality They included schemes to secure
compliance with mandatory standards for cryptosporidium and nitrate
reduction In addition we carried out an extensive and targeted mains
cleaning programme to improve the aesthetic quality of the water

we supply

We are continuing to develop drinking water safety plans for our
treatment works and our investment programme for water guality
In 2007/08 includes further mains cleaning, more nitrate reduction
schemes and lead removal schemes This will ensure we maintain
our high levels of water quality throughout cur distnbution systern

For water supply to cur custorners, our KPIs are Ofwat’'s DG2 risk of low
pressure and DG3 unplanned interruptions to supply

On unplanned interruptions to supply, Ofwat deemed our performance
‘goad’ in 2005/06 However, our figures deterigrated in 2006/07,
primanly because of five operational events i the summer of 2006
This year, using the DG3 definition, arcund 36,100 properties
experienced unplanned interruptions to supply, compared to around
15,200 1n 2005%/06 This represents 1 7% of the properties connected
to our network, compared to C45% in 2005/06 We have put in place
an action ptan to \mprove performance, focusing on our network assets,
our processes for responding to problems with water supply and cur
contingency planning for events such as power outages

We continued our performance on low pressure in 2006/07, with 314
properties across our entire region at risk of experiencing poor pressure
at year end, compared to 313 properties in 2005/06 This represents
less than 0 01% of the properties we serve

During 2007/08 we will install several thousand fixed pressure loggers
which will provide much better data on cur netwoark enabling us to
improve our performance further

The flooding of a home or property with raw sewage, Is viewed by most
pecple as one of the most unpleasant problems our customers may
endure Overali, for the first two years of the AMP4 programme, we have
been ahead of our Ofwat target in this area We will continue working to
achieve a net reduction year on year in the number of properties at risk
of flooding from sewers Our programme of warks to reduce
permanently the nsk of internal and externa! flooding will benefit an
estimated 1,600 properties, dependent upon the rate of discoveries of
new properties experniencing flooding and being added to our registers

In terms of the number of actual sewer flooding incidents, our 2006/07
figures are shightly up on those for 2005/06 Changes 1n weather
patterns, with increased numbers of storms have been one of the
contributing factors to increases in flooding

Qur sewer flooding KPlaims to reduce the number of :ncidents from
blockages, sewer collapses etc over the next five years There are two
main routes for achieving this reduction One will be the completion of
schemes already underway, such as the £14 milion scheme to alleviate
flooding in Kenilworth The second 15 solutions such as routine sewer
cleansing programmes to prevent sewers from blocking

Interacting with customers

in addition to receiving excellent operational services from us, our
custorners expect to interact with us in a satisfactory way If they have a
query about billing, they expect it to be resolved on their first call If
they wnite to us, they expect a quick response to their letter It 15 already
well documented that we have not reached high enough customer
service standards in recent years

In June 2006, Ofwat 1ssued a notice under S22A (4) of the Water
Industry Act, stating its intention to fine Severn Trent Water for failure
to meet customer service standards under the Guaranteed Standards
Scheme (GSS) for water companies The notice covered perfoarmance
since June 2005 In addition, we are still working and fully co-operating
with Ofwat and Ernst & Young LLP on their independent investigations
into customer service performance and misreporting which includes
performance prior to June 2005 We await the conclusions of those
investigations and details of the financial penalties that will be imposed
on us

In June 2006 Ofwat also 1ssued a notice under section 203 of the Water
Industry Act requiring further information tc be provided about the
rmisreparting of data and our performance against DG standards and
the GSS scheme Data for these areas has been provided to Ciwat going
back as far as 1995 and we have answered their detalled questions

Our final response was submitted on 31 January 2007 We anticipate
that Ofwat will respond with a further S22A notice of intention to
impose a penalty for misreporting of data since June 2005

In the meantime, we have done much to improve current customer
service siandards Many of the customer service failures of 2005/06
were due to the introduction of a major new IT system (TARGET) for
bithng customers We acknowledge that, when introducing that system,
we underestimated the amount of training required to transfer our
contact centre operators to the new system We also underestimated
the extent to which any major new IT system 15 prone to problems
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Performance review
Water and Sewerage continued

buring the secand half of 2005/06 and the start of 2006/07, these
problems were increasingly apparent to us, our customers and to Ofwat
In July 2006, the Consumer Council for Water (CCW) 1ssued a report
showing that complaints about Severn Trent Water increased by 54%
during the six months from October 2005 to March 2006 Their report
for the penod April 2006 to March 2007 showed a further nise in
complaints of 36% In 2006/07 we began work on an action plan to fix
IT problems, to recruit 70 additional staff in our billing dwision and to
extend the training given to contact centre operators

The results of that work now show steady irmprovements Customer
service performance (n the first eight months of 2006/07 remamed
unsatisfactory while figures for the final four months, as a result of
the action plan, were starting to show improvement

for customer service performance the first KPtis wnitten customer
complaints per 1,000 properties This 1s a new measure for 2006707
In previous years we have tracked DG7, a measure of the response to
written complaints DG7 performance in 2006/07 was 99 76%
compared with 88 7% 1n 2005/06 Agawnst the new measure, our
quarter three performance was 25 9 (complaints per 1,000 properties),
recovering to 17 5 in the last quarter, giving performance in the year of
1906 Whilst both the quality and ttmeliness of responses have
improved In the year, continuing 1ssues on answering phone calls
caused custormers to wnite in and complain

Qur second KPI on customer service 1s first time call resolution for
brlling contact, which shows the proportion of calls resolved at that
point As well as giving the best standard of service to customers, first
time call resolution 1s also the most cost effective for us This 1s again a
new measure and whilst we have calculated performance for 2006/07
at B0%, this measure was not tracked in management reports in the
course of the year Buning 2006/07 the focus has been on ensuring
compliance with Ofwat's DG6 (the number of billing contacts received
during the report year and the time taken te respend to therm)
standards and improving the quahty of call response

The traiming and competency programme for billing staff will continue
In 2007/08 and beyond Cur goal in 2007/08 15 to sustain the
improvements we are now seeing, so we once again meet industry
standards 1n this area Beyond that, we will set ourseives higher
aspirations of being an industry leader in customer service

Interaction with custormers 1s not just about how we perform in terms
of spectfic figures and measures |t 1s alse about fitting in with different
customers’ ways of life and giving them flexibility 1n how they contact
us So, in 2006/07 we redeveloped our website (www stwaterco uk) in
order to give customers self service options for dealing with us
Transactions such as requesting a meter or teling us about a change
of address can now be done online 24 hours a day, seven days a

week (24/7), whereas previously customers had to telephone our
contact centre
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The other main area of customer interaction relates to cur operational
water and waste water services We completed a reorganisation of this
process in 2006/07 with the closure of our two 24/7 regional
operational management centres We have established a new 24/7
customer operations service centre at Coventry in the heart of our
operational area All customer contacts related to water and waste
water matters are handled alongside and as part of, our operational
management capability This enables us to diagnose operational failures
more effectively and promptly and also allows us te use our remote
maonitonng systems to keep our customer contact teams better
informed thus providing a higher standard of service on operational
matters We are working on improving process efficiency to increase
customer satisfaction in order to deliver first time job resolution for
field and network problems

We are encouraged that in the first six month period since establishing
the new centre {Qctober 2006 to March 2007) we have improved by
13% to 72% the number of customers who, through our service
delivery survey, have told us we have met or exceeded their
expectations We are confident that these results demonstrate we can
make further sustainable improvements to operational customer service
in 2007/08 and heyond

Our New Connections depariment manages, from application to i
delivery, the connection of customers to water and waste water services

In 2006/07 we have worked closely with developers and customers to

understand how we can improve our service to them and make

interaction with us easier Consequently, we have changed our

organisation design, introduced new web based applicatrons and

improved our periormance on water service connections completed

within 21 working days from 45% to 81% We are aiming to build on

these improvements through 2007/08

We also have customers who, on receipt of a bill, either cannot or will
not pay This directly impacts our trade debtors and our financial
performance We have therefore introduced the debtor days KPI as the
measure by which our performance will be tracked and benchmarked

Assuming that our year on year bithng and coltection performance for
each of our various Income streams remains constant, we would expect
our debtor days to increase on an annual basis by approximately two
days This 1s due to the continued impact of customers switching from
the unmeasured to measured basis of charge As rmeasured bills are
sent to customers throughout the year, there will inevitably be a number
of recently 1ssued bills that remain unpaid at year end The number of
water meters we installed increased by over 65,500 in 2006/07

Our debtor days performance has deteriorated from 31 days in
2005/06 to 37 days »n 2006/07 This detenoration 1s above the two day
expected increase described above and has been driven by operational
performance 1ssues within our billing and coltection processes

We intend to position curselves within the upper quartile of industry
performance by 2011/12 This is to be defivered through a stepped
performance impravement in cur biiling and collection activities In
particular, we will improve the performance of our billing contact centre,
reduce our current work 1in pragress backlogs and introduce further
biling system improvements




Developing a sustainable service for customers

Serving customers also means looking after their long term interests as
well as their immediate concerns Our main aim 1s to ensure that we are
maintaining the serviceabinty of our assets This means carrying out the
work necessary to make sure their water and sewerage systems deliver
reliable service in the future for customers and the envirenment It takes
into consideration aspects hke the condition and deterioration of a
company's above ground and below ground water and sewerage assets
The most recent Ofwat assessment shows that we have a stable
serviceability across our asset base

Improving the delivery of our capital programme

We will aim cont:nuously to improve the delivery of our capital
programme We are (n the process of developing a KPI that will
measure the quality of our Capex delivery

The AMP4 contract for 2005-10 includes a capital investment
programme of approximately £2 7 bilhon This includes

> maore than £400 million on mamntaiming water supplies

> £150 million on improving drinking water quality

> around £850 millon on maintaining and improving river quality

> more than £350 mullion improving sewers and dealing with sewer
flooding, and

> more than £260 million to reduce leakage

In the two years to date we have mobilised 2,852 projects of which
1,616 have been completed We have invested just short of £200
milion on our water production and disinbutien service with the focus
on improving levels of service to customers, upgrading our treatment
works and distribution network We have invested over £250 miilion on
sewerage services, with a focus on repairing our aging sewers,
maintaining and upgrading our sewage treatment works to meet tighter
guality standard and we are explorning ways of expleiting our by
products to generate electricsty In addition we have invested £50
rmillion on our suppert services to improve customer service and
business services

This year capital expenditure, net of grants and cantributions, excluding
spending on infrastructure maintenance of £38 million, was £365
million for the year Adjusting for the changes to the programme, to be
agreed with Ofwat through the change control process and for timing,
differences, we are on track to deliver approximately 6% efficiencies
over and above the final determination This has been largely driven by
the use of better technologies, better designs and greater delivery
efficiency [t 1s still early days in AMP4, but we aim to maintain similar
outperformance over the rest of AMP4

Protecting the environment

The local environment s especially important for a water company
How we abstract water, how we manage waste water discharges, how
we operate over 1,000 sewage treatment sites, how we operate our
54,000km of sewerage network and how we rmanage resources all have
a huge potential impact on the local environment We have a
responsibilty to mimimise that environmental impact and to optimise
our use of resources

The serousness with which we take that responsibility 1s reflected in our
KP!s Five separate (ndicators are inked to environmental performance
They are breach of consents at sewage treatment works, pollution
incidents, raw water storage, net energy use and leakage In addition to
measuring our environmental impact, all five indicators provide a sharp
insight inte our operational performance

Minimising our environmental impact

One of our KPls in this area measures cur compliance with the
discharge conserts far our sewage treatment works We have a good
history of performance n thus area, although a poorly performing
sewage works at Stratford-upon-Aven reduced our overall perfermance
figures for 2005 (based on calendar year) In 2006 with that specific
problem remedied, our comphance levels were excellent and we
achieved a compliance rate of gover 39 39% Thus level of compliance

1s amongst the best to be found 1n the industry

Another KPl which relates to our environmental impact 1s the number
of pollution incidents, meore specifically the number of Environment
Agency reported category 1, 2 and 3 pollution incidents The total
number of such pollution incidents was 530 in 2006 calendar year,
which was lower than 2005 but still too high Of the total recorded, two
were of the most severe In category 1, and eight were category 2 This
performance 15 comparable with the industry averages using the

2005 data

Within the total number of pollution incidents, 98% (520) were category
3 incidents which are classified as having a very hmited and localised
environmental impact Thus particular aspect of performance was
similar to our 2005 performance (519), placing us In the lower quartlle
far the industry We have taken positive steps to make significant
improvements in developing an action plan to deliver pallution
reductions durning the current year and through o the end of the
current AMP period The plan 1s linked to our proactive and reactive
work on the sewerage network Whilst we only have the first quarter
performance for 2007 the results are encouraging, showing a decrease
of almost 35% for category 3 incidents compared to the first quarter
of March 2006

We have also instigated a number of projects which include initiatives to
raise customer awareness around the impact of depositing fats, oils and
greases into the sewerage system Significant numbers of our sewer
blockages are caused by fat build up which in turn contribute to the
number of pollution incidents and floodings We have a plan to educate
customers about the potential problems of pouring fat down sinks and
drains, part of which 1s the offer of the provision and distribution of free
‘fat traps’ These are small containers to hoid cooled fat for easy
disposal with household waste We raised awareness of this inthative
through our Source magazine which accompanied all of our annual bills
distributed 1in February and March 2007

Across the region we have a number of large scale construction and
upgrade projects at a number of sewage treatment works These
upgrades are already underway, as part of our AMP4 capitat programme
and when cormpleted will resuit in environmental improvements We are
pleased to report that work 1s currently on schedule
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Performance review
Water and Sewerage continued

Optimising our use of resources

QOur water supplies are fundamental to our business Cur KPi

on raw water storage compares the percentage of raw water available
at our reservolrs against our three year rolling average

In 2006/07 our raw water starage fevels were good despite a dry
summer We did not impose a hosepipe ban during the year, and
storage levels at year end were normal for the time of year

Net energy use

Our KPI on net energy use measures how much energy {net of
renewable energy generated by us) we consume per megalitre of water
or waste water treated Since energy costs are 2 major element of cur
cost base — and were especially so in 2006/07 following price rises,
managing energy usage also enables us to manage costs In addition,
managing energy consumption 15 an essential element in mitigating
our environmental impact

In 2006707 we continued to manage our net energy consumption
in two principal ways First, we maintained our renewable energy

production at around 155,000 MWh, this represents 16% of total

electrncity used

Secondly, we manage net energy consumption through energy
efficiency programmes In 2006/07 we completed on schedule site
energy reviews of our top 407 sites that account for 85% of Severn
Trent Water's electricity use The review has resulted in individuat Site
Energy Management Plans for 330 sites that include local actions to
improve plant/process optimisation and identify potential ‘spend to
save' oppartunities The review has identified generic approaches
required to manage energy on the remaimning sites, we believe these
plans will enable us to save approxrmately 10,000 MWh of electricity
during 2007/08

In forthcoming years, implermentation of regulations such as the Urban
Wastewater Directive and the Water Framework Directive will increase
our energy requirements In order to offset that, we plan to expand our
renewable energy production even further We are planning a number
of new apportunities and will continue to werk on this in 2007/08 and
beyond tn addition to extending our current CHP tiogas production,
the opportunities we are planning include biomass energy crops, micro
generation, wind turbines and extending hydro power

Leakage

This bas been a priority for us in 2006/07 We returned disappointing
results in 2005/06 and consequently increased cur focus on and
investment in, leakage control We employed more people in this area,
invested 1n new technology and 1n 2006/07 found and fixed 37,000
leaks, 8,000 more than the previous year

This effort has reduced our leakage this year but it was not until the
manth of March 2007 that we attained a monthly level of lezkage
commensurate with our Ofwat annual target Therefore, notwithstanding
this reduction, we believe that we will not attain the annual average
target level of leakage We have kept Ofwat fully informed of our
progress and we are In the process of finalising and verifying our
leakage data for submission in our annual June Return, which will be
submitted In a few weeks

14 Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2007

The largest single element of cur investment in leakage management 15
incurred in our mains renewal programme The Ofwat Determination for
AMP4 assumed around £184 million of expenditure over 5 years (in
nominal terms) We have already invested around £85 million in the
first two years and we expect to invest a total of around £231 million,
some 26% more than assumed 1n the Determination, over the whole
AMP4 period on mains renewals alone

Reducing leakage will remain a priority (n 2007/08 and we are
determined to maintawn the good progress we have made 1n the second
half of 2006/07 We are in a good position going into this new year

Promoting the efficient use of water 1s impaortant to us During 2006/07
we continued to adopt a twin track approach for promating the efficient
use of water with our customers This included the promeotion and
distribution of water saving devices, together with education and the
provision of advice to raise awareness of the need to use water wisely

In the report year we have recorded increases in the distribution and
installation of cistern displacement devices, our self audit guides and
water butts We increased distribution of cistern displacement devices
by 45,622 (47%) and nstallation by 65,838 (144%) Seif audit guide
distnibution in¢reased by 15,278 (21%) and water butt distribution by
123 (2%) In addition, the number of pupils attending our education
centres In 2006/07 increased by 3,332 {15%) We have enhanced our
education programme, and commenced three triaf projects including
a household water efficiency tnal, schoo! water efficiency trial and a
local government partnership investigating opportunities to promote
water effciency

CCW research shows that there s still much work to be done to ensure
our customers are sufficiently engaged with the 1ssue and can make use
of the tools and technology that we make avallable Throughout
2007/08 we will continue our efforts to influence the attitudes of our
customers through focused education and awareness activities In
addition we will continue to build our knowledge of the savings
assoctated with water efficiency activities to ensure that future plans
provide us with cost effective savings

Creating a great place to work

We have stressed repeatedly that health and safety 15 a key priority
for us At the business level, 1t 1s also an important indicator of quality
at the workplace level, the physical well be:ng of our employees

IS paramount

In line with our KPI on health and safety, we reported a 20% reduction
in the RIDDOR accident rate per 1,000 employees in 2006/07 This

was an impravement on our performance from the previous year In
2007708 and beyond, we will aam to improve further on our safety
performance and have therefore moved our performance measure from
RIDDORs to the more demanding measure of lost time incidents (LT!s)

For the current year we are targeting a 15% reduction in LTls This s

a broader measure than the measure we used previously as it includes
all injuries that result in time off work, not just the serious longer

term injuries




Behavioural change and individual engagement are important aspects
of improving safety and general business perforrmance We encourage
our employees to share and debate their ideas about safety, and to put
these ideas into practice Towards the end of 2005/06 we began to
develop a safety management system called SUSA (Safe and Unsafe
Acts) This 15 a one to one work based observation and discussion
process In which SUSA trained managers talk regularly with their team
members about the way in which they and their team do their job

By the end of March 2007, over 80% of managers had received SUSA
training The remaining 20% will receive the traimng in 2007/08 and
there will also be a rolling programme to give SUSA training to new
managers The target 1s also for each manager 1o have at least one
SUSA discussion every week

A second major initiative to Improve safety performance s a safety
process review of all of our water and waste water sites A survey 1s
being carned out at each site, with a target completion date of April
2008 Each survey generates an action plan, with some improvements
being made immediately and larger improvements being incorporated
into our capitai investment plan

As well as completing the safety process review, our plans for 2007/08
include setting up a new technical operational function This team wall
independently assess the quality of our operations against technical and
safety best practice The objective 1s to bring continuous improvement
to cur technical and cperational activities and reporting

The engagement and skills of our workforce are vital ingredients in
making us a leader in our Industry We also need to benchmark that
engagement rather than simply talking about it in abstract terms

We have therefore introduced a KPI on employee motivation Previously,
we used to run an annual employee survey, we have now moved to

a quarterly survey of 500 randomly selected employees, as well as

the annual survey of alt sta¥f This gives us an ongoing measure of

staff merale and motivation, which we can also benchrmark against
other organisations

Qutlook

In the first two years of the AMP4 contract, we have made good
progress on the targets set by Ofwat Maintaining this progress wiil
govern our activities for 2007/08 and beyond In order to meet our
etficiency targets, we will continue to control operating costs, make
process improvements, and manage our capital programme We will
also continue cur work to Improve leakage and customer service
performance

Our abihity to achieve significant operational improverments in 2007/08
and to achieve our AMP4 targets will be boosted by the introduction

of aur 20 KPIs They give us clear year by year targets, as well as
establishing robust action and improvement plans for achieving them
This will assist both internal and external scrutiny of our activities and
deliver our sirategy of focus on water
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Performance review

Performance
2007 2006
£m im
Turnover 2889 2988
Profit* 187 171

*Before interest, tax and exceptional items {see note 5}

After adjusting for the disposal of the
Pipeline Services business and the impact
of exchange rate fluctuations, turnover in
Water Technologies and Services was
£292 6 milhon i 2006/07, up 2 4% on
2005/06 (see below) Turnover in the US
businesses was up by 4% above 2005/06,
while turnover originating from business
units outside the US was essentially even
wrth last year

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional
items was £19 7 million, an increase of
152% This was mamnly achieved through
greater operating efficiency

2007 2006
£m £m
Turnover 2889 2998
Pipeline Services (51) (140}
2838 2858
Exchange rate impact 88 -
2926 2858

Growth 2 49,

Health and safety RIDDOR incidents

2006/07 13

2005/06 29
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WATER
TECHNOLOGIES
AND SERVICES

Len Graziano

President and

Chref Executive Officer
Water Technologies and
Services

Severn Trent’s Water Technology and Services business 1s a leading
global suppher of water and waste water treatment solutions It comprises
three main groups Water Punfication, Operating Services and Analytical
Services The first two groups are marketed as Severn Trent Services,
while Analytical Services takes in the UK Laboratories business

We operate at the foreiront of new water technology We are leaders in
our chosen markets of disinfection, filiration, arsenic removaf, and in the
UK environmental testing services We are 2lso a leading provider of
contract operating services for water and waste water plants

Strategy

Our growth strategy is to focus on our core strengths Therefore, we
made a number of disposals in the 2006/07 financial year We sold our
Pipeline Products and Services assets to ADS LLC At year end we sold
our Aztec instrumentation preduct hne to ABB Limited We also sold our
stake in Aquafin NV to the Flermish government for £29 6 rmidlion

These disposals leave us free to concentrate on our core strengths and
on higher margin, higher growth areas We have a twofold strategy for
achieving organic growth in these areas First, we are expanding our
existing technologies into new gecgraphical markets and secondly, we
are taking new technologies into our existing markets

In order to achieve the first of these, we are extending our global sales
and distnibution network outsice the US This emphasis is reflected in
our new order volume for Water Punfication products increasing shightly
above 13% year over year in 2006/07 As regards new technologies, we
acquired a proprietary ultraviolet {(UV) technology, Quay Technologies in
May 2007 This will enhance our position in the growing global water
and waste water disinfection treatment market

The other aspect of our strategy for delivering good returns to
shareholders remains unchanged from previous years That 15, we
continue to focus on cost control, operational efficiency and safety
rmprovermnents We believe the connections between these three aspects
are extremety strong, health and safety improvements go hand in hand
with greater operational efficiency, which itself goes hand in hand with
cost control

We are therefore pleased to report a much improved health and safety
performance in 2006/07 The number of RIDDOR incidents was down
by over 55% on 2005/06




Water Purification
The Water Purification division's turnover rose by 4 5% to £106 million
and profit before interest and tax increased by 39% on the previous year

Within this division, Metering Services was a very positive story In the
UK, demand for domestic water meters 1s increasing, leading to good
growth in our figures for meter instailations and meter supply

The Water Purification division 1s product oriented and new technology
15 therefore important Metering Services leads the industry in solid
state electronic metenng of domestic premises We further developed
our position in 2006 with the design and launch of a new concentric
SmartMeter, which 1s suitable for outdoor installation (our existing
meters were primanly for indoor use) The new meter also has the
capability to help leak detection, clearly an important part of the UK
strategy for water management

In early 2007 our SM150 and SM250 SmartMeters were the first

domestic electronic powered water meters to be approved under the
new European Union Measuring Instruments Directive (MIDY Tris witl
open up the whole European Market to our products for the first time

The arsenic removal market continues to grow In the US and we have
two strong product offerings Bayoxide® E33 is a propnetary granular
fernc oxide medium and Bayoxide® E33P is a proprietary pelletized
fernc oxide medium developed by LANXESS for use in Severn Trent
Services SORB 33*® and SCRB 33® APU arsenic removal systems
Bayoxide® has been permitted for use by environmental agencies in
24 states 1n the US, more than any cther arsenic removal technology

Outside the US, we continued to win new contracts in the Middle East,
including supplying on site sodium hypochlorite generation systems to
the Abu Dhab Water and £lectrnicity Authonty (ADWEA) and a large
electrochlorination contract in Qatar We also won a deep bed filtration
contract with a municipality in China and a contract +n the UK to supply
Southern Water with filtration eguipment for four new waste water
treatment facilittes

Operating Services

This division comprises our Contract Operations business, which

carries out operating and ma:ntenance contracts in the US, and our
International group, which provides aperating management and
consultancy services in Europe and the developing world These
services include the Coast to Coast Water (C2C) joint venture This 25
year, £1 billion Private Finance tmibiative contract with the UK Ministry of
Defence started in March 2005 and serves some 1,500 sites throughout
the country

At the start of the year, the Contract Operations market in the US was
relatively soft However, demand picked up, driven by mumeipahties’
and governments’ need to comply with regulation and to improve the
performance of water and waste water plants

Turnover (n Operating Services for the year was up 1% to £146 milion
and profit before interest and tax improved 49

In terms of contract wins, a highhght was the renewal of our US$72
millhion contract with the Flonda Governmental Utility Authonty for five
years Under the revised contract, we will operate and maintain four
water and wastewater systemns for five years, with an additicnal five year
extension eption

Analytical Services

Year over year, Severn Trent Laboratories UK's (STL) turnover was
£32 5 millien, up 1% As a result of the organisation’s continued cost
efficiency programmes, profit was up 15% on the previous year

Durning the financial year, STL was successfully awarded new contracts
with both Welsh Water and Severn Trent Water for five and three years
respectively In June it won a contract to sample and monitor endocrine
disrupting compounds for the National Environment Agency
Demonstration Programme This s being conducted tn England

and Wales in conjunction with the UK Government and the Water
Industry STL also saw continued success in the waste water, waste

and land markets and growth in our apphed research and
radigchemistry capabilities

Outlook
Looking ahead, we believe the market outlook for us 1s generally positive

There are opportunities in our target Water Purificatton markets for
electro chlorination, on site sadium hypochlonte generation, arsenic
removal, and tertiary treatment services In particular there are good
opportunities for us to take our existing technology into new
geographical areas We will continue to focus on selected countries in
the Middle East and in 2007/08 we plan to open a direct sales and
service office in the United Arab Emirates

We will also target growth in Asia and Europe Developments like the
EYU MID approval for our SmartMeter products will create growth
opportunities in 2007/08 and beyond

There are good commercial opportunittes ahead in ballast water
treatment, driven by new International Marittme Organisation
regulations Severn Trent De Nora's Balpure system for treating ballast
water has a patent pending in the US and was the first commercial
system to be selected for testing oy the US Coast Guard and the US
Environmental Protection Agency

In the Operating Services business, we plan to achieve growth through
geographical expansion, both in the US and internationatly, especially
in Europe and particularty 1n the UK non regulated water sector and
n Kaly

In Analytical Services, our twin focus will be on utihities and on the
commercial sector The utilities sector remains important to us, but we
believe there are higher growth oppartunities in the commercial sector
Cur existing analytical expertise and reputation in the utiities sector are
directly relevant to those commercial opportunities So we are well
equipped to grow that side of the business

In all three areas, we will maintain our ¢ost control and
efficiency programmes
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Our corporate responsibilities

THE HEART
OF OUR
BUSINESS

Severn Trent Plc's decision to focus on water also shifted the focus of
our corporate responsibility (CR) strategy 1n 2006/07 Our new strategy
on CR 15 to support the company’s drive for excellence by achieving the
highest standards on a range of CR subject areas

Those subjects include health and safety, climate change, the local
environment, engagement with local communities, business ethics,
diversity, and investing in people Further details of cur CR strategy,
values and action plans are set cut on the Severn Trent website
(www severntrent com)

Indicators presented in this CR section have been independently
venfied by the external consultants Acona as part of our CR
verification programme

Putting CR at the heart of the business

To be effective, a company's CR strategy must be fully integrated with
its core business planning The strategic and organisational change that
took place within Severn Trent in 2006/07 has reinforced this

As we describe elsewhere in this Annual Report, Severn Trent Water has
adopted 20 KPls by which it will measure performance and set targets
Many of these indicators ink directly to the company’s CR strategy

for example, the KPls on health and safety, leakage, net energy use,
pollution incidents and employee motivation This ensures that CR s at
the very core of Severn Trent Water’s activities Additional CR objectives
have been set to ensure focus across all cther elements of our CR
strategy Water Technologies and Services has adopted quarterly CR
KPIs 1n the areas of health and safety, chimate change, the supply chain
and business ethics focusing on 1ts core business

In additicn, the company’s Corporate Responsibility Commuttee, which
now meets bimonthly, has introduced a more structured approach to
reviewing all areas of our CR performance through the new KPI's and
objectives

As several of our core CR issues now appear in the company’s new
KPIs, our progress on them in 2006/07 has already been described
earler in this report, In the Performance Review Below we ook at other
CR subject areas that have been important to Severn Trent's activities
and focus in 2006/07

Environment

We welcome that climate change has risen up the political and public
agenda in 2006/07 Severn Trent Water has been engaged tn planning
for a changing chmate for a number of years We have built a leading
reputation In this area with key stakeholders such as the Carbon Trust
In 2005, we published the Carban Management report supported by
the Carbon Trust This year we have worked on updating this to take
into account the changes within the business

Our work on chmate change focuses on two main aspects mitigating
our impact on climate change, and adapting to it In turn, mitigation has
two mamn aspects energy efficiency initiatives, and in-house renewable
energy production, primarily biogas CHP The effects of our work in both
these areas are reflected in our KPI on net energy use

Our work on climate change adaptation (nvolves trying to assess

how climate change might impact Severn Trent Water’s operations and
strategic development Water supply and sewer flooding are two areas
of particular importance
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Our Water Resources Plan, sets out our water resources investment
programme untl 2010 and presents a 25 year development plan to
2030 Whilst we have committed to delivering a 17 MI/d reduction in
leakage over the AMP4 period, cur analysis to 2030 shows there 1s a
potential need for new strategic water resource developments and
further leakage reductions to counter the effects of climate change on
the supply/demand balance for water We therefore aim to carry out
work during AMP4 and AMPS t¢ understand better the cimate ¢change
impacts and to plan longer term feasibihty studies that will ensure water
supply to our customers at least cost to them, whilst still considering
the longer term social and environmental impact of future increased
water abstraction A key part of this process will be to continue to
reduce demand and promcte water efficiency

Workplace

Over the past two years we have written much about our work to
strengthen our mternal business culture and ethics This work continued
in 2006/07 making Severn Trent a more open and transparent culture,
where there are no barners to evaluating performance, whether good
or bad

By the end of March 2007, over 550 Severn Trent Water senior and
middle managers had attended a training workshop on ethical decision
making We designed this programme with the help of the Institute of
Business Ethics It gives managers a set of principles and tools te deal
with ethical challenges in their day to day work The next phase 1s to
extend the training across the organisation, to reach all employees

Water Technologies and Services has also implemented a business
ethics training program Employees worldwide attended ‘Ethical
Behaviour at Work' traiming which included the Code of Conduct,
Business Ethics and Whistleblowing US staff were in addition
involved tn “Fair Treatment” training focusing on maintaining an
appropriate workplace

Another mechanism for improving our business 1s strengthening the
training we give 1o new managers In Severn Trent Water we are now
taking a more individual approach to new manager development and
in addition to an induction ‘Stepping Into Management’, there are a
variety of modules for managers new to therr role




Qur employees

Qur most imporiant obhgation to our employees 1s to ensure their
safety and this 15 covered n the KPIs We aisc have other obhgations to
our workforce They include promoting diversity, nvesting in training,
prometing work life balance, and enabling participation (n our
employee share ownership schemes

Severn Trent Water launched an important development scheme in
2006/C7 Developing Talent 1s a structured and inclusive two year
development programme for people with high potential in the early
stages of their career Unhke iis predecessor, the old graduate scheme,
our new programme s how apen to current employees, graduates and
non graduates as well as externally recruited graduates

We extended the 2006 apprenticeship recruitment campaign and
saw 1,000 applications for 40 roles The apprentices chosen joined
49 pther trainees in distribution and sewerage who began therr
develcpment programmes earlier in the year Some of them will
he the first 1n the UK to earn qualifications under the proposed
Water Apprenticeship Framework

In Water Technologies and Services a traiming program has been
speciaily designed to identify ‘tomorraw’s technical experts’ Successful
applicants receive a personal development plan and time to develop
technical capabilities

A diverse werkforce 1s important to the success of the company and we
promote this in our working practices There 1s always scope to Improve
our diversity performance and our measures to do this include
monitoring diversity profiles, targeted recrutment imitiatives, diversity
awareness training, and benchmarking our policies and practices
against best practice organisations Water Technologies and Services
programs such as Affirmitive Action in North America ensure that
managers have a diverse apphicant pool

Severn Trent Water has positive working relationships with recegnised
trade unians Regular meetings with trade unions provide opportunities
for ongoing dialogue and enhancement of their understanding of the
Issues facing our business

Marketplace

Severn Trent Water has been working to develop 1ts supply chain
assessment processes (n 2005/06 and 2006/07 Significant
contractors/suppliers have been required for some years to provide
information on their health and safety performance and their
environmental qualifications and performance In 2006 we recognised
a need to build on that Therefore, in 2006/07 Severn Trent Water
hegan developing a new standardised risk based approach to supply
chain assessment, focusing not Just on health and safety and
environment, but also on human nghts, bribery and corruption We have
been working with Nottingham Trent Unwversity in the development of a
Supply Chain Diptorma 1n Management Studies a first in the Utilty
sector The course participants represent all areas of the supply ¢chain,
both internal and external

Group health and safety

24%, mprovement in RIDDOR*
incident rate

Per

1000

employees

2006/07 71
2005/06 93

*RIDDOR - Reportable Injuries Oiseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulatons

Community

Severn Trent Water’s relationship with the regional community 1s
another facet of cur CR strategy Cur engagement with the community
takes several forms community investment, community haison, and
educational imtiatives

Qur community investment programme focuses on three areas

the natural environment, education, and health and well being We
continued our work with nine partner chanties that operate at a local
and nternational level

We also made a substantial grant to the Severn Trent Trust Fund, as in
previous years This independent charity was established in 1997 to
help customers n genuine financial difficulty apply for help with paying
water and other utihty bills The trust fund helps customers to become
good payers Our annual funding of the trust 1s £3 6 miilion per year

Our education programme aims to raise awareness of the importance
of water and water efficiency We have continued two main initiatives
our educational centres and BeSmart, an education programme
which teaches school children about water efficiency In 2006/07
over 25,000 children visited our educational centres, while 46 schools
took part in BeSmart

Independent research into the two inthiatives, comrmissioned in
2006/07, shows that both are successful in promoting the health
aspects of dnnking water and the importance of water efficiency

‘It 15 clear that children that have direct expernence of a Severn Trent
Water education inthative are more engaged, active and vocal about
their water behaviours, concluded the researchers

During the year, the BeSmart programme won a West Midlands
Bus:ness in the Community Big Tick award for investing in young
people It also wan a Utility Week award for best community initiative
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Financial review

Michael McKeon
Group Finance
Director

Financial ghhights

2007 2006 % change
Turnover* (£m) 1,4802 14553 17
Profit* before interest, tax and exceptionals (£m) 40513 3930 31
Profit* before nterest and tax (£m) 4300 3773 140
Profit* before tax, exceptionals and IAS 39 (£m) 2520 2302 95
Profit* before tax (£m) 3255 1778 831
Earnings* per share before exceptionals, IAS 39 and deferred tax (p) 824 714 154
Earnings* per share (p) 1061 529 1006
Final dividend (p) 3g 68 3197 210
Interim dividend (p) 2277 1916 188
Total dividend for the year {p) 61 45 5113 202
Total rebased dividend 6145 5700 78

*From continuing aperations

Group results

Group turnover from continuing operations was £1,480 2 million
(£1,455 3 million), an increase of 1 7%, over last year The growth 1n
turnover was mainly due to the price increases in Severn Trent Water
and organic growth in the Water Purification business partially offset by
the disposal of a small business {Pipeline Services) and a reduction

In activity :n the other businesses

Group profit from continuing operations before interest, tax and
exceptional tems was up 3 1% to £405 3 million (£393 million)
Beyond the net increase in turnover, the factors affecting profit before
interest and tax were cost increases in Water and Sewerage partially
offset by margin growth in Water Technologies and Services There was
a net excepttonal gain of £24 7 million (exceptionat charge of £157
miilion) - see below Group profit from continuing aperations befeore
interest and tax was £430 0 million (£377 3 million)

Water and Sewerage

Turnover In Water and Sewerage increased by 5 8% in 2006/07 to
£1,218 1 million Sales prices increased by 6 58% (including inflation)
from 1 April 2006 The price rise represented the 7 23% increase
allowed by Ofwat, less a 0 65% voluntary abatement previously
announced In 2005/06
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Profit before interest, tax and exceptional iterns was up by 3 1% on the
previous year to £413 0 million Beyond the increase in turnover a
number of factors affected profit before interest, tax and exceptional
tems, principally an increase in energy costs of £24 million, other
increases, net of efficiencies, In our cost base of £17 4 million, increase
in infrastructure renewals expenditure of £3 6 million and an increase in
depreciation charges of £10 1 million reflecting the growing asset base

Financial highhghts

During the financial year, Severn Trent Water invested £502 milhon in
fixed assets and maintaining its infrastructure network Inciuded in this
total was net (nfrastructure maintenance expenditure of £88 0 millien

Adjusting for minor timing differences and modifications to the AMP4
capital programme (notified to Ofwat through the change control
process) we are on track to deliver this programme over the AMP4
pencd We continue to be in line to achieve around &% efficiencres
compared with Ofwat's Final Determinaiion for AMP4




Water Technologies and Services

Turnover in Water Technologies and Services was £288 9 million in
2006/07, down 3 6% on 2005/06 As set out in the tabie below,
adjusting for the effect of the sale of a small business (Pipeline Services)
and remowving the impact of changing exchange rates, turnover rose by
24% to £292 6 millien On the same basis, turnover in the US was up
by 4% Turnover in the UK and rest of the worid was up by around 3 1%
through continued organic growth Around 43% of Water Technologies
and Services’ turnover arose from customers in the USA

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£m £m

Turnover 2889 2998
Pipeline Services 1) (14 0)
2838 2858

Exchange rate impact 88 -
292 6 2858

Water Technologies and Services' profit before interest, tax and
exceptional itemns mcreased by 15 2% to £19 7 milhon The
improvement mainly anses from improved margins across all pnincipal
businesses The impact of changing exchange rates was immatenial

Corporate and Other

Other Businesses' turnover was down 82 6% to £10 3 mithon Corporate
and Other incurred a loss before interest tax and excepbienal items of
£26 3 million (loss of £25 7 million)

Interest and tax

After net interest charges of £153 8 milhon (£163 @ muthon) and share
of results of associates and joint ventures of £0 5 mullion (£1 1 milhon},
group profit from continuing operations before tax, exceptional items
and 1AS 39 fair value adjustments increased by 9 5% to £252 C mullion
(£230 2 miliion) Group profit from continuing operations before tax was
£325 5 millon (£177 8 million)

The total tax charge for the year was £76 9 mtllion (£54 2 milion) of
which current tax represented £58 5 million (£61 5 million) and deferred
tax £18 4 milhon {credit of £7 3 million) Profit for the pernod from
continuing eperations was £248 & rmillion (£123 6 million)

The etfective rate of current tax on continuing businesses, excluding
prior year charges and exceptional items, calculated on profit before tax
exceptional items and |AS 39 fair value adjustments was 27% (28 7%)
The decrease in effective rate 1s a result of a lower tevel of disaltowable
expenditure Going forward we expect the effective current tax rate for
2007/08 to be n the range of 25% to 28%

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations generated a profit before tax and exceptional
items ot £59 6 million (£88 2 million) After tax charges of £15 2 milhion
(credit of £11 2 millkion) and net exceptional charges of £24 4 million
(£rul), net profit atinbutable to discontinued operations was

£20 muillion (£99 4 millign)

MBIAD! BIUCWIOUIY

Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
were 114 7 pence (95 9 pence) Adjusted basic earnings per share
(before exceptional items, IAS 39 fair value adjustrments and deferred
tax) were 82 4 pence (71 4 pence), an increase of 15 4%

Exceptional items

There was a net exceptional gain, on continuing eperations, in the year
to 31 March 2007 of £24 7 million (exceptional charge of £15 7 mullion)
which comprised

> acharge of £14 9 milhon in Severn Trent Water arising from a
programme to restructure and realign the business (£11 9 million
write off of decommissioned assets and £3 @ million restructuring
costs),

> demerger and related costs of £16 7 million (including £7 8 million
arising from the settlement of pension obligations), and

> profit on disposal of property and businesses of £56 3 milhon,
COMPriSINg

- profit of £36 2 mullion ansing from the disposal of properties
In Severn Trent Water,

- profit on disposal of Aquafin NV of £14 7 mulhon, and

- profit of £5 4 milhion from the disposal of Severn Trent
Property and other property assets :n Severn Trent Plc

There were net exceptional charges af £24 4 milhon (£nil) on
discontinued operations, which comprised

> profit on disposal of Biffa Belgium of £3 5 million,

> acharge of £31 5 milion ansing from the impairment of goodwill
relating to US Laboratones, and

> loss on disposal of US Laboratories of £2 4 million

Capital structure and dividend policy

During the year the group reviewed its capital structure and its dividend
policy n the light of the transformation of its business structure and the
focus on water strategy The greater longer term clanty prowided by this
strategy enabled the group to declare its intention to raise geanng, as
defined by net debt to regulated capital value (net debt/RCV), to 60%
Leading directly from this decision, a special dividend of £575 million
was paid on 20 October 2006 The tighter focus of this new strategy also
aliowed the group to declare a new dividend policy to ratse dividends by
3% above RPI inflation through to the end of the current AMP period -
31 Margh 2010
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Financial review continued

Cash flow

Continuing Discontinued 2007 2006
£m £m £m £Em

Cash generated
from operations 4865 875 5740 7589
Net capital expenditure 3177 (33 8) (3515) (3959)
Net interest paid (157 8) 14 (156 4) (1801)
Tax paid (296) 6 (36 0) (68 3)
Other cash flows 08 04 12 02)
Free cash flow (17 8) 451 313 1144
Dmvidends (7395 - (739 5) (234 3)
Acqguisitions and disposals 1380 - 1380 13
Financing 100 - 100 116
Change 1n net debt
from cash flows (6093) 491 (560 2) (107 0y

Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of £574 C million
(£758 9 million) Movements in working capital along with the demerger
of Biffa Ple on 9 October 2006, sale of Biffa Belgium, the US
Laborateries and the Property businesses have resuited in lower group
operating cash flows compared with the previous year Capital
expenditure net of grants and proceeds from asset sales (principally
surplus properties) £62 2 milhion (£8 4 milion) was £351 Smillicn
(£395 9 million) Net interest paid decreased to £156 4 million (£180 1
milion) due to the ttming of interest payments on ftnance leases Tax
payments also fell compared with the prior year to £36 0 mullion (£68 3
million) due to refunds received relating to tax paid in prior years
Dwidends paid, including the speciat dividend of £575 million,
amounted to £739 5 million (£234 3 milion) After the receipt of £100
milhon from share options exercised (£11 6 million) and other cash
inflows of £1 2 million (outflow of £0 2 million) net debt increased by
£560 2 milhon (£107 O million) from cash flows

Net debt at 31 March 2006 was £3,127 6 milion (£2,961 1 million)
Year end balance sheet gearing 1s 73 3% (60 9%) Net debt, expressed
as a percentage of 31 March 2007 Regulatory Capital Value (“RCV") was
56 4% (56 8%), based on RCV at 31 March 2007 of £5,546 million
{£5,209 million) The group's net interest charge, excluding I1AS 39 farr
value adjustments, was covered 4 2 times (3 8 times) by profit befare
interest, tax, depreciation and excepticnal iterns, and 26 times (2 3
times) by profit before interest tax and exceptionals

Pensions

The group has four defined benefit pension schemes, of which the Severn
Trent Pension Scheme (STPS) 15 by far the largest Formal actuanal
valuations were undertaken for the STPS and another scheme, the
Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme (SSPS), as at 31 March 2004
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On the demerger of Biffa Plc the company entered into an agreement
with that company and the trustees of the STPS, the SSPS and the UK
Waste Pension Scheme (UKWPS) whereby the assets and habilities
relating to Biffa Plc employees in the STPS and the SSPS would be
transferred to the UKWPS with effect from 31 March 2007 The net
deficit relating to Biffa employees at the demerger date was £39 mtlhon
This has been included in the net assets that formed the dividend in
specie on demerger The reduction in the deficit between the demerger
date and 31 March 2007 has been treated as an exceptional less on
settlement of £7 8 million

On an IAS19 basis, the estimated net position (before deferred tax) of all
of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes was a deficit of £135 1
million as at 31 March 2007 This compares with a deficit of £221 9
million as at 31 March 2006 The movement n the deficit arose as a
result of

Addittonal contnbutions made during the year of £83 million,

> Net deficit of £31 2 mitlion transferred to Biffa Pl¢ as a result of the
demerger,

Strengthening the actuanal assumption relating to longevity, which
increased the deficit by £60 million, offset by an increase in the
discount rate which reduced the actuarial value of labilities by £61 7
milhon,

> Service cost in excess of normal contnibutions of £27 2 million
resuiting from part of the 2006/07 normal coninbutions having
been prepaid in 2005706, and

> Other actuaral losses of £1 9 milhion

Total cash contributrons to the schemnes in the year were £97 4 million
(£105 2 millien)

The key actuaral assumptions utilised in the valuation were

2007 2006

Discount rate 549, 49%
Inflatian 30% 27%
Expected return on equities 8 259, 80%
Life expectancy at age 65

For current pensioners

Men {years) 192 i83

women {years) 221 210
For future pensioners currenily aged 45

Men (years) 199 189

Wamen {years) 230 218




On an 1AS19 basis, the funding level has improved from around 86%
at 31 March 2006 to around 919% at 31 March 2007

As at 31 March 2007 the group's defined benefit pension schemes had
total assets of approximately £1,365 mulhon, (£1,403 mithon)

Further details of the group's pension position are centained in note 28
to the accounts

Dividends

An interim dividend of 22 77p (19 16p) was paid on 24 January 2007
The board 1s recommend:ng the payment of a final dividend of 38 68p
(31 97p) to make a total dividend, excluding the special dividend, of
6145p (51 13p) Following the demerger of Biffa Plc and the share
consalidation that followed, the dividend for the year ended 31 March
2006 was rebased to 57p per share The total dividend proposed for the
year ended 31 March 2007 represents growth of 7 8% on the rebased
dividend, in line with the board’s previously announced policy

Treasury management

The group’s treasury affairs are managed centrally and 1n accordance
with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury
operation’s primary role 15 to manage liquidity, funding, investment and
the group’s financial risk, including risk from volatiity in interest and (1o
a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty credit nisk Its activities
are subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of
the borrowings and investments under 1its management The board
deterrmuines matters of treasury policy and its approval 1s required for
certain treasury transactions

It 15 the group’s strategy to access a broad range of sources of finance
to ebtain both the quantum reguired and the lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued availabihty

The group uses financiai dervatives solely for the purposes of managing
risk associated with financing its normal business activiies The group
does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for financial
trading purposes The group uses a limited number of currency swaps
and interest rate swaps to redenominate external borrowings into the
currencies and interest rate coupon required for group purpeses

The group's policy for the management of interest rate risk requires
that no less than 50% of the group's borrowings should be at fixed
interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or
forward rate agreements At 31 March 2007, interest rates for some
68% of the group’s net debt of £3,127 6 mullion were so fixed, at a
weghted average interest rate of 5 7% for a weighted average penod of
13 5 years Ttus policy has been implemented by entering into a
portfolio of long dated interest rate swaps that hedge the group’s
economic exposure to changes in interest rates However, these swaps
are not designated to particular habiities and hence do not meet the
critena for hedge accounting under IAS 39 Consequently the swaps are
revalued at each balance sheet date and the change in {air value 1s
taken to the income statement as a finance cost In the year ended 31
March 2007 £52 7 m was credited (£31 5m charged) to net finance
costs in respect of such fair value movements

The group s business does not involve significant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions Craoss currency swaps are employed to exchange
foreign currency borrowings for sterlng The group also has
investments In various assets denominated in foreign currencies,
principally the US dollar and the euro The group’s current policy 15 to
hedge an element of the currency translation risk associated with
certain foreign currency denominated assets

The long term credit ratings of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water
Limited are
Severn Trent

Long term ratings Severn Trent

Water Limited Pic
Moody's A2 A3
Standard & Poct's A A-

Further details of the group's borrowings, Investments and financial
instruments are contained 1in note 20 to the accounts

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial statements

The Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards that have been ratiied by
the European Umon There have been no changes (n accounting policies
during the year ended 31 March 2007

Following the demerger of Biffa Plc and the disposal of US Laboratones
the comparative figures have been restated to reclassify these
businesses as discontinued operations Biffa Belgium, which was also
sold during the year, was already classified as a discoentinued operation
in the previous year since it was held for sale at the previous year end
Severn Trent Property and the former associated company Aquafin NV
do not meet the defimtion of discontinued operations 1n IFRS 5 and
hence are included in continuing operations although they toc were
sald during the year

Exchange rates

Approximately 2% of the group's profit before interest, tax and
exceptional tems and 2% of its operating assets are denorminated 1n US
doliars The trading results of overseas subsidianes are translated to
sterling at the average rate of exchange ruling duning the year and their
net assets are translated at the closing rate on the balance sheet date

Supplementary information
For supplermnentary information iIncluding the group's preliminary results
presentation, see the Severn Trent website (www severntrent com)

Michael McKeon
Group Finance Director
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Board of directors

1 Sir John Egan MSc (Econ) 8Sc (67)*

Sir John Egan jomned the board in Cctober 2004 and became Chairman
on 1 January 2005 He Is a director of Warwick Castle Park Trust Ltd
and was, until recently, Chairman of Inchcape plc and Harrison
Lovegrove & Co Ltd Sir John worked in the motor industry untit 1990
at General Motors, Massey Ferguson and Brniuish Leyland, nsing to
become Chairman and Chief Executive of Jaguar ple He was Chief
Executive of BAA ple from 1990 to 1999 and Chairman of MEPC from
1998 to 2000 He was also President of the Canfederation of British
Industry from 2002 to 2004 Sir John was knighted in the Queen's
Birthday Honours List in 1986 He 1s a deputy lieutenant of the
County of Warwickshire and from September 2007, Chancellor of
Coventry University

2 Colin Matthews MA CEng MBA (51)

Mr Matthews Joined the board in October 2003, becorming Group Chief
Executive on 1 February 2005 He is a non-executive director of Mondt
Ltd and Maond Plc, currently part of Anglo Amernican Ple He s a
Chartered Engineer and worked for the (American) General Electric
Company and then for British Airways, first as Director of Engineening,
then as Director of Technical Operations, responsible for all aircraft
mantenance, IT and procurement Mr Matthews was Group Managing
Curector of Transco from 2001 to 2002 and then CEO of Hays Plc from
2002 to 2004
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3 Michael McKeon MA CA (50)

Mr McKeon oined the board on 13 December 2005 as Group Finance
Director Prior to that, he was Group Finance Director of the builldings
materials group Novar Plc Mr McKeon worked for Rolls Royce Ple from
1997 to 2000 in various senior roles including Finance Director of the
Aerospace Group He has extensive international business expenence,
having worked overseas for CarnaudMetalbox, EIf Atochem and Price
Waterhouse Mr McKeon 1s a Chartered Accountant and a Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland

4 Tony Wray BSc(Hons) (45)

Mr Wray joined the board in March 2005 He 1s Managing Cirector of
Severn Trent Water Ltd Prior to that, he was Director of Networks at
Eircom, the Republic of Ireland’s tetephone operator He joined British
Gas in 1983 and held various managenal positions before becormng
Head of Asset Management In 2000 he moved to Transco, first as
Director of Asset Management, then as Nattonal Operations Director,
before being appointed to implement the rmerger integration of Lattice
(fransco) and National Grid Group into National Grid Transco

5 John Smtith FCCA Hon FRIBA (49)*

Mr Smith joined the board 1n November 2003 He 1s currently Chvef
Executive of BBC Worldwide and has held various other senior positions
wittun the BBC since joiming in 1989 including Finance Director from
1996 to 2006, Director of Finance, Property and Business Affairs from
2000 to 2004, and Chuef Operating Ofhicer until 2005 Mr Smith has
held a non-executive directorship with Vickers Ple, was a member

of the adwvisory board of Zurnich Financial Services UK and was a director
of the Royal Tetevision Society He also served for three years on the
Accounting Standards Board until Novernber 2004



6§ Martin Houston BSc MSc DIC (49)*

Mr Houston joined the board 1n September 2003 He 15 Executive
Vice President and Managing Director of BG Group's North American,
Caribbean and Global Liquefied Natural Gas business, and a member
of their Group Executive Committee He joined BG Group in 1983 and
has held a number of technical and commercial roles with a
predarminantly international focus He 1s a fellow of the Geological
Society of London

7 Richard Davey (58)*

Mr Davey joined the board on 1 January 2006 He s non-executive
Chairman of London Capital Heldings Plc and a non-executive director
of Yorkshire Building Society and Amhn Plc He also served as a non-
executive director of Freeserve Plc from 1999 to 2001 and of Scottish
Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society from 1996 to 2000 The
majority of Mr Davey's executive career was spent In nvestment
banking at N M Rothschilg & Sons where he served in various roles
including Head of Investment Banking Prior to that, he worked at
various organisations including Merrili Lynch International Limited and
Exco International Plc

8 Bernard Bulkin, BS PhD FRSC FRSA FIE (65)*

Dr Bulkin joined the board on 1 January 2006 He 1s Chairman of AEA
Technology Pl¢, Chairman of Swedish company Chemrec AB and a non-
executive director of Accelergy Corporation in California He 1s also a
Venture Partner at Vantage Point, an international venture capital firm
and a Commussioner on the UK Sustainable Development Commuission
In 2003 he retired as Chief Scientist at BP Plc, where he had worked for
eighteen years

*Non-executive director

Membership of board and

management committees I1$ as

detalled below

Board commuttees
Audit Commuttee

J B Srmuth (Chairman)
B Bulkin

R H Davey

F B Smith (Secretary)

Remuneration Committee
R H Davey (Chairman)

B Bulkin

Sir John Egan

M J Houston

F B Smith (Secretary)

Nominations Committee
Sir John Egan (Chairman)
B Bulkin {c)

R H Davey (c)

M J Houston

C S Matthews

J B Smith ()

F B Smith (Secretary)

(c) = Core Members

Corporate Responsibility
Committee

B Bulksn (Chairman)

Sir John Egan

C 5 Maithews

F B Smith (Secretary)

Management committee
Executive Committee

C $ Matthews (Chairman)
A Ballance

CJFord

P J Gavan

L F Graziano

M J Kane

R S Martin

M J E McKeon

J € O'Suthvan

A J Richmond

5 C Smedley

A P Smith

F B Smith

J van den Arend Schmidt
A P Wray

Semior independent
non-executive director
R H Davey

Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary
F B Smith
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial
staternents of the group for the year ended 31 March 2007

Principal activity
The principal activity of the group 1s the supply of water and the
treatment and dispesal of sewage

Details of the principal joint venture, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2007 appear in notes 18, 19
and 41 to the financial statements on pages 67, 68 and 88

Business review

The Charman’s statement, the Group Chief Executive’s review and the
report and performance reviews for the group's main businesses on
pages 4 to 23 provide detailed information relating to the group and its
strategy, the operatton of its businesses, and the results and financial
position for the year ended 31 March 2007

Detalls of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group are set
out In the corporate governance report on page 33

All of the above are incorporated by reference \n (and shall be deerned
to form part of} this report

Research and development

Expenditure on research and developrnent including amounts
capitalised as tangible fixed assets related to research and development,
amounted to £4 2 million (2006 £5 4 miihon)

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive 1n retation to
the use of financial instruments by the company are set out In note 20
to the accounts on page 69

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are set cut in note 39 to the group
financial statements

Dividends

An interim dwvidend of 22 77 pence per ordinary share was paid on 24
January 2007 The directors recommend a final dividend of 38 68
pence per ordmary share to be paid on 3 August 2007 to shareholders
on the register on 29 June 2007 This would bring the total dividend for
2006/07, excluding the special dividend paid on 20 October 2006, to
61 45 pence per ordinary share {2006 51 13p} The payment of the
final dividend 1s subject to sharehalder approval at the Annual

General Meeting

Directors and their interests

Details of changes to the board during the year and of the directors
offering themselves for reappointment at the Annual General Meeting
are set out on pages 29 and 31 respectively

Details of directors’ service contracts are set out in the directors’
remuneration report on page 40

The interests of the directors n the shares of the company are shown
on pages 42 and 43

Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board are set out
on pages 24 and 25
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements The
directors have chosen to prepare the financial staterments for the group
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and for the company in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP)

In the case of IFRS financial statements, International Accounting
Standard 1 requires that the financial statements present fairly for each
financial year the company's financial position, financial performance
and cash flows Directors are also required to properly select and apply
accounting policies, present information, including accounting policies,
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable infoermation, provide additional disciosures when
compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS 15 insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, ather
events and conditians on the entity's perfoermance, and prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis unless, having assessed
the atility of the company to continue as a going concern, management
either intends to iguidate the entity or to cease trading, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

In the case of UK GAAP financial statements, the directors are required
to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or
loss of the company for that period In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to select suitable accounting
policies and then apply them consistently, make judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, state whether applicable
accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless It (s
inappropriate to presume that the group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for ensunng that the company keeps
proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy, at
any tume, the financial positton of the company The directors are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group,
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties, the preparation of the report of the directors and
the directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements
of the Companies Act 1985, and ensurning the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation 1n other jurisdictions

Directors indemnities

The company's Articles of Association provide that directors of the
company shall be indemnified by the company against any costs
incurred by them in carrying out their duties including defending any
proceedings brought against thern ansing out of their positions as
directars in which they are acquitted or judgement 1s given 1n their
favour or relief from any liability 1s granted to them by the count




Supplier payment policy

Individual operating companies within the group are responsible for
establishing appropriate policies with regard to the payment of their
supplers The companies agree terms and canditions under which
business transactiens with suppliers are conducted It 1s group policy
that provided a suppher 15 complying with the relevant terms anc
conditions, including the prampt and complete subrrussion of all
specified documentation, payment will be made in accordance with
agreed terms It is also group policy to ensure that suppliers know
the terrms on which payment will take place when bustness I1s agreed
Details of suppher payment policies can be obtained from the
individual companies at the addresses shown in note 41 to the
financial staterments on page 88 Trade creditors for the company

at the year end are estimated as representing 11 days' purchases
(2006 ni days’ purchases)}

Contributions for political and charntable purposes

Donations to chantable organisations during the year amounted to
£277.476 (2006 £487.422) The company focuses on the development
of long term partnerships with chanties close to its major sites which
reflect the three core aims of pramoting the natural environment,
education and building communities The company 15 also commutted to
supporting WaterAud, the UK's only major chanty dedicated to providing
safe domestic water and sanitation to the world's poorest people

The company's policy I1s not to make any donations to political parties
However, the Political Parties Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (the
relevant provisions of which are now contained in Part XA of the
Companes Act 1985) requires certain types of expenditure on political
events to be preapproved by shareholders At the 2006 Annual General
Meeting, sharehalders gave the company authorities to cover such
expenditure until the 2009 Annual General Meeting Pursuant to those
authorities, duning the year ended 31 March 2007 the group incurred
costs of £nl (2006 £6,000)

Substantial shareholdings
As at 5 June 2007 the company had been notrfied under the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the following major shareholdings

Number of ordinary

shares of 97'%w each %
Barclays plc 8412304 36l
Legal & General 8,235,812 353

fnvestrment Management Limited

Share capital

The company was given authonty at its Annual General Meeting 1n 2006
to make market purchases of ordinary shares up to a maxumum number
of 34,909,675 shares Simuilar authority will again be sought from
shareholders at this year's Annual General Meeting No market
purchases were made by the company during the year ended 31

March 2007

Oetails of movements in share capital are shown in note 30 to the
financial statements on page 80

AIURLIBA0Y

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shown in note 9
to the financial statements on page 60

Severn Trent operates a non discriminatory employment policy and full
and fair cansideration 1s given to applications for employment by
disabled persons where they have the appropriate skills and abilities

tn the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort 1s made
to ensure that thetr employment with the group continues and that
appropriate training adjustments are made It 1s the policy of the group
that the traiming, career development and promotton opportunities

of disabled persons should as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees

The group actively encourages employee involvement and consultation
and places emphasis on keeping its employees informed of its activity
and financial performance by way of briefings and publication to staff
of all relevant information and corporate announcernents The Severn
Trent Sharesave Scheme, an all employee SAYE plan, 1s offered by the
group on an annual basis and helps to develop empioyees’ interest 1n
the company's perfermance

further details of arrangements relating o employee involverment are
described in the corperate responsibility report on pages 18 to 19

Auditors
In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the company at
the date when this report was approved

> so far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit
infarmation of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

> each of the directors has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware
of that information

Relevant audit information means information needed by the
cormpany's auditors In connection with preparing their report

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted 1n accerdance with
the provisions of section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1385

Deloitte & Touche LLP has indicated its willingness to continue as
auditors, accordingly a resclution to reappotnt them will be proposed
at this year's Annual General Meeting

The reappontrment of Deloitte & Touche LLP has been approved by
the Audit Comrmnittee, whe will alse be responsible for determining
thedr audit tee on behalf of the directors

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are prepared and
sent to the Water Services Regulatory Authornity A copy of these
accounts will be availlable from the website of Severn Trent Water
Lirmited (www stwater co uk) or on wnitten request to the Company
Secretary (at the address given on the back caver) There 15 no charge
for this publication
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Directors’ report continued

Gorng concern

The board has a reasonable expectation that the group and the
company have adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence
for the {oreseeable future Accordingly the financial statements set

out on pages 45 to 88 and 90 to 98 have been prepared on the going
concern basis

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the company will be hetd at the National
Motorcycle Museum, Coventry Road, Bickenhill, Solhull, West Midlands
B92 OEJ at 11 O0am on Tuesday 24 July 2007 The notice convening
the meeting, together with detarls of the business to be considered and
explanatory notes for each resolution, 1s distributed separately to
shareholders It is also available on the company’s website

www severntrent com

By order of the board

Rl

Fiona Smith
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
5 June 2007
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Corporate governance report

Corporate governance

During the year, and as part of our strategy of focusing on water, all the
current executive and non-executive directors of Severn Trent Plc were
appointed to similar positions o Severn Trent Water Limited Since
March 2007 the boards of directors of Severn Trent Plc and Severn
Trent Water Limited have been identical

Severn Trent attaches great signiticance to the maintenance of good
cerporate governance procedures and adherence to best practice
recognising that they play their part in creating a framework which can
provide increased benefits for shareholders

Compliance statement

This report descnbes how Severn Trent has applied the principles of
good corporate governance as set out in Section 1 of the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council in July 2003 (the "Combined Code”) Apart from the matter
detalled below the company has compled throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2007 with all of the Comixned Code provisions Durning
the year, the company decided to take advantage of the relaxations that
will be permitted by the updated version of the Combined Code 1ssued
by the Financial Reporting Council in June 2006 for reporting years
starting on or after 1 November 2006 Accordingly, Sir John £gan was
appointed to the Remuneration Committee on 3 November 2006

The board

Board structure

The board consists of a non-executive Chairman, three executive
directors and four non-executive directors In accordance with the
Combined Code, separate indwiduals, Sir John Egan and Colin
Matthews, are appointed to the positions of Chairman and Group Chief
Executive respectively Richard Davey (5 the senior independent non-
executive director

The board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and
considers them all t¢ be independent in character and judgement and
within the definition of this term in the Combined Code The test of
independence 15 not appropnate in relation to the Chairman

The Chairman and the non-executive directors contribute external
expertise and experience In areas of importance to the group such as
corporate finance, general finance, corporate strategy, enwironmental
matters, general management and corporate governance They also
provide independent challenge and rnigour to the board's deliberations

Collectively, the board i1s satished i{ has all of the necessary skills,
expenence and qualities to lead the company

Directors and their interests

The names and biographies of the drectors currently serving on the
baoard are set out on page 24 The following also served as directors
dunng the year

> Martin Flower retired from the board as a nen-executive director
on 10 June 2006,

> Marnisa Cassoni retired from the board as a non-executive director
on 6 October 2006,

> Martin Bettington retired from the board as an executive director
on & October 2006, and

> Rachel Brydon Jannetta retired trom the board as an executive
director on 29 December 2006
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The traiming needs of all directors are kept under review and
appropriate traiming identified as part of a continuing process

Details of the directors' service agreements, emoluments, the interests
of directors and their immediate farmilies in the shares of the company
and n awards or options over such shares granted under the
company s Long Term Incentive Plans and Sharesave Schemne are
shown In the directors' remuneration report on pages 34 to 43

Operation of the board

The board has ultimate responsibility for ensuring that the company 1s
properly managed and achieves the strategic objectives 1t sets It has an
agreed schedule of matters reserved to it, which includes setting long
term strategic and business objectives, overseeing the company's
internal control systems and ensunng that appropriate resources are

In place to enable the company to meet its objectives

The board meets at 1east ten times 1n each calendar year and convenes
additional meetings as and when required Details of the number of
board and committee meetings and the attendance of the directors at
those meetings are shown on page 31

The Chairman has prume respensibility for the effective workings of
the board and agrees the agenda in consultation with the Group Chief
Executive and Company Secretary Papers, including minutes ot board
committees held since the previcus board meeting and reports from
each of the executive directors responsible for the group's operating
businesses or key central functions, are circulated 1n advance of each
meeting In addition to the board meetings, the Chairman meets with
the non-executive directors without the executive directors present
The non-executive directors, led by the senior independent non-
executive director, also have an annual meeting where there 1s an
oppartunity for them to meet withaut the Chairman to appraise the
Chairman’s performance

The Group Chief Executive 1s responsible for the executive management
of all of the group's businesses and for implementing board strategy
and peolicy within approved budgets and timescales The Group Chief
Executive 1s supported by the Executive Comrmittee Membership of the
Executive Committee 1s shown on page 25 and comprises the executive
directors and senior managers responsible for key central and
operational functions

Procedures are in place which allow directors to take independent
professional adwice in the course of their duties and all directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary Where a
director has a concern over any unresolved business he 1s entitled to
require the Company Secretary to minute that concern Should he later
resign over this 1ssue, the Chairman will bring it to the attention of

the board

Severn Trent purchases directors and officers’ hability and indemmty
insurance to cover its directors and officers agamst the costs of
defending themselves tn civil proceedings taken against them in that
capacity and in respect of damages resulting from the unsuccessful
defence of any proceedings
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Corporate governance report continued

Board committees

The board has established an effective commuttee structure to assist in
the discharge of its responsibilities The terms of reference of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees {the “Principal
Commuttees™} comply with the provisions of the Combined Code and
are avatlable for inspection on the company's website

(www severntrent com) or may be obtained on written request from the
Company Secretary at the address given on the back cover

Each of the Principal Committees has reviewed its effectiveness and
terms of reference during the year and any necessary actions have
been dentified and reported to the board

The membership of all board committees 1s set out on page 25

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Committee 1s chared by John Smith ts membership
comprises Bernard Bullun and Richard Davey Only independent non-
executive directors may serve on the committee John Smith has been
identified by the board as having recent and retevant financia!
experience

The committee meets with the group's externa!l auditors (the “Auditors™)
at least four times a year By invitation of the committee other
individuals such as the Chairman, Group Chief Executive, Group Finance
Director and Group Director of Internal Audit will normally be in
attendance for all or part of those meetings The commuttee and the
Auditors also hold separate meetings without the attendance of
executive management

in their assessment of the independence of the Auditors, the committee
recewves annually in writing details of relationships between the Auditars
and the group, which may bear on the Auditors” independence and
receives confirmation that they are independent of the group as
required by International Auditing Standard 260

The committee annually approves the level of the Auditors’ fees in
respect of the audit of the financial statements of the group and its
subsidianes at the same time as considenng the adegquacy of the
Auditers' proposed audit plan

A formal policy, which includes fee imits, has been adopted for nan
audit services Any material project work where fees payable to the
Auditors are hkely to exceed £100,000 must be approved by the Audit
Committee Where fees are expected to exceed £500,000 the project
work would normally be the subject of a competitive selection process
The level of non audit services provided by the Auditors and

the associated fees are considered annually by the commuittee, in the
context of the Auditors’ independence, as part of the committee's
review of the adequacy and objectwity of the audit process An analysis
of fees payable to the Auditors in respect of audit and non audit
services 15 provided on page 59
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1t 1s the group's policy to seek rotation of the Auditors’ principal
engagement partner as a matter of course every five years and of other
key members of the audit team, where deermed appropriate by the
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has, throughout the year, monitored the integrity
of the financial statements together with the company's formai
announcements relating to its financial performance, paying particular
attention to significant reporting judgements contained therein

The Audit Committee has reviewed nsk management and the
effectiveness of the system of internal control duning the year ended
31 March 2007 and has reported to the board on the outcome of
this review

The effectiveness of the group’s internal audit function has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews annually the group's formal whistle
blowing policy that deals with allegations from employees relating to
breaches of the group’'s Code of Business Principles and Conduct

Remuneration Committee

The Rermuneration Committee 15 chaired by Richard Davey The other
members of the Commutiee are Bernard Bulkin, Sir John £gan and
Martin Houston Only sndependent, nan-executive directors, and the
Chairrman, who was considered independent on appointment, may serve
on the committee Sir John Egan was appointed to the committee on

3 Novemnber 2006 The Group Chief Executive also attends
Rermunerabion Committee meetings at the inwitation of the
Remuneration Committee Chairman The committee will normally meet
at least four tumes a year

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the board, the
Severn Trent policy on the remuneration of executive directors and the
Chairman of the board, and 1s consulted by the Group Chief Executive
regarding remuneration for a number of the group’s senior executives

Further information on the activities of the Remuneration Committee
is given in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 34 to 43

The directors’ remuneration report alse describes how the principles of
the Combined Code are applied in respect of remuneration matters and
includes a statement on the company’s policy on directors” and semor
executives’ remuneration, benehits, share scheme entitlements and
pension arrangements

A resolution to approve the directors’ rermiuneration report wili be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting




Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee 1s chaired by Sir John Egan and s
members are the Group Chief Executive and all non-executive directors
The commitiee's core members are Bernard Bulkin, Richard Davey and
John Smuth All other non-executive directors will attend meetings
subject to thewr availability Other executive directors, senior

management and external advisors may be invited to attend meetings as

considered appropriate The Nominations Committee has responsibility
for considerning the size, structure and composition of the board of the
company, relirements and appointments of additional and replacement
directors, succession planning and making recornmendations so as to
maintain an appropriate balance of skills and experience on the board
The committee meets at least three bmes a year

No board appointments were made during the year

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Responsibiity Committee ss charred by Bernard Buikin
and its members are Sir John Egan and Colin Matthews Other
executive directors and senior management involved with managing
businesses or formulating policies within the group are regularly invited
to attend comrmuttee meetings The cormmittee s main responsibility 1s
to develop, review and promote policies to further the group's
environmental values in its business, workplace and community
engagement activities The committee’s terms of reference may be
viewed on the company's website (www severntrent com) Details of
the group’s corporate responsibility activities may be found on pages
1810 19

Meetings
Details of the board and Principal Committees’ meetings attended by
each director during the year are as follows

Plc board Aucit Remuneralion  Norunations
Number of Meetings 13 6 7 5
Sir John Egan® 13 - 2 5
M J Bettington’ 8 - - -
R S Bryden Jannetta? 9 - - -
B Bulkin® 11 5 3 5
M L Cassoni® b 3 3 1
R H Davey 11 6 6 5
M C Flower* 2 - 2 2
M J Housion 12 - 7 5
C 5 Matthews 13 - - -
M J E McKeon 13 - - -
J B Smith 13 6 - 5
A P Wray 13 - - -

1 - Resigned 6/10/06

2 - Resigned 29/12/06

3 - Resigned 6/10/06

4 - Resigned 10/6/06

5 - Appointed Remuneration Committee 3/11/06
& - Appainted Remuneration Cornmittee 3/11/06

Directors’ interests 1n contracts

No director had a matenal interest at any time during the year in any
contract of significance, other than a service contract as shown in the
directors’ remuneration report on page 40, with the company or any
of its subsidiary undertakings

Remuneration

The directors’ remuneration report, which includes a statement on the
company's pchcy on directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration, (s
set out on pages 34 to 43

Reappointment

The company’s Articles of Association require all directors to submit
themselves for reappointment at least every three years This provision
also ensures that, as a mimimum, one third of the board ot directors,
together with any director appointed since the last Annual General
Meeting, retires each year and, If eligible and so desires, stands for
reappointment at the Annual General Meeting directors retire on the
basis of their length of service since their last election

Sir John Egan and Tony Wray are the directors retinng by rotation and
offer themselves for reappointment

The Normination Committee has formally reviewed the periormance,
contribution and commitment of each of the retiring directors and has
recommended their reappointment to the board

Performance and effectiveness reviews

During the year the board, with the help of an outside facilitator, carried
out a fermal evaluation of its performance and that of its commuttees as
well as the indvidual performance of directers Each director and the
Company Secretary answered a questionnaire on hus/her perception of
the composition, operation and effectiveness of the board and its
comimittees and on the performance of the Chairmen of the board and
principal committees as well as individual directors In addition they
were interviewed by the facilitator to explore certain issues in greater
depth and to identify areas requiring improvement Finally the process
reviewed progress against actions identified in last year's review The
conclusion of the evaluation was discussed in detall by the board
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Corporate governance report continued

Shareholders

Relations with shareholders

The board recognises the importance of representing and promoting
the interests of its shareholders and that 1t 1s accountable to
shareholders for the performance and activities of the company

The annual report and accounts 1s the principal means of
communicating with shareholders The company's website

{(www severntrent com) contains cemplete versions of such reports
along with other :nformation relevant to shareholders

In respect of the company’s Annual General Meeting the board
encourages shareholders to attend and exercise their nght to vote The
netice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at least
20 working days before the meeting Separate resoluttons are proposed
on gach substantially separate 1ssue Details of the proxy votes for and
against each resolution and the number of abstentions are indicated
after the result of the vote on a show of hands

Shareholders are given the opportunity to meet with the board before
and after the Annual General Meeting Presentations are made on the
group's activities and performance prior to the formal business of the
meeting Shareholders have the opportunity to ask questions of the
board and present their views The chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration
and Neminations Committees, together with all other directers will
normally attend the Annual General Meeting

The company announces its results on a half yearly basis Presentations
are made to analysts and shareholders following the release of the
interim and year end results The Group Chief Executive and Group
Finance Director meet shareholders dunng the year The Chairman and,
if appropriate, the senior iIndepandent non-executive director are
available to meet shareholders if required The hoard recewves written
feedback following meetings with institutional shareholders

Internal control

Internal contrel and nsk management

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s system of internat
control and for reviewing i1ts effectiveness

The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control,
including financial, operational, compliance and risk management, at
least annually 1n accordance with the requirements of the Combined
Code and the gurdance set out within it The system of internal ¢control
Is reviewed for effectiveness and adequacy

Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
agamnst matenal misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of faillure to achieve business ohyectives

The board reviews risk management and the effectiveness of the system
of internal control through the Audit Committee The board also keep
under review ways In which to enhance the control and audit
arrangements 1n the group The Audit Committee receives reporis every
six months from the Group Chief Executive on the significant risks faced
by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each
of those risks and an action plan to impreve controls where this has
been assessed as necessary Any significant control weaknesses that
have been identified as requinng remedy are also reported to the Audit
Committee The Auditers alsc report on significant control 1ssues to thes
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committee The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance
and adwvice on rnisk management and control

The board confirms that precedures providing an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the principal nsks faced by the
group, have been in place for the year to 31 March 2007 and up to the
date of the approval of the Annual Report

Key elements of the group's processes and procedures are an
arganisation structure with clear lines of accountability, regular,
structured reviews of business risk by senior management, a scheme of
delegated authonty, pre-approval of plans, budgets and significant
investments, monthly reperting and monitonng of financial results,
regulatory compliance and other key business measures, and
independent assurance provided by both nternal and external auditers

Work continues to review and improve the systermn of internal controls
across the group Any controls weaknesses identified have action plans
to remedy them and those plans are monitored by the Audit Committee
and management team




Principal rsks

Through its business operations the group I1s exposed to a number of
commercial risks and uncertainties which could have a materzl impact
on our businesses, financial condition, operatiens and reputation, as
well as the value and hguidity of our securities Not all of these factors
are within our control and, in addition, other factors besides those listed
below may have an adverse effect on the group

Changes in law or regulation in the countries and types of business
in which we operate could have an adverse effect on our business
and operations

Regulatory decisions in relation to cur businesses, e g on whether
hcences or approvals to operate are renewed, whether market
developments have been satisfactonly implemented, on the level of
permitted revenues for our businesses, whether there has been any
breach of the terms of a licence or an approval, could have an adverse
impact on the results of cur operations, cash flows, financial condition
of our businesses and the ability to develop those businesses in

the future

The results of cur aperations depend on a number of factors relating
to business performance, including the ability to outperform
regulatory targets and deliver anticipated cost and efficiency savings
Earnings from our regulated water business will be affected by our
ability to meet or better our regulatory targets set by Ofwat, the
Environment Agency, Drinking Water Inspectorate and other regulators
7o meet these targets, we must continue to improve management
processes and aperational perfermance In addition, earnings from a
regulated business also depend on meeting service quality standards
set by regulators To meet these standards we must improve service
reliability and customer service If we do not meet these targets and
standards, both our results and our reputation may be adversely
affected and fines could be imposed

Various government environmental protection and health and safety
laws and regulations govern our businesses

These laws and regulahons establish, amongst other things, standards
for drninking water and discharges into the environment which affect our
operations In addition, our businesses are required to obtain various
environmental permussions from regulatory agencies for their operation
Envircnmental laws and regulations are complex and change frequently
These laws and their enforcement have tended {o become more
stringent over time, both in relation to their requirements and tn the
levels of proof required to demonstrate compliance While we believe we
have taken account of the fuiure capital and operating expenditure
necessary to achieve and maintain ¢comphance with ¢urrent and
toreseeable changes in laws and regulations, it 1s passible that new or
stricter standards could be imposed or current interpretation of existing
legisiation amended, which will increase the group's operating cosis

or capital expenditure by requiring changes and modifications to

its operations 1n order to comply with any new environmental laws

and regulations
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The faillure of our assets or our inability to carry out cnitical

operations could have a significant impact on our financial position
and our reputation

We may suffer a major faillure in our assets which could anse from a
fallure to deliver the capital investment programme for our businesses
or to maintain the health of our systems Any failure could cause us to
be in breach of a licence or approval and even incidents that do not
amount to a breach could result in adverse regulatory action and
financial consequences, as well as harming our reputation Severn Trent
Water’s regulated business controls and operates water and sewerage
networks and undertakes maintenance of the associated assets with the
objective of providing a continuous service The failure of a key asset
could cause a significant interruption to the supply of services, which
may have an adverse effect on the group’s operating results or financial
position In addition water supplies may, inter aha, be subject to
contarmination from the developrnent of naturally eccurring compounds
and poflution from man made sources and these may have an adverse
effect on our operating resulis or financial position The group could
also be held hiable for human exposure to hazardous substances or
other envirenmental damage

In addition, we are subject to other risks which are largely outside our
control, such as the energy costs, impact of climate change, weather or
unlawful acts or third parties, including terrorist attacks, sabotage or other
internatienal acts which may also physically damage our business or
otherwise significantly affect corporate activities and, as a consequence,
afiect the results of our operations and our financial position

External factors could affect the group's pension schemes and
adversely impact on our financial position

Pension assets and habibties (pre {ax) of £1,364 6 million and £1,4997
million are held In the group's balance sheet as at 31 March 2007
Movements n equity markets, interest rates and hife expectancy could
materially affect the level of surpluses and deficits in the schemes and
could prompt the need for the group to make additional pension
contributions in the future The key assumptions used to value our
pension habilities are set out in note 28 on page 77

The group's financial position and business results could be adversely
affected if its existing funding arrangements are matenally altered
The main nisks faced by the group 1n its treasury operations relate to
matertal external changes to current arrangements In the debt markets,
factors such as borrowing restrictions or changes to credit ratings could
mean we were unable to finance ourselves or be forced to pay too high
a price for that finance In terms of our borrowings a proportion is
subject to variable interest rates and any increase 1n those rates could
increase our borrowing costs In addition we undertake financial
transactions with 2 number of institutions and we could suffer a
financial loss it any of those counterparts were to fail
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report provides the information required by the Directors'’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 [t also describes how the
principles of the Financial Reporting Council’'s Combined Code on
Corporate Governance (the ‘Combined Code’) are applied by the
company In relation to directors’ remuneration and sets out the
remuneration policy for the year ended 31 March 2007 and subject to
ongaing review, the current and forthcoming financial years

Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the board, the
company'’s policy on the remuneration of executive directors and the
Charrman of the board The committee determines the total
remuneration packages and contractual terms and conditions for these
individuals The committee 1s also consulted on the remuneration pohicy
for the next band of senior executives The policy framework for
remunerating all seruor executives 15 consistent with the approach taken
for executive directors

The committee 1s comprised exclusively of independent non-executive
directors of the company, with the exception of Sir John Egan, the
company Chairman who was independent on his appointment te the
board The members of the committee during the year were

(Chairman from 11/06/06)
(Chairman untl 10/06/06)
(from 03/11/06)
(untit 06/10/06)
(from 03/11/06)

> Richard Davey
Martin Flower
Bernard Bulkin
Marnsa Cassoni
Sir John Egan
Martin Houston

VvV V VY

With the exception of Sir John Egan, the committee members have no
personal finangial interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters te
be decided As stated above, as company Chairman, Sir John Egan's
fees are set by the commuttee and Sir John Egan 1s not party to this
discussion The constitution and operation of the committee comply
with the Combined Code except that Sir John Egan’s appointment to
the committee was made in advance of the appropniate reporting penod
{as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report an page 29) In
setting performance related remuneration, the committee has regard

to the provisions set out in Schedule A to the Combined Code

Advisers

To ensure that the company's remuneration practices are market
competitive, the committee has access to detailed external research on
market data and trends from expenenced specialist consultants

The comnuttee has received material adwice from New Brnidge Street
Consultants LLP which have been appointed by the committee for the
purpose of providing this advice New Bridge Street Consultants LLP the
principal adviser to the committee, has not provided any other services
to the company
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The Chairman of the baard, (prior to his appointment to the
Commuttee}, the Group Chief Executive and the Group Human
Resources Director, Andy Smuth (until 31 January 2007) and Sally
Smedley (from 12 February 2007), also attended some meetings to
provide advice and respond to specific questions Such attendances
specifically excluded any matter concerning their own remuneration
The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee

The committee's terms of reference can be viewed on the company's
website at www severntrent com or reguested from the Company
Secretary (at the address on the back cover) The terms of appointment
for New Bricdge Street Consultants LLP are alsc available on request
from the Company Secretary

Remuneration policy

The company's continuing remuneration policy for executive directors 1S
to provide remuneratron 1n a form and amount which will attract, retain,
motivate and reward high calibre individuals The remuneration package
15 based on the following prninciples

> Incentives are aligned with the interests of shareholders and seek
to reward the creation of long term value,

> Reward elements are designed to reinforce the link between
pertormance and reward Performance related elements should
form a signrhicant proportien of the total remuneration package
and typically comprise at least 50% of total remuneration, if paid
at the maximum,

> The total remuneration package for on target perforrnance shou!d
be fully competitive, but not excessive, in the relevant market,

> Packages are structured flexibly to meet critical resource needs
and retain key executives

Each year, the committee reviews the remuneration policy for executive
directors and other senior executives, taking into account both the
external market and the company's strategic objectives over the short
and the medium term In respect of 2007/8, as outhned in greater
detail later in this report, the comrmittee has particularly focussed on
the balance of vanable remuneration and the spht between short term
and longer term targets

As a consequence, whilst the committee 15 satisfied with the
appropriateness of the averall quantum of rewards avaitable, it has
decided that, at least in respect of 2007/8, an increased weighting
should be placed on the annual bonus {with the compulsory deferral of
a proportion of bonus), with a corresponding reduction mn the LTIP
award to be made The reason for this rebalancing reflects the
company's stated objective of improving operating effrciencies via the
dentification of clear, focused KPIs which the committee believes can
best be set and measured over 12 month periods




Total remuneration package

The chart below shows the expected values of salary, bonus and long
term incentves for target performance for the executive directors

The committee considers the mix between fixed and performance pay
to be apprcpriate

Chief
Executive

Finance
Director

MD Severn
Trent Water

0% 20% 40% 5% B0% 100%

Salary Target bonus (cash)  Target bonus (deferred shares) Expected value of LTIP Awards

Personal shareholdings

The company operates shareholding guidelnes under which executive
directors are expected to build and maintain a minimum hoiding of
shares 1n the company The Group Chief Executive 15 expected to build
and mantain a holding of shares to the value of 1 5 x base salary and
other executive directors 1 x base salary Executive directors are
expected to retain at least half of the shares they receive through the
Leng Jerm Incentive Plans or other share based plans until they meet
the guidetine haldings within five years If insufficient shares are
awarded within five years then this timescale will be extended

Through a variety of share schemes, all employees are encouraged to
hotd shares In the company

External directorships

Executive directors are encouraged to take on external non-executive
directorships, though normally only one other FTSE 100 appointment
In order to avoid any conflicts of interest, all such appointments are
subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee Executive
directors are normally only permitted to retain the fees ansing from one
such appointment None of the executive directers currently holg any
such appointments

Chairman and other non-executive directors

The remuneraticn pelicy for non-executive directors, other than the
Chairman, is determined by the board, within the imits set out In the
Articles of Assocration

During the year, Sir John Egan was paid fees of £230,000 for his rcle as
Chairman This included £34 500 paid in the form of shares Sir John s
provided with a company car, but does not participate in any of the
company s pension arrangements, share or bonus schemes

Until retirng from the board on 10 June 2006, Martin Flower received
fees of £19,300 for his role as Deputy Chairman He did not participate
in any of the company's pension arrangements, share or bonus
schemes nor received benefits in kind His fees (ncluded the premiums
for chainng the Remuneration Committee and being the senior
independent non-executive directer

Remuneration for non-executwe directors, other than the Chairman,
comprises an annual fee for acting as a non-executive direcior of the
company and additional fees for acting as

> Charrman of a board committee {£15,000 pa for the Audit and
Rermuneration Committees and £10,000 p a for the Corporate
Respensibility Committee),

> Member of a board commitiee who 15 not the chairman of that
committee (£3,000 pa per committee other than for the
Naominations Committee for which no fee 1s paid),

> Senior independent non-executive directar (£10,000 pa)

The company Chairman does not receive any additional fees for
commitiee memberships

Save for Jochn Smith, whose total fees are paid directly to his employer,
non-executive directors receive 90% of their total fees in cash and the
remairing 10% 1s used to purchase shares in the company A similar
arrangernent 1s 1n place for the Chairman but with 85% of tees paid in
cash and 15% used to buy shares in the company The Chairman and
non-executive directors are expected to retain those shares for the
duration of their appointment with the company Non-execuiive
directors are not eligible to participate in share or bonus schemes nor
IS any penston provision made

The non-executive directors do not have service contracts or
consultancy agreements with any group company, but they do have
letters of appointment
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration arrangements for executive directors
The remuneration arrangernents for executive directors comprise the
following elernents

> Base salary and beneiits,
> Annual bonus plan,

> Long Term Incentive Plans,
> Post retirement benefits

Details of each of the above elements are as follows

Base salanes and benefits

Base salaries are a fixed cash sumn payable monthly The company's
policy 1s to set the salary for each executive director having regard to
the market median for simitar roles in publicly quoted companies of a
comparable size and, so far as practical, undertaking similar activities
Salaries for indiwvidual directors are reviewed annually by the
rermuneration committee From 2007 the remuneration commiitee
agreed that salary increases will take effect from 1 July in ine with the
rest of the business Salaries are set with reference to indwdual
performance, experience and contribution, together with developments
in the relevant employment market and internal refativities

Executive directors’ salaries have recently been reviewed for the financial
year 2007/08 They are as follows

Director Salary wef

July Q7 Intrease
Colin Matthews £580,000 36%
Michael McKeon £400,000 81%
Tony Wray £300,000 91%

The merease for the Group Chief Executive reflects general inflation as
well as the market rate, whilst Tony Wray recewved a larger increase to
reflect his progressian within his role Michael McKeon joined the
company in December 2005 and, consistent with the company's
approach for new appointments, did not recerve an increase |ast year
He has therefore been awarded a larger than normal increase for 2007,
reflecting a recogrution of his contribution, his development with the
role and the time elapsed since joining the company

In 2006/07 there were eight executives iImmediately below hoard level
who were paid salaries of between £150,000 and £250,000 per annum

Salary £000 Number of Executives
150-200 3
201-250 5

The non salary benefits for executive directors comprise the use of
company car or allowance, fuel, private medical insurance, Iife assurance
and an incapactty benefits scheme Private medical insurance and some
other benefits may be flexed under the company’s flexible benefits
scheme As they are flexing within the same value of overall package,
thesr indwvidual choices are not reflected in the table of directors’
emoluments on page 41
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Annual bonus plan 2006/07

Executive directors are eligible for annual bonuses te encourage
improved performance, with financial and non financial targets
established by the commuttee to align executive directors' interests with
shareholders In 2006/07 financial targets comprised profitability (plus
reiurn on capital employed for Martin Bettington and operatianal
cashflow for Tony Wray) Non financial targets compnised the achievement
of personal objectives and specific targets relating to health and safety
performance Following the publication of last year's report, the bonus
arrangements for Tony Wray were amended to bring them in hne with
the other senior managers in Severn Trent Water and his non financal
targets include operattonal performance and customer service measures

Given the prime importance which the board and the commuittee place
on health and safety 1ssues, the indicative bonus was adjusted by a
multiplier based on health and safety performance This could lead to
an increase or a reduction but, In all cases, was subject to the overall
bonus maxirnum

The maximum bonus potential and target composition for executive
directors for 2006/07 1s shown below

Max

Non bonus

Director Financial financial valye
Colin Matthews 53% 27% 80%
Michael McKeon 479, 23% 70%
Tony Wray 28% 42% 70%
Martin Bettington 100% 50% 150%
Rachel Brydon Jannetta 100% 50% 150%

The actual bonuses awarded by the committee for the year ended

31 March 2007 are shown in the table of directors’ emoluments on page
41 The following table shows how the spht of the bonuses paid in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 related to the targets set at
the start of the year

Achieved Achieved Total bonus

Financial  Non finangral Muttipler paid
Colin Matthews 53% 21 6% 10 74 6%
Michael McKeon 47% 19 0% 10 66 0%
Tony Wray 102% 109% 10 211%
Martin Bettington n/a n/a n/a n/a
Rachel Brydon Jannetta 78 3% 50% n/a 128 3%

Martin Bettington left on the demerger of Biffa and, as disclosed in last
year's report, his maximum benus potential for 2006/07 was 150%
reflecting hus not participating in the company’s LTIP dunng the year
The bonus award was not crystallised at demerger

Rachel Brydon Jannetta left at the date of the sale of the US Laboratories
business on 29 December 2006 and, as disclosed last year, her bonus
potential for 2006/07 was 150% of salary Her bonus award was
calculated at the date of sale and the value of her bonus award was 96%
of base salary (being 128 3% reduced on a prorated basis for the penod
that she warked, 78 3% related to achievernent of financial targets,
whilst 50% was awarded for achievement of non financial targets,
including health and safety performance)




It 1s not the committee's policy to award transaction related bonuses No
transaction related bonuses were paid to any executive director inked to
the successful demerger of Biffa or the disposal of any business

Annual bonus payments are not taken into account In calculating
executive directors’ pension entitiements

Annual bonus plan 2007/08

As noted above, the committee has recently undertaken a review of the
balance of performance related remuneration for the executive directors
As a result the committee concluded that, over the next 2-3 years, 1t 1s
important for the executive directors to be focussed on the achievement
of specific strategic goals {rom year 10 year, which will be closely hnked
to the company's 20 KPIs and intended to create a strong focus on the
creation of operational efficiencies

Consequently, for the 2007/8 financial year, the annual bonus
opportunity for all the executive directors has been increased to 120%
of salary For the achievement of target perfermance, 60% of salary
will be earned compared with 35% 1n 2006/07 for executive directors
other than the Chief Executive However, as explained above this
increase reflects a reweighting of performance pay from longer term
measures to more targeted annual measures and does not reflect a
material increase 1n total target pay

Colin Maithews’ package 1s amended to reflect the fact that he 1s leaving
the company His annual bonus maximum for 2007/08 will be 150%
however, he will not be invited to participate in the 2007 LTIP He will be
set specific personal targets This approach 1s consistent with that taken
previgusly for Rachel Brydon Jannetta and Martin Bettington

9% salary

for on target

Director Bonus Max performance
Colin Matthews 150% 75%
Michael McKeen 120% 60%
Tony Wray 120% 60%

In addition, 50% of any bonus paid {with the exception of Colin
Matthews) wiil be deferred into shares to be held for three years
follewing payment and subject to continued employment unless the
committee determines 1t 1s appropriate to release the shares in ‘good
leaver' cases

The bonus outturn will operate on a balanced scorecard of measures,
based on the KPIs outlined earlier Ali of the targets are considered by
the board to have an impact on the longer term financial performance
of the company and a number of themn are reported to the Regulator

The health and safety multipher will not operate in respect of 2007/8
although the commuittee reserves the discretion to reduce (but not
increase) bonus payments if health and safety targets are not fully met
or if the company's overall financial performance 15 not {elt to warrant
the indicative level of bonus

Consistent with the latest developments in institutional guideltnes, the
rutes of the annual honus plan now provide that the committee may
rectaim some or all of the after tax part of any bonuses awarded to
executive directors If It subsequently transpires that the bonus
calculation was based on calculations which are subsequently
demonstrated to be matenally incorrect
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Long term incentives

At the 2005 Annual General Meeting, shareholders approved the
introduction of the Long Term Incentive Plan 2005 (LTIP 2005), which
replaced the 1997 Leng Term Incentive Plan Under the LTIP 2005,
annual conditional awards of performance shares may be made to
executive directors and semor staff, up to an annual maximum hmit of
shares worth 125% of base salary

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect
dwidends paid through the performance penod on the basis of such
notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevalling share price
Awards will normally vest as soon as the commitiee determines that the
performance conditions have been met provided that the participant
remains in employment at the end of the perfermance period

2005 LTIP award

in respect of the 2005 award, 50% will be triggered if the company's
Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance 1s at the median or above
relative to the following group of water and waste companies and other
selected FTSE 100 ‘high'yield’ stocks as follows

AWG Pennon Group

BOC Group Rentokil Initial

8T Group Scottish & Newcastle
Diageo Scottish & Southern Energy
Ketda Scottish Power

National Grid Shanks Group
Northumbrian Water  Unilever

Pearson United Utihties

So far in the performance period AWG and BOC group have beth
delisted The commitiee has agreed that their TSR performance will be
substituted with that of Compass group and Centnica respectively (the
next highest yield companies in the FTSE 100} with each replacement
being effective from the dates that the oniginal companies delisted

The remaining 50% of the 2005 awards will be triggered subject to the
satisfaction of group Econemic Profit (EP) targets As explained in
previous years, due to the commercial sensitivity of the EP targets, these
have not been precisely disclosed However, the committee confirms that
the minimum threshold level of vesting In respect of the water business
over the five year cycle will not be lower than that imphed in the most
recent Qfwat determination For the 2005 awards, EP is calculated by
reference to a post tax rate of return of 7 5%

For executives below board level in the non water businesses, 25% of
their LTIP awards are dependent upon the TSR target and 75% of therr
awards are set by reference to EP targets

2006 LTIP award

In 2006 the Group Chief Executive received an award of shares worth
1259% of base salary with other executive directors receving up to 100%
{other than Martin Bettington and Rache} Brydon Jannetta who, as
explaned previously, did not receive any award 1n 2006)

Michael McKeon was also entitled to an LTIP award over 36,405 shares
on joining the company as part of the terms negohiated at that time
These shares were awarded at the same time as the normal 2006 grant
and, as the aggregate award size exceeded 125% of base salary in a
financial year, were made pursuant to the exemption to the Listing Rules
in chapter 94 2 All terms were identical to the terms of the normal
2006 LTIP award and the committee confirms that such award was felt
to be necessary to facilitate the recruitment of Mr McKeon and to honour
commuitments made to him on recruitment
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Vesting of the 2006 awards 15 wholly dependent on a TSR target over a
fixed three year period beginning on 1 April 2006 There 15 no retesting
of the condition

This condition was chosen because the committee considered TSR to
be the most appropriate means of aligning the interests of the
executives with tnvestors through generating superior shareholder
returns, particularly in view of the significant restructuring which
occurred dunng 2006

For median TSR levels of performance, 25% of that part of the award
will vest and, for upper quartile TSR levels of performance, 100% of that
part of the award will vest Vesting between 25% and 100% will be on a
straight ine basis between ranking peints In addition, for awards to
vest, the commuttee must be satisfied that the company’s TSR is
reflective of the company’s underlying perfermance

The TSR comparator group for 2006 awards comprises water
companies and FTSE 100 high yield companies (excluding financial and
retall companies or other sectors which might result 1n an undue bias 1n
the sample) ‘High yield' was defined as companies which had an
average gross yield that was greater than base rate minus 1% n the
calendar month preceding 1 Apnl 2006 and their use as comparators
recognises the fact that, at least in part, shareholders choose to invest 1n
the company for the dividend income 1t produces

After the end of the performance perod, the TSR performance
condition wili be measured and independently verified by New Bridge
Street Consultants LLP on behalf of the committee

The comparator group companies for the 2006 LTIP award are

AWG Pennon Group

BT Group Rentokil Inttial

Centrica Scottish & Newcastle
Compass Scottish & Southern Energy
Kelda Scottish Power

National Gnd United Utilities

Northumbrian Water

For the 2006 award, where comparator group companies have been
delisted during the course of the performance penod, the “proceeds” of
that sale will be reinvested 1n ancther company selected from an agreed
st of high yield organisations

Duning the performance penod, AWG have delisted and therefore will
be replaced tn the comparator group by Unilever from the date of
AWG's delisting

2007 LTIP award

As cutlined in the policy section above, the committee reviewed the
balance of vanable pay for 2007/8, and 1t has concluded that, whilst it
does not wish to materially alter the overall quantum of remuneration
for the executive directors, it wishes to rebalance performance more
towards focussed, short term targets Accordingly, it 15 the committee's
intention to make LTIP awards of 50% of salary to Michael McKeon and
Tony Wray in 2007 As previously stated, Colin Matthews will not be
invited to participate in the 2007 scherne

In view of the fact that (1) there has been ¢considerable consolidation
amongst UK listed utibties companies and (1) the restructuring of the
Group has largely been completed, the commuttee has reviewed the
performance conditions that will apply to the award to be made

i 2007
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The vesting of awards will be subject to TSR, measured relative to those
companies ranked 51-150 1n the FTSE by market capitalisation
(excluding investment trusts) This 1s felt to be the most suitable
comparator group since the number of comparable regulated utilities
against which to compare the company's performance 1S now too small
to enable meamingful analysis The performance measures remain
unchanged with 25% of awards vesting at median performance, and
100% vesting for performance in the upper quartile

Performance graph

This graph shows the value, by 31 March 2007, of £100 invested in
Savern Trent Pic on 31 March 2002 compared with the value of £100
invested 1n the FTSE 100 Index The FTSE 100 was chosen as the
comparator because the company Is a constituent of that (ndex
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This graph shows the value, at 31 March 2007, of £100 invested 1n Severn Trent on
31 March 2002 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 tndex
The other poinis plotted are the values at intervening financial year ends
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All employee share plans
The company offers an all employee SAYE plan on an annual basis and
periodically reviews the use of other all employee incentive vehicles

Details of the company's shares that are held in trust on behalf of
participants of certamn of the employee share schemes are given on
page 81 In respect of the LTIPs, the company’s policy 15 to purchase,
and hold in trust, 50% of the total number of shares that could
potentially vest from all outstanding LFIP awards The requirement

to purchase shares Is calculated, and carried out, shortly after each
annual award

In respect of awards made under the company’s Share Incentive Plan,
all the shares taken up by employees at each invitation are purchased
and placed In trust immediately

The company grants SAYE options over umssued shares, always
operating within the dilution imits contained 1n the scheme rules

The committee is satisfied that the overall dilution lirmits provide
sutficient headroom for all the company's share schemes




Post retirement benefits

Cf the current executive directors, Colin Matthews and Tony Wray
participate in the Senior Staff Pension Scheme (as did Martin Bettington
prior to the demerger of Biffa) The scheme s a funded HMRC
registered final salary occupational pension scheme which provides

> A normal retirement age of 60 years,
> An overall pension at normal retirement age of two thirds of
final pensionable salary, which for executive directors 1s defined
as base salary anly, subject to the completion of 20 years'
pensionable service,
> Life cover of 4 x pensionable earnings,
A pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of Il health,
> A dependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the
member’s pension

3

Colin Matthews and Tony Wray participate up {o the level of the scheme
spectfic earmings cap (“the Cap") which in 2006/07 was £108,600
They are provided with a cash supplement in lieu of pension
entitlement above the Cap at 40% of their respective salaries

Members' contributions are payable at the rate of 6% of pensionable
earnings Early retirement 15 available after the age of 50 with the
consent of the company Any pension would be subject to a reduction
that the Trustee considers appropnate, acting on actuanal advice, to
reflect the expected longer payment of the pension In the event of
incapacity, early retirement s available on an unreduced basis allowing
for pensionable service {0 age 60

Under the Trust Deed and Rules, pensions in payment in excess of any
Guaranteed Minimum Pension are guaranteed to increase in ine with
price inflation subject to a maximum of 5% each year In the calculation
of ndividual cash equivalent transfer values, allowance 1s made for
such increases

As disclosed 1n last year's remuneration report, the company reviewed
its pension policy for directors and employees as a result of the
Pensions Act 2004, Finance Act 2004 and the results of the triennial
valuation of two of its main schemes during 2004 As a result of this
review, new executives are offered an allowance, expressed as a
percentage of base salary, to fund their own pension provision The
individual 1s able to choose whether the allowance 1s pad to the
company's registered defined contribution scheme, taken as cash or
paid to a personal pensian arrangement This reflects the wish of the
committee to remove future exposure to defined benefit schemes for
senior executives

The new arrangements apply 1o Michael McKecn at 40% of base salary

Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment

A model service contract was approved by the committee in 2004

All current executive directors have signed the model contract and,
accordingly, service agreements for all executive directors have notice
periods of 12 months from either party They also provide for a
maximum damages payment in the case of redundancy or termination
In breach of the agreement by the company of up to 175% of base
salary which was calculated as a conservative pre-estimate of the value
of salary, fixed benefits and on target bonus

The reference to 175% I1s 2 cap and any damages payments will not be
made automatically but will be subject to both phasing and rmitigation
unless, in the circumstances, the committee cansiders 1t appropriate to
achieve a clean break through payment of a lump sum in which case it
will require some discount for early payment Contracts also perrmit the
committee to take into account a view of the extent of poor
performance on the part of the executive director Any payment will not
include amounts 1n respect of awards which have been made under the
campany's LTIPs over which the committee retains discretion There are
no specific contractual payments or benefits which would be triggered
in the event of a change 1n control of the company The commuitiee
believes that the contracts provide as much scope as 18 feasible to
protect the interests of shareholders when negotiating a termination, at
which time it would address the duty of mitigation

The service contract for Rachel Brydon Jannetta, wha was based in the
US and employed by a US subsidiary, was in the same format as for
cther executive directors but modified to reflect prevailing US
employment legislation

The details relating to Colin Matthews’ termination package have not
yet been agreed
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

The dates of the current executive directors' agreements, the dates on which their appointments became effective and the current expiry dates

of their agreements are as follows

Executive directors Effective date

Date of agreement

Exptry date

Cohin Matthews 3 June 2004 b September 2004
Michael McKeon 6 December 2005 13 December 2005
Tony Wray 19 January 2005 7 March 2005

Terminable on 12 months’ notice
Terminable on 12 months" notice
Terminable on 12 months’ notice

Tony Wray 1s the subject of reappointment as executive director at the forthcoming AGM

Details for the executive directors who ceased to serve on the board during the year are as follows

Executve director Date of agreement Effective date

Expiry date

10 June 2004
30 June 2004

10 June 2004
1 September 2004

Martin Bettington
Rachel Brydon Jannetta

Terminated on € October 2006
Terminated on 29 December 2006

Rachel Bryden Jannetta left the Board on 29 December 2006 on the disposal of the US Laboratories business During the sale process notice of
termination of her contract of employment was served, triggering the termination payment provision in her contract of 1 75 times base salary, an
amount of $673,750 In accordance with her contract, it was agreed that the termination payment would be made in twelve monthty instalments
with the proviso that any income she received from alternative employment would be deducted from the payment Mrs Brydon Jannetta has
subseguently accepted a role within HIG Capital and therefore the salary payments she receives from them are being deducted from the

termination payments in mitigation of the loss

Mrs Brydon Jannetta also received a bonus of $288,750 for the period fram 1 April 2006 to 29 December 2006, the detatls of which are shown

on page 36

The committee agreed that the LTIP award made to Mrs Brydon Jannetta on 5 September 2005 at a share price of £& 75 should vest on
completion of the sale, subject to achievement of performance conditions and time prorating The 2005 award vested on 2 March 2007 to the
extent that 49 7% of the shares, being 3,944 shares with a market value of £13 89 each, were released to Mrs Brydon Jannetta

Mr Martin Bettington transferred with Biffa on the demerger and received no payment by way of compensation for loss of office The commuttee
agreed that the LTIP award made to Mr Betington on S September 2005 at a share price of £3 75 should vest on demerger, subject to
achievement of performance conditions and time prorating The 2005 award vested on 1 December 2006 to the extent that 59 76% of the

shares, being 13,944 shares with a market value of £14 55 each, were released to Mr Bettington

In both cases the 2004 award lapsed as the performance conditions were not met

In respect of the Chairman and current ncn-executive directors, the dates on which their appointments took effect and the current expiry dates are

as follows

Chairman and

non executive directors Inthial appomtment Current appointment

Current expiry date*

1 Cctober 2004
1 January 2006
1 January 2006
1 September 2003 1 September 2006
3 Novemnber 2003 3 Novernber 2006

1 October 2004
1 January 2006
1 January 2006

Sir John Egan
Bernard Builkin
Richard Davey
Martin Houston
John Smith

31 December 2007
31 Decermnber 2008
31 December 2008
31 August 2009

2 Novermber 2009

*Subject to the requirernents of the company s Articles of Association for the reappaintment of directors at Annual General Meetings.

Details for the non-executive directors who retired from the board during the year are as follows

Non executive directors Instial appointment Last appointment

Date retired

11 June 2005
1 September 2004

11 June 1996
1 September 2001

Martin Flower
Marisa Cassoni

10 June 2006
6 October 2006

It 1s the normal practice of the company for non-executive directors to serve three three year terms Non-executive directors have no nght to

compensation on the early terrmination of their appointments

The text and tables that follow comprise the auditable part of the directors' remuneration report, being the information required by Part 3 of

Schedule 7A to the Compantes Act 1985
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Directors’ emoluments
Basic salary and fees'

Annual Total Total
Cash Shares Total BIKs? bonus Other* 2006/07 2005/06
L0040 £0G0 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Chairman and other non-executive directors
Sir John Egan {Chairman) 1955 345 2300 264 - - 2564 2176
Bernard Bulkin 459 51 510 - - - 510 83
Marisa Cassoni 215 23 238 - - - 238 391
Richard Davey 574 64 638 - - 09 647 83
Martin Flower 193 - 193 - - 33 226 1012
Martin Houston 387 43 430 - - - 430 340
John Smith* 550 - 550 - - - 550 400

Executive directors

Martin Bettington 1679 - 1679 115 - 687 2481 4097
Rachel Brydon Jannetta 1498 - 1498 30 1525 1095 4148 3307
Colin Matthews 5573 - 5573 133 4178 2137 1,2021 9738
Michael McKeon 3700 - 3700 91 2441 815 7047 2649
Tony Wray 2723 - 2723 195 579 702 4199 4153
19506 526 20032 828 8723 5478 3,5061 28429

1 Inctuded within fees for the non executive directors are amounts to be received by way of shares rather than cash to encourage participation in line with corporate governance
best practice The gross value of the shares 1s recorded in the tabie above Non executive directors who were either appointed or retired during the year receved a time
apportioned award The number of shares receved by each direcior was

Ordinary Ordinary
shares of shares of
97/ 1sp each  65%/1sp each

Sir John Egan 746 757
Marnisa Cassom - 98
Martin Houston 90 91
Bernard Bulkin 154 128
Richard Davey 188 167

2 Benefits 1n kind receved by Sir John Egan comprise the use of a company car Benefits in kind for executive directors compnise the use of a company car, fuel, private medical
insurance hie assurance and an in¢apacity benefits scheme

3 Other emoluments (nclude expenses chargeable to income tax allowances in heu of a company car travel aliowances relocation expenses telephore allowances, payments made
under the group s flexible benefit arrangements and ameunts paid in lieu of pension contributions In¢luded in other emaluments are

> Martin Flower - expenses chargeabte to income tax £3 271

> Richard Davey - expenses chasgeable to income tax £346

> Martin Betington - amounts received in lieu of pension contnibutions £67,167 and flexible benefits payments £1,583

> Rachel Brydon Jannetta - amounts receved in lieu of pension contributions £59,422 termination payment £47 057 and allowange in heu of company car £3,034

> Colin Matthews - amounts received in heu of pension contributions £180,560, allowance 1n lieu of company car £18 000 travel allowance £15,000 and telephone allowance £113

> Jony Wray - amounts recewed in lieu of pension contributions £66,560 and flexible benefits payments £3 616

= Michael McKeon - allowance i lieu of company car £15 000 relocation expenses £60 061 and other expenses chargeable to income tax £6469

4 John Smuih’s total fees are paid directty to his employer

Directors' pension provisions
The disclosure of pension benefits 1s made under the requirements of the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority (the “Rules™) and also the
requirements of the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (the "Regulations™) These are shown in separate tables below

The Rules require information to cover the period during which a director was a board member, whilst the Regulations require information to cover
the financial year The information below sets out the disclosures required by the Regulatians

Increase/
Increase {decrease)
Service in accrued n transfer
completed Increase PENSION Transfer Transfer value
In years 1n accrued during value of value of over the
(including Accrued pension the year accrued accrued year, net
transierred pension at during (net of pension at pension at  of directors
In service 310307 the year inflaticn)’ 310307 310306 contnbubons
credits) Lfpa £pa Epa £000 £000 £000
Martin Bettington 24 166,827 112 (5.850) 2,547 8 23813 1665
Colin Matthews 2 9,293 3,790 3,592 1146 623 458
Tony Wray 2 7,488 3,739 3,604 673 312 297
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

The information below sets out the disclosures required by the Rules

Transfer
Increase 1n value of increase
Increase in accrued pension in acgrued benehits
Accrued pension acerued pension during the year net of directors’
at 310307 dunng the year (net of inflation)* contnbutions?
£pa ipa £pa
Martin Bettington 166,827 112 (5,890) 17
Calin Matthews 9,293 3,7%0 3,592 402
Tony Wray 7,488 3739 3,604 271

1 Inflation over the year 1s measured by reference to the increase in the retarl price index between March 2006 and March 2007, or the earler date of leaving
2 The transfer values have been calculaled in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 published by the Institute of Actuares and Faculty of Actuanes.

The pensions shown above will be provided through the Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme, the Severn Trent Supplemental Pension

Scheme and the Severn Trent Pension Scheme

Contributions ameounting te £148,000 were paid to a defined contribution scheme in respect of Michael McKeon

The directors of the company at 31 March 2007 and their beneficial interests 1n the shares of the company were as follows

1) Beneficial holdings

At 1 Apnl 2006 Al 6 October 2006 At 9 Ccteber 2006 At 31 March 2007 At » June 2007
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary orcdinary ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of
655/19p each 65%/19p each 9717/19p each 9717/19p each 9717/19p each
Chairman and other
non-executive directors
Sir John Egan (Chairman) 7,288 8,045 5,363 6,109 6,109
Bernard Buikin - 128 85 239 239
Richard Davey - 167 111 299 299
Martin Houston 1,403 1,484 586 1,086 1,086
John Smith - - - - -
Executive directors
Calin Matthews 1,059 1,078 717 717 717

Michael McKeon
Tony Wray

Following the Extraordinary General Meeting held on & October 2006, Severn Trent Plc's ordinary shares of 65%19p each were consolidated into
ordinary shares of 9717/49p each, on 9 October 2006, on the basis of 2 new shares far every 3 old shares held

Colin Matthews, Tony Wray and Michael McKeon have further interests in the company’s ordinary shares of 97:7/19p each by wirtue of having
received contingent awards of shares under the Severn Trent Plc Long Term Incentive Plan as follows Colin Matthews on 15 December 2004,
5 September 2005 and 19 June 2006, Tony Wray on 5 September 2005 and 19 June 2006, and Michael McKeon on 19 June 2006 Further

details regarding Michael McKeon's contingent awards are set out on page 37

The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis The Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust 1s operated in conjunction with the LTIP
Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years and specific performance critena have been satisfied

Executive directors have a technical interest in 771,717 shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust
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The details of the performance criteria are explained on pages 37 and 38 of the remuneration report The individual interests, for the above named
directors and for the directors wha left during the year, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each indwidual could
become entitled, are as follows

At 1 April At 31 March

2006 or 2007 or

subsequent earlier date

date of Market of leaving

appaintment Market price at Number of

Number of Awards price at Awards time of ordinary

ordinary vested time of Gain on lapsed Awarded 2006 shares of

shares of during vesting vesting durning duting award 971 19p

65%/19p each year [{)] {£000) year year [{)] each

Martin Bettingion 77,465 (13,944) 1455 2029 (63,521) - - Nil
Rachel Brydon Jannetta 46,022 (3,944 1389 548 (42,078) - - Nit
Colin Matthews 105,933 - - - - 56,980 1178 162,913
Michael McKeon - - - - - 66,523 1178 66,523
Tony Wray 17,948 - - - - 22,385 1178 40,333

The awards that lapsed during the year were those that were awarded to Martin Bettington and Rachel Brydon Jannetta on 13 August 2003, 15
Decernber 2004 and the non vesting balance of 5§ September 2005

The performance penod for allecations of shares made 1n 2004 ended on 31 March 2007 The Remuneration Commuttee has subsequently
determined, based on the company's Total Sharehelder Return and Econemic Profit Targets over the three year performance pertad, that
participants are not entitled to any vesting of their awards The 2004 contingent awards of shares are included in the table above

The 2006 awards were made on 19 june 2006, but are not included in the table above
No further awards have been made under the LTIP as at & June 2007

1) Options over ordinary shares

At the start

of the year At the end

or of the year

subsequent Exercised Cancelled Granted or earlier

date of during dunng dunng date of

appointment the year the year the year leaving Year of Exercise Date

(No of (Mo of (No of (No of {Na of grant of prce from which Expiry
Sharesave’ shares) shares) shares) shares) shares) optian (p) exercisable date
Michael McKeon - - - 1,499 1,499 2007 1172 May 2014  Oct 2014
Tony Wray 1,136 - - - 1,136 2006 823 May 2009 Oct 2009

1 The executive directors 1n commion with all elgible UK employees of the group are entitled to participate in the company s Inland Revenue approved Sharesave Scheme
The terms and conditions appheable to these options are those prowided in that scheme The options have na performance conditions as such conditions are not permitted by
legislation

2 No executive share options in respect of executive directors were granted or lapsed during the year At 31 March 2007 there were 30 other executives participating in the group s
Share Option Scheme (2006 145}

3 At the close of business on 31 March 2067 the mid market price of the company s shares was 1,434p (31 March 2006 1,117p) 2nd the range dunng the year was 1 106p to
1493p

4 On 9 October 2006 Severn Trent Ple s ordinary shares of 65%»p each were consolidated nto ordinary shares of 97°%,p each No adjustment was made to the shares awarded
under the LTIP or granted under the Sharesave Scheme LTIP awards will vest over ordinary shares of 97'%p each and Sharesave Oplions will be exercised over ordinary shares
of 97'%sp each

Other than the lapse of the 2004 LTIP award, there has been no further change In directors’ interests between 31 March 2007 and the date of
this report

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the directors’ remuneration report on 5 June 2007

Tt oy,

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Commttee
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of recognised inceme and expense
and the related notes 1 to 41 These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also
audited the infermation in the directors' remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial staterments of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2007

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we rmight state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for thus report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibihities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the directors’ remuneration report and the group financial staterments in
accordance with applicable law and Internatignal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the
statement of directors’ responsibiiities

Our responsibifity 1 to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatery requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opimion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view, whether the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’
remuneration report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accardance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the group financtal statements The information given in
the directors’ report includes that speofic information presented 1n the chairman's statement, the group chief executive’s review and the
performance review that 1s cross referred from the business review section of the directors’ report

In addition we report to you If, in our opimion, we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if infarmation
specified by taw regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report If it does not We are not required to consider
whether the board's statements on internal control caver all risks and controls, or form an opinton on the effectiveness of the group's carporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the
audited group financial statements We constder the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent rmisstatements or maternial
inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend t0 any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opimign

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An aucht
Includes exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant te the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether the accounting pelicies are appropriate to the group's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the informahon and explanations which we constdered necessary in order to provide

us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to
be auvdited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinien we also evaluated
the overail adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial statements and the part of the directors' remuneration report to
be audited

Qpimion
In our opinton

> the group financral statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion, of the state of the
group's affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

> the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

> the part of the directors’' remuneration report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, and

> the mformatlow directors’ report is consistent with the group financtal statements

eloitte & Touche LLP :

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, UK
5 June 2007
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

sjuawajes [euewy dnosgy

2007 2006
(restated)
Notes £m £m
Turnover 56 1,480 2 1,4553
Operating costs before exceptional items (1,074 9y (1,062 3)
Exceptional restructuring costs and termination of operations 8 (14 9) (79)
Exceptional demerger costs 8 (16 7) {78
Total operating costs 7 (L,1065) (10780
Exceptional profit on disposat of property and businesses 8 563 -
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 405 3 3930
Excepticnal items 8 247 (157)
Profit before interest and tax 4300 3773
|
|
Finance income 10 863 729 1
Finance costs 10 (240 1) (236 8) |
Net finance costs before fair value movements on treasury nstruments (153 B) (163 9)
Fair value movements on treasury instruments 10 48 8 (367)
Total net finance costs 10 (105 0) (200 @)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 05 11 ‘
Profit before tax, fair value movements on treasury instruments and exceptional iterms 2520 2302 !
Exceptional items 8 247 {157)
Fair value movernents on treasury instruments 10 488 (367)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3255 1778
Taxation on profit an ordinary activities - current tax 11 (58 5) (61 5)
- deferred tax 11 (18 4} 73
Total taxation 1l (76 9) (54 2)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 2486 1236
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 12 200 994
Profit for the period 2686 2230
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the company 2671 2216
Equity minority interests 15 14
2686 2230
Earnings per share (pence)
From contiuing operahons
Basic 14 1061 529
Diluted 14 1051 524
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 14 1147 959
Diluted i4 1136 951

Severn Trent 45



Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2007

Notes £m £m
Non current assets
Goodwill 15 491 5063
Other intangible assets 16 1012 1124
Property, plant and equipment 17 55211 57431
interests In joint ventures 18 05 g7
Interests in associates 19 34 196
Derivative financial instruments 20 66 37
Available for sale financial assets 21 02 05
56821 63953
Current assets
Inventory 22 224 54 4
Trade and other receiwvables 23 387.1 4815
Derivative financial instrurnents 20 141 108
Cash and cash equivalents 24 143 2 1426
5668 6893
Assets held for sale - 415
Total assets 6,248 9 71261
Current habilities
Borrowings 25 (631 8) (808 2)
Derivative financial instruments 20 (67 1) (114 4)
Trade and other payables 26 (405 1) (540 6)
Current income tax hatilities (590) (488)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 29 67) (301)
Liabuities directly asscciated with assets classified as held for sale - (28 5)
(1,169 7) (1,57C6)
Non current habilitres
Borrowings 25 (2,6390) (22955
Derivative financiat instruments 20 (56 2) (30 1)
Trade and other payables 26 (188 3) (158 7)
Deferred tax habilities 27 (8911) (8702)
Retirement benefit obligations 28 (135 1) (2219
Provisions for other hatulities and charges 29 (322) (80 1)
(3,941 9) (3,6565)
Total habilities (5,111 6) (52271
Net assets 1,137 3 1,880
Capital and reserves attributable to the company’s equity shareholders
Called up share capital 30 2283 2272
Share premium account 31 575 486
Other reserves 32 4190 4324
Retained earnings 33 4294 1,1882
Equity attributable to the company's equity shareholders 1,134 2 18564
Minority interests 33 31 26
Total eqnty 33 1,137 3 18590
Signed ompbehalf of the board who approved the accounts on 5 June 2007

Michael McKeon

/ Group Finance Director

ann an

Chairman
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

Notes £m im
Cash generated from operations 36 574 0 7589
interest paid (148 6) (139 4)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (202) (451)
Tax paid (36 0) (68 3)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3692 5061
Investing activities
Interest received 124 44
Divdends received from associates and joint ventures 15 27
Net loans advanced to associates and joint ventures 05 (23)
Net cash inftow from avallable for sale fixed asset investments 02 02
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired - (03)
Cash demerged with Biffa Plc 35 (21 9) -
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries net of cash disposed 35 1306 16
Proceeds on disposal of associate net of costs 293 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 622 84
Purchases of intangible assets (215) (29 6)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (427 2) (407 5)
Contributions and grants received 350 328
Net cash used in investing activities 1989 (389 6)
Financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent (7395) (234 3)
Diidends paid to minarity interests (10) {08}
Repayments of borrowings (789 9) (500 2)
Receipts from sale and lease back transactions - 1702
Repayment of gbligations under finance leases (34 6) (167 7)
New loans raised 1,4184 648 8
Issue of shares 100 116
Net cash used in financing activities (136 6) (724}
Increase In cash and cash equivalents 337 441
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the perod 1104 644
Effect of foreign exchange rates (10) 19
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 36 1431 1104
Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and cash equivalents 36 1432 1426
Bank averdrafts 36 1) (322)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod 36 1431 1104
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(restated)
£m £m
Exchange movement on translation of cverseas results and net assets (25 5) 216
Exchange differences on hedges of net invesiment 64 53)
Tax on exchange dtfferences on forergn currency hedging {19) 18
Gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity 62 03
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity {(18) on
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes (14 3) 263
Deterred tax on actuanal fosses/gains 43 80)
Net (expense)/income recognised directly in equity (26 6) 366
Transfers
Amounts on cash {low hedges transferred te the income statement in the period 46 45
Deferred tax on transfers to iIncome statement 14) (13)
32 32

Profit for the period 2686 2230
Total recognised income for the period 2452 2628
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the company 2437 2614
Minority interests 15 14

2452 2628
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Notes to the group financial statements

1 General information
The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are described in the segmental analysis in note 5

Severn Trent Plc 1s a company Incorporated and domiciled 1n the Urited Kingdom The address of its registered office 1s shown on the back of the
cover of the annual report and accounts

Severn Trent Plc 1s hsted on the London Stock Exchange
2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards {IAS) and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued and effective and ratified by the European Umion as at 31 March 2007 and those parts of the
Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
llabimties {including dervative instruments) at fair value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reperted amounts
of assets and habilities at the date of the iinancial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ

from those estimates

The comparative figures for the sincarme statement have been restated to rectassify Biffa Plc and US Laboratories as discentinued operations
following their demerger and disposal respectively

b) Basis of consohidation
The financial statements include the resuits of Severn Trent Plc and 1ts subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated undertakings

Minonty interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the group's equity therein Minority interests consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combination and the minonity’s share of changes 1n equity since that date
Losses attributable to the minority 1n excess of the minonity's interest 1n the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the group
except to the extent that the minonity has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses

The results of subsidianies, joint ventures and associated undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation, and excluded
from the date of disposal The results of subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the power to control a subsidiary The results of joint
venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the company exercised joint control under a contractual arrangement The results
of associates are accounted for on an equity basis where the company holding 1s 20% or more or the company has the power to exercise
significant influence

All intra group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on conschdation

¢} Revenue recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter cempany sales, in the orcinary
course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue 1s not recogmsed until the service has been provided to the customer, or the goeds to which the sale relates have either been despatched
to the customer ar, where they are held on the custormer's behalf, title has passed to the customer

In respect of long term contracts, revenue 1s recognised based on the value of work carrnied out duning the year with reference to the total sales
value and the stage of completion of these contracts

Turnover Includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and wastewater charges unbilled at the year end The accrual 1s estimated using a
defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consurmed by tariff, which 1s calculated from hustorical billing information

Interest iIncome 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable Dividend income
from vestments 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to receive payment have been established Interest and diwdend income are included
in finance income

d) Segmental reporting

Each of the group's business and geographical segments provide services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

e} Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment comprises

1} Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets are included at cost (or deemed cost on transition to IFRS) less accurnulated depreciation The costs of day to day servicing
of infrastructure components are recognised In the iIncome statement as they anse Where 1t s probable that the money spent will cause future
economic benefits to flow to the group, then costs are capitalised Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives, which
are as follows

Years
Impounding reservairs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
ny Landfill sites
Landfill sites are included within land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation
The cost of landfill sites includes the cost of acquiring, developing and engineering sites, but does not include interest The cost of the asset 1s
depreciated over the estimated life of the site on the basis of the usage of void space
Following the demerger of Biffa Plc the group no longer holds landfill sites
m) Other assets
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land is not depreciated Other assets are depreciated over therr
estimated econormic lives to their residual value, which are prnincipally as follows

Years
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 2-40
Vehicles and mobite plant 2-1%

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned

Interest costs of debt raised to finance new property, plant and equipment are not included withun the cost of those fixed assets, but are expensed
to the iIncome statement as they arise

f) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
(finance leases), the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments 1s capitalised as an asset with a
corresponding hability representing the abligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge,
the capital element reducing the obilrgation to the lessor and the finance charge being wnitten off to the income statement at a constant rate over
the period of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful Iife and the
lease period

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor, these are
classified as operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of
land are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership 1s transferred at the end of the lease

g) Grants and contnbutions
Grants and contributions received in respect of non-current assets including charges made for new connections to the water and sewerage
networks, are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the useful economic hife of those assets

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised 1n the income
statement in the period that they become recewable

h} impairment of non current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an iterm of property, plant and equipment, or any other non current asset 1s estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unut to which the asset belongs Recoverable
amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell or esttmated value 1n use at the date the impairment review i1s undertaken Fair value less costs
to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the assets 1n an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties,
less costs of disposal Value in use represents the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from a cash generating unit, discounted
ustng a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash generating urut or asset

The discount rate used is based on the group's cost of capital adjusted for the nsk profiles of iIndividual businesses

Goodwiil 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are also carried out if there 15 some indication that an impairment may have
occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that non current assets are not carried above their estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recogrmised in the income statement
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1} Investments

After initial recognition at ¢ost (being the fair value of the consideration paid), investments which are classified as held for trading or available for
sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in income or equity respectively When an avaitable for sale investment is disposed
of, or impaired, the gain or loss previously recognised In equity 1s taken to the income statement

Other investments are classified as held to maturity when the group has the positive intention and ability to hold to matunty Investments held for
an undefined period are excluded from this classification Such investments (and those held to maturity) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method with any gains or losses being recognised in the income staterment

p Inventory
Inventory and work in progress Is stated at the tower of cost and net reahsable value Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and
attributable overheads

Development land and properties are included at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes the cost of acquirnng and developing
the sites The net realisable value of development land is based upon its value as a serviced site, after taking account of the cost of providing
infrastructure services

Following the disposal of Severn Trent Property the group no ionger holds development land or properties

k) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liguid investments that are reacily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in value Such Investments are normally thase with less than three
months' maturity from the date of acquisiton and include cash and balances at central banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills, toans and
certificates of deposit Cash and cash equivalents also include overdrafts repayable on demand

) Provisions
Provisions are made where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that there wilt be an outflow of economic benefits
to settle this ebligation and a reliable estimate of this amount can be made The group’s policy on provisions for specific areas 1s as follows

> Landfil restoration costs Provision for the cost of restoring landfill sites 1s made over the operational life of each landfill site and charged to
the income statement on the basis of the usage of void space Following the demerger of Biffa Plc the group no longer holds provisions for
landfill costs

> Environmental control and aftercare costs Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred over the operational life of each landfill site
and may be incurred for a considerable period thereafter Provision for all such costs 1s made over the operational life of the site and charged
to the incorme statemnent an the basis of the usage of void space Material environmental control and aftercare costs are discounted by
applying an appropnate discount rate

> Insurance Provision 1s made for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the
group's independent insurance advisers

m) Pension costs
The group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid price Defined benefit pension scheme habilities are measured at the balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate
bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability The increase in the present value of the l:abilities of the group’s defined benefit pensson
schemes expected to anse from employee service In the period 1s included 1n operating costs The expected return on the scheme's assets and
the increase during the period 1n the present value of the scheme’s habilities, ansing from the passage of bme, are included in other finance
ncome or cost

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments, changes in actuanal assumptions and amendments to pension plans are charged
or credited to equity and recorded 1n the statement of recognised income and expense

Costs of defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the income statement 1n the period 1n which they fall due

n) Foreign currency
The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into the presentational currency of the group, sterling, using average
rates of exchange ruling during the year

The net investments in overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling at the raies of exchange ruling at the year end
Exchange differences thus ansing are treated as movements in equity On disposal of a foreign currency denorminated subsidiary, the deferred
cumulative amount recogrused in equity since 1 April 2004 relating to that entity 1s recognised 1n the income statement under the transitional rule
of IFRS 1

Exchange differences arising in respect of foreign exchange instruments taken out as hedges of overseas snvestments are also treated as
movements In equity to the extent that the hedge 1s effective (see note 20}

All other foreign currency denominated assets and habilities of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the relevant
functional currency at the rates of exchange rubing at the year end Any exchange differences so ansing are dealt with through the income
statement Foreign currency iransactions ansing during the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the
transaction All profits and losses on exchange ansing during the year are dealt with through the income statement
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

o) Research and development
Research expenditure 15 expensed when it 1s incurred Develepment expenditure 1s capitalised and written off over its expected usefut economec hife
where the following criterta are met

> An asset Is created that can be dentified,
> It s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
> The development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating to research and development projects 1s capitalised and written off aver the expected useful
life of those assets

p) Taxation

The tax currently payabie 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because
it excludes items of income and expenses that are taxable in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The
group’s lratlity for current tax 1s calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on taxable tempaorary differences between the tax basis of assets and habihities and
their carrying amounts n the financial statements A deferred tax asset 15 only recognised to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be avallable in the future to utihse It Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have then been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the
deferred tax habihity 1s settled

q) Goodwll

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Goodwill ansing an
acquisition of subsidiaries 1s included in Intangible assets, whilst goodwill ansing on acquisition of associates 1s included 10 investments (n
associates If an acquisition gives nse to negative goodwill this is credited directly to the incorne statement Fair value adjustments based on
provisional estimates are amended within one year of the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on all acquisihions prior to 1 April 1998 was written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated against reserves
Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions after 31 March 1998 1s treated as an intangible fixed asset

Goodwil! 1s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out above and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s
allocated to the cash generating unit that derives benefit from the goodwill fer impairment testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating umit and all or part of that unit 1s disposed of, the associated goodwill 15 included in the carrying
amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

r} Intangible non current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitahsed at cost and when acquired 1n a business combination are capitalised at fair value at the date
of acquisition Following initial recognition, the historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets Amortisation charged on assets with finite lives
1s taken to the iIncome statement through operating expenses

Finite Iife intangible assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over their estimated useful econormic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impairment exist

s) Trade recevables

Trade receivables are measured at fair value on initial recognition and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method unless there 1s objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired, where it 1s written down to 15 recoverable amount and the irrecoverable
amount Is recognised as an expense

t) Financial instruments

1) Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are inthially recognised at cost, being the net fair value of the consideration recewved After inhial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Where a loan or borrowing
1510 a fair value hedging relationship 1t 1s remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses
being recogrised in the income statement (see below)

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the fiabilities are derecogrised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process

) Denvative financial instruments and hedging activities

The group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such derivative instruments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently
remeasured at far value at the balance sheet date The fair value of cross currency swaps, mterest rate swaps and forward currency contracts 1s
calculated by reference to market exchange rates and interest rates at the penod end
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In relation to fair value hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or toss on the hedging instrument 1s taken
to the incorme statement where the etfective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item (see above)

In relation ta cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge aceounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that Is
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion 1n the income statement The gains or losses
deferred in equity in this way are recycled through the income staternent in the same penod in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commitment 1s recognised (n the income statement

Farward currency contracts and foreign currency borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign currency denominated operations and
to the extent that they are designated and effective as net investment hedges are matched in equity against changes in value of the related assets
Any ineffectiveness s taken to the iIncome statement

For dervatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, gains or losses are taken directly to the income staterment in the period

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated or exercised, or no lenger qualifies for hedge
accounting At that date any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity 1s kept in equity until the forecast transaction
occurs, or transferred to the iIncome statement if the forecast transaction (s no longer expected to occur

Derivatives embedded in other financial Instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair vatue, with gains and losses
reported In the income statement

u) Share based payments
The group operates a number of equity settled, share based compensation plans for employses The fair value of the employee services received In
exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The fair value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted calculated using an appropriate pricing
model, excluding the impact of any non market vesting conditions The number of awards that are expected to vest takes into account non market
vesting conditions including, where appropriate, continuing ermployment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as
a result of failing to meet a non market condition

v} Pre-contract costs
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred except where 1t 15 probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they are recognised as an
asset which i1s written off to the income staterment over the lile of the contract

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets {a disposal group) 1s avallable for mmediate sale and the sale 1s highly probable and expected to occur within
one year, then the disposal group 1s deemed as held for sale The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell

Where a group of assets, which comprises operations that can be clearly distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes from the
rest of the group (a component), has been disposed of or classified as held for sale and 1t

> represents a separate major ine of business or geographical area of operations, or
> 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major ine of business or geographical area of operations, or
> 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

then the component 1s classified as a discontinued operation

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Depreciation i1s nat
charged on such assets

x) Purchase of own shares
The group balance sheet incorporates the shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust (the Trust) and which have not vested
unconditronally by the balance sheet date These are shown as a deduction from shareholders’ funds untd such time as they vest

y) Trade payables
Jrade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method

z) Exceptional Hems

Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which indwidually or, if of a similar type, 1n aggregate should, in the opimon of the directors,
be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the finanoial statements are to give a true and fair view
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

3 New accounting policies and future requirements
The following statements have been ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and are Itkely to affect future financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standard 7 *Financial instruments Disclosures’ (IFRS 7) was issued in August 2005 and 1s required to be
implemented by Severn Trent from 1 Apnl 2007 The standard incorporates the disclosure requirements of 1AS 32, which 1t supersedes and adds
further quantitative and qualitative disclosures n relation to financial instruments

International Financial Reporting Standard 8 ‘Operating Segments’ (IFRS B) was 1ssued 1n November 2006 and Is required to be implemented by
Severn Trant from 1 April 2009 The standard requires identification of operating segrments based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by
the chief aperating decision maker (n order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance The impact of the standard on Severn
Trent's financial statements is not expected to be significant since the group’s segmental reporting already closely reflects reports regularly
reviewed by the Chief Executive and the board

IFRIC 11 “Group and Treasury Share Transactions” was I1ssued in November 2006 The interpretation addresses accounting for share based
payments In the separate financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries As such it 1s not applicable to the consolidated financial
statements of Severn Trent Plc

IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” was 1ssued in November 2006 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Jrent from 1 April 2008
The interpretation draws a distinction between two types of services concession arrangement, those where the operator receives a financial asset,
specifically an uncenditional contractual right to receive cash ar anather financial asset from a government body in return for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, and those where the operator recerves an intangible asset, the right to charge for the use of the public sector asset
that it constructs or upgrades The interpretation will be applicable to the group's contracts with the UK Ministry of Defence ("MoD") and 1s
expected to result in the recognition of both a financral asset in respect of the right to receive cash in return for upgrading the MoD assets and an
intangible asset ansing from the right to provide water and sewerage services

IAS 23 (revised) was issued in March 2007 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Trent from 1 Apnl 2009 The revision to the standard
removes the option of immedhately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that takes a substantial peniod of time to get ready for use or sale Such costs are therefore required to be capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset The revised standard will require Severn Trent to change its existing palicy and 1s likely to result in a proportion of
borrowing costs that are currently expensed being capitalised in property plant and equipment or intangible assets The costs will then be
amortised over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets

The directors assess that the other standards and interpretations 1ssued but not yet effective are not appticable to the group

4  Sigmficant accounting jJudgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the group 1s required to make certain judgments, estimates and assumptions that it
believes are reasonable based on the information avallable The more significant judgments and key assumptions and sources of estimation
uncertainty are summarnised below

(a) Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwilt 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units ("CGU") to which gocdwill has
been allocated The value in use calculatron requires the group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arse from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate to calculate present value Detaills of the assumptions used are set out in note 15 to the financial statements

(b) Depreciation and carrying amounts of property plant and equipment
Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for property, plant and equiprnent requires estimates to be made of the useful
lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering data and the group's expenence of similar assets Details are set outin note 2 (e)

{c) Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group's retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires assumptions to be
made concerning long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and longevity of current and future
pensioners Changes in these assumptions could sigrificantly impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The
group makes assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries Details of the assumptions
made are set out In note 28 to the financial statements

{d) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requeres jJudgments to be made regarding the result of negotiations with and enquines from tax
authorities 1n a number of jurisdictrons The assessments made are based on adwvice from independent tax advisers and the status of engoing
discusstons with the relevant tax authonbes
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5 Segmental analysis

The group 15 organised into twe main business segments

Water and Sewerage

Provides water and sewerage services to domestic and commercial custorners in England and Wales

Water Technologies and Services

Provides services and products associated with water, waste water and contaminated land principally in the US, UK and Europe

Corporate and Other

Following the sale of Severn Trent Property and ather property interests, the sole remamning other business 15 the group's corporate insurance
company Henceforth this I1s reported together with unallocated corperate costs as Corporate and Other in the segmental analysis All prior year

numbers have been restated for comparative purposes

The group :s also organised into geographical regions, UK, US and Eurepe Geographical information is classsfied by the location of the principal

cperations of each business umit

a) Pnmary reporting format - business segment

Water
Water Technologles
and and Corporate
Sewerage Services and Other  Eliminations  Consalidated
2007 £m £m Em im £m
External sales 1,2163 2626 13 - 1,4802
Inter segment sales 18 263 90 (37 1) -
Total sales 12181 2889 103 (371) 14802
Profit before interest, tax
and exceptional items 4130 197 (26 3) (1n 4053
Exceptional items (note 8) 213 147 (113} - 247
Profit befare interest and tax 4343 344 (37 6) (11) 43C 0
Share of results of associates
and joint ventures - 08 {03) - 05
Segment result 4343 352 (37 9) (11) 4305
Total net finance costs (105 0)
Profit before tax 3255
Tax {76 9)
Profit from continuing operations 2486
Profit frorn discontinued operations (note 12) 200
Profit for the period 268 6
Discontinued operattons include
Wasie us
Management Laboratones Ehminations Total
£m £m £m £m
External sales 4010 944 - 495 4
Inter segment sales 39 17 (56) -
Total sales 4049 961 (56) 495 4
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 512 80 - 582
Exceptional items {note 8) - (315) - 315
Share of results of asscciates and joint ventures 05 - - 05
Segment result 517 (239 - 282

Severn Trent 55

S3U3WA)R)S |2IDURUL) dROJE)



Notes to the group financial statements continued

a) Primary reporting format - business segment (continued)

Water
Water Technologies
and and Corporate
Sewerage Services and Other Ehrminations  Consolidated
2006 &m £m m £m £m
External sales 1,1485 2770 298 - 1,4553
Inter segment sales 24 228 285 (54 7} -
Total sales 1,1509 2898 593 (547) 14553
Profit before interest, tax
and exceptional iterms 4004 171 (257 12 3930
Exceptional items (note 8) (4 8) - (109) - (157)
Profit before interest and tax 3956 171 (36 6) 12 3773
Share of results of associates
and joint ventures - 16 {05 - 11
Segment result 3956 187 (37 1) 12 3784
Total net finance costs (200 6)
Profit before tax 1778
Tax (54 2)
Profit from conttnuing operations 1236
Protit from discontinued operations (note 12) 994
Profit for the period 2230
Discontinued operations include
Wasle u
Management Laboratories Eliminations Total
£m im £m £m
External sales 764 1 1340 - 8981
Inter segment sales 66 08 (74 -
Total sales 7707 1348 (74) 8981
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 852 59 - 911
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 10 - - 10
Segment result 862 59 - 921
Other segment items are
Water
Water Technologies
and and Corporate
Sewerage Services and Other Eliminations  Consolidated
2007 £m £m £m m £m
Capital expenditure 3995 61 - (4 3) 401 3
Depreciation and amortisation 2412 66 03 (39) 2446
Water
Water Technologies
and and Corporate
Sewerage Services and Other Ellminations Consolidated
2006 £m £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure 3356 67 02 (33 3392
Depreciation and amortisation 2197 67 40 42) 2262
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The segment assets and habilities are as follows

Water Unallocated

Water and  Technologies Corporate

Sewerage and Services  Ehmunations and Other Consohdated
2007 £m £m £m £m &m
Assets
Segment assets 58947 2255 (169) 1417 6,2450
Interests 1n assoc:ates and joint ventures 05 34 - - 39

58952 2289 (169) 1417 6,2489
Group total assets 6,2489
Liabilities
Segment habilities (618 7} {66 3) -  (44266) (51116)
Group total habiiities {5,111 6)

Water Unallocated

Waterand Technologies corparate

Sewerage and Services  Elirminations and Other Consolidated
2006 £m £m £m £m im
Assets
Segment assets 56716 2413 1610 (159) 60580
Interests In associates and joint ventures 04 197 1) - 287

56720 2610 1696 (159) 60867
Assets relating to discentinued operations 10394
Group total assets 71261
Liabilities
Segment Labihties (653 8) (776) (4,2452) - (49766)
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations (250 5)
Group total liabiliiies {5,227 1)

Assets relating to discontinued operations includes interests 1n associates and Joint ventures amounting to £0 6m

Segment assets comprise goodwill and other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventories, derivatives destgnated as hedges for
future transactions, receivables and operating cash Deferred taxation, investments and derivatives designated as hedges of borrowings are all

included in unallocated corporate assets

Segment habilities comprise operating labihties Taxation and corporate borrowings and related hedging denvatives are all included in unallocated

corparate llabilities

Severn Trent 57

sjuaLWaje}s [enueuly dnoiy



Notes to the group financial statements continued

The entrre Waste Management segment has been divested and its results are included 1n discontinued operations in 2006/07 The comparative

figures have been restated to reflect the current year classification Following the disposal of the US Laboratories business, which ts also included
in discontinued operations In both years, the former Water Purification and Qperating Services and Laboratories segments have been reclassifted
The UK Laboratones business, which farmerly was included n the Laboratories segment, 1s now included in the Water Technologies and Services

segment Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the new classification as follows

Water

purnification Water

and operating UK technologies

services Laboratories  Eliminations  and sernces

(as previously stated) (restated)

£m £m £m

Turnover 2678 320 - 2998

Profit before interest, tax and

exceptional items 120 51 - 171
Exceptional items - - - _
Profit before interest and tax 120 51 - 171
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 16 - - 16
Segment result 136 51 - 187
Segment assets 2340 257 (184) 2413
Interests in associates and joint ventures 197 - - 197
2537 257 (18 4) 2610
Segment habtlities (65 8) (82) (36) (77 6)

b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

The group's turnover from continuing operations analysed by geographical market (by destination) was as follows

Continuing Discontinued
actvities actvities

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

Turnover
UK 1,2888 1,253 2 3870 7057
us 1241 1402 94 3 1340
Europe 334 68 141 584
Other 339 251 - -
14802 1,455 3 495 4 8981

The carrying amount of the group’s assets and additions to property plant and equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets

are located was as foliows

Tolal assets Capital
based on location expenditure

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
UK 6,1031 59536 3983 3349
us 586 672 30 43
Europe 872 659 - -
6,248 9 6,086 7 401 3 3392
Assets relating to discontinued achivities - 10394 390 876
6,2489 7,126 1 4403 4268

6 Revenue
2007 2006
{restated)
£m £m
Water and sewerage services 1,209 3 1,137 7
Other services 2177 2436
Sales of goods 595 629
Revenue from long term contracts 308 659
Eliminations (37 1) (54 8)
Total turnover 1,480 2 14553
Interest recevable (note 10) 57 23
Revenue from discontinued operations 6028 8000
Total revenue 1,988 7 2,3576
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7 Operating costs

2007 2006
(restated)
im £m
Wages and salaries (including exceptional restructuring costs £3 G million {2006 £4 8 mullion)) 2450 2538
Socal security costs 173 200
Pension costs (Including exceptional settlement on demerger £7 8 mullion (2006 nil)) 468 312
Total employee costs 3091 3050
Power 617 387
Raw materials and consumables 1033 1051
Rates 57 3 565
imparment of trade debtors 227 250
Service charges 276 275
Oepreciation of property, plant and equipment 2039 1885
Exceptional write off of decommissioned plant 119 -
Ameortisation of intangible fixed assets 288 277
Hired and contracted services 1294 1431
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 48 53
- other 31 29
Hire ot plant and machinery 54 40
Research and development expenditure 42 39
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {07) 29)
Foreign exchange gains 02) 1)
Water and Sewerage infrastructure maintenance expenditure 981 94 5
Excepiional demerger costs 89 78
Other operating costs 107 6 1114
1,186 9 1,1539
Release from deferred income (35) {4 6)
Qwn work caprtahised (76 9) (71 3}
Total operating costs 1,106 5 10780

Operating costs include £31 6 million (2006 £15 7 million) of exceptional costs Further details are given in note 8 The penston costs shown above

include current and past service costs Other pension costs (Interest costs, expected returns on assets and actuarial gains and losses) are included

in finance costs and the statement of recognised income and expense

During the year the following fees were charged by the auditers in respect of centinuing and discontinued activities

2007 2006

£m £m

Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual accounts 02 01
Fees payable to the company's auditors and their associates for other services to the group

- The audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 05 10

Total audit fees 07 11

- Other services pursuant to legislation 01 -

- Tax services - g2

- Other services 03 08

Total non audit fees cAa 10

Other services comprises controls reviews £0 1 milion and various other services £0 2 million (2006 forensic accounting services £0 3 million,

controls reviews £0 3 rmillion and various other sennices in total £0 2 rmillion)

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the remuneration report on pages 41 to 43
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

8 Exceptional items
A net exceptronal credit of £24 7 million arose in respect of continuing operations and an exceptional charge of £24 4 mullien arose in respect of
discontinued operations

The exceptional credit in continuing operations comprised

> Acharge of £14 9 million i1 water and sewerage arising from a programme to restructure and realign the business including wnte down of
decornmissioned assets £11 9 million and redundancy costs £3 million,

> Acharge of £16 7 mullion in corporate costs, ansing from the demerger of Biffa Plc, including £7 8 million relating to the settlement of pension
obligations, and,

> Acredit of £56 3 million of which £36 2 mullion arose from the disposal of properties in Severn Trent Water, £14 7 million arose in Water
Technologies and Services from the disposal of Aquafin and £5 4 million in Corporate and Other businesses from the disposal of Severn Trent
Property and other property assets

The exceptional charge in discontinued operations comprised

> Acharge of £31 5 mithon arnsing from the impairment of goodwifl relating to US Laboratories (see note 15},
> Aloss of £2 4 milhon on the sale of US Laboratories, and
> A gain of £9 5 million on the sale of Biffa Belgium

A net exceptional charge of £15 7 million arose in the year ending 31 March 2006 This comprised

An exceptional restructuning charge of £7 9 million arose compnising

>  £4 B million arising in Severn Trent Water as a result of costs associated with a redundancy programme undertaken to meet AMP4 efficiency
targets, and

> anet£31 million ansing in Systems relating to the cessatton of trading with external customers and disposal of the Worksuite and
CIS operations

£7 8 million of costs arose relating to the demerger of Biffa and other strategic reviews undertaken

9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year (full ime equivalent)

2007 2006 ‘
(restated)
Number Number
By type of business
Water and Sewerage 5,289 5188 |
Water Technologies and Services 2,984 2,966 ‘
QOther Businesses and Corporate 99 350
Continuing operations 8,372 8,504
hscontinued operations 4,089 7,808

12,4861 16,312

10 Net finance costs

2007 2006
(restated)
im £m
Investment income
Interest receivable on bank deposits 54 13
Expected return on defined benefit scheme assets 806 706
Other financial income 03 10
863 729 |
|
Finance costs '
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (28 a) (24 5)
Interest on other loans (122 6) (1207) I
Interest on finance leases (20 2) (228)
Total borrowing costs (171 2) (168 0)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligations (67 5) 669
Other financial expenses 14) a9
Total finance costs (240 1) (236 8)
Fair value movements on treasury instruments 48 8 367
Net finance costs (105 0) (200 6)
Fair value movements on treasury instruments cormprise
Net gain/(loss) on debt and swaps n fair value hedges 07 07
Gain/(loss) ansing on revalution of derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships 527 {(315)
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (46) (4 5)
Fair value movements on treasury instruments 48 B (36 7)
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11 Taxation
a) Anal f t h th
) ysis of tax charge tn the year 2007 2006
(restated)
£m £m
Current tax
Continuing cperations
Current year at 30% 679 758
Prior year at 30% (94) (143)
Total current tax relating to continuing operations 585 615
Current tax relating to discontinued operations 92 (127}
Total current tax 677 438
Deferred tax
Continuing operations
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences — current year 350 05)
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - prior year (16 6) (68)
Total deterred tax relating to continuing operations 184 (73)
Deferred tax relating to discentinued operations 60 15
Total deferred tax 244 58
Total tax charge relating to continuing operations 769 54 2
Total tax charge relating to discontinued operations 152 (112)
921 430

Total tax charge

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The tax expense for the current year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2007 and 2006 30%) The ditferences are

explained below

2007 2006
£&m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Continuing operations 3255 1778
Discontinued operations 352 882

3607 2660

Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK {2007 and 2006 30%) 1082 798
Tax effect of share of results of associates and Joint ventures 01 03
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible 1in determining taxable profit 59 149
Effect of different rates of tax in overseas junisdicticns (©6) (13
Adjustments in respect of prior years (215) (507
Total tax charge 921 430

The adjustements In respect of prior years arose as a result of agreeing open computations with the relevant tax authorities and, in 2007, the

recognihion of a deferred tax asset of £7 7 million for previously unrecognised tax losses in the USA

c) Tax charged directly to equity
in addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged directly to equity

2007 2006
£m £m

Current tax

Tax on exchange differences on foreign currency hedging 19 (18)
Total current tax charged directly to equity i9 {18)
Deferred tax

Tax on actuanal losses/gains 43) 80
Tax on cash flow hedging 32 14
Tax on share based payments (06) 08}
Total deferred tax charged directly to equity a7 86
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

12 Disconttnued operations

Pursuant to the Group's strategy to focus on water the following transactions took place during the year

0On 30 June 2006 the Group completed the sale of Biffa Belgium to Veolia Proprete SA for net consideration of £23 7 million,

On 6 October 2006 the Group completed the de-merger of Biffa Ple, and

On 29 December 2006 the Group completed the sale of Severn Trent Laboratories Inc to TestAmerica Holdings Inc for net consideration of

£77 1 million
a) Profit from discontinued operations
2007 2006
(restated)
£m im
Turnover 4954 8981
Operating costs (436 2) (807 Q)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional itemns 592 911
Net finance costs (01) (39)
Share of (joint ventures and associates 05 10
Profit before tax and exceptional items 596 882
Tax (15 2) 112
Profit after tax 44 4 994
Exceptional impairment of goodwill (315) -
Exceptional gain on disposal of discontinued operations 71 -
Attributable tax expense - -
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations 200 99 4
b) Cash flows from discontinued operations
2007 2006
(restated)
£m £m
Net cash flows from operating actwities 753 1386
MNet cash flows from investing activities (26 2) (835
Net cash fiows from financing activities 3317 93)
3808 458
¢} Earnings per share from discontinued operations
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Per share number Per share
Earmings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount
(restated) (restated) (restated)
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earmings per share from discontinued operations 200 2329 86 994 2310 430
Diluted earntngs per share from discontinued operations 200 2351 85 994 2330 427
13 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period
2007 2006
Pence Pence
per share £m per share £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006/2005 3197 1114 3030 1048
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007/2006 2277 529 1916 665
Special dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2007 165 00 5752 - -
21974 7395 49 46 1713
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 3868 903

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these

financial statements

On the demerger of Biffa Ple the ordinary share capial of the company was consolidated with the mtention that the share pnee of Severn Trent Plc
shares would be similar before and after the demerger Two new Severn Trent shares were 1ssued for every three old Severn Trent shares held The
per share amounts disclosed above in respect of dividends declared before the consolidation are the amounts that were declared on the shares in

1ssue at the time They have not been restated ior the share consolidation
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14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordwnary
shares in I1ssue duning the year, excluding those held 1n the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earmngs per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all potenbally dilutive
ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price 15 less than the average market price of the

company's shares during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of profi from continuing operations attributable to the
equity helders of the company The weighted average number of shares for the year ended 31 March 2006 has been restated to reflect the 2 for 3
share consolidation that was approved at the extraordinary general meeting on 6 October 2006

From continuing operations

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Per share number Per share
Earnings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount
(restated) {restated) (restated)
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share 2471 2329 106 1 1222 2310 529
Effect of dilutive options - 22 (10) - 20 (05)
Diluted earmings per share 2471 2351 1051 1222 2330 524
From continuing and disconbinued operations
2007 2006
Waighted Weighted
average average
number Per share number Per share
Earmings of shares amount Earmings of shares amount
{restated) (restated) (restated)
£m m pence im m pence
Basic earnings per share 2671 2329 1147 2216 2310 959
Effect of dilutive options - 22 (11) - 20 (08)
Diluted earnings per share 2671 2351 1136 2216 2330 951

Supplementary earnings per share

Supplementary adjusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing cperations These exclude the effects of deferred tax, fair value
movements on treasury instruments and exceptionai items in both 2007 and 2006 The directors consider that the supplementary figures provide

a useful additional indicator of performance

From continuing operations

2007 2006
Wesghted Weighted
average average
number Per share numoer Per share
Earnings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount
(restated) (restated) (restated)
Em m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share 2471 2329 1061 1222 2310 529
Effect of
Exceptional restructuring costs
and termination of operations 1489 - 64 79 - 34
Exceptional demerger and related costs 16 7 - 72 78 - 34
Exceptional prafit en disposal
of property and businesses (56 3) - (24 2) - - -
Current tax related to exceptional items at 30% - - - (24) - (10)
Fair value maovements
on treasury instruments (48 8) - 210y 367 - 159
Deferred tax 184 - 79 73 - (32
Adjusted earnings per share before exceptional items, fair value
movements on treasury instruments and deferred tax 192.0 2329 824 1649 2310 714
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

14 Earmings per share continued

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Per share number Per share
Earntngs of shares amount Earmings of shares amount
{restated) (restated) (restated)
im m pence £m m pence
From continuing operatiens
Diluted earnings per share 2471 2351 1051 1222 2330 524
Effect of
Exceptional restructuring costs
and termination of operations 149 - 63 79 - 34
Exceptional demerger and related costs 167 - 71 78 - 33
Exceptional profit on disposal
of property and businesses {56 3) - (23 9) - - -
Current tax related to exceptional items at 30% - - - 24 - (10}
Fair value movements
on treasury instruments {48 8) (20 B) 367 - 158
Deferred tax 184 - 78 (73) - 31
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before exceptional items,
fair value movements on treasury instruments and deferred tax 1920 2351 81,6 1649 2330 708
15 Goodwill
2007 2006
&m £&m
Cost and net book value
At 1 April 506 3 4991
Acquisition of businesses - 01
Impairment of US Laboratories (see below) (315 -
Disposal of subsidianes (414 1) (0 1)
Additions - 14
Adjustment to consideration on acquisitions in prior years (03) -
Classified as held for sale - (21)
Exchange adjustments (11.3) 79
At 31 March 491 5063
Goodwill impairment tests
Goodwill 1s allocated te the group's cash generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment
A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU 1s presented below
2007 2006
£m £m
Water Technologies and Services
Water Punification US 210 238
Contract Operations US 96 168
UK Services 02 o2
UK Laboratories 120 123
Services ltaly 63 64
491 535
Discontined Operations
Biffa UK - 3805
US Laboratenes - 623
491 5063
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The recoverable amount of a CGU s deterrmined using value 1n use calculations These calculations use cash flow projecttons based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five year period Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an estimated ncrminal
growth rate stated below The growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates

Nominal growlh rate Discount rate
2007 2006 2007 2
% % % %
Water Technologles and Services 30 30 115 110

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the business segment The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reparts The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the segment

On 4 September 20086, the group agreed to sell its US Labaratories business to TestAmerica Haldings Inc for £77 1 million This resulted in
an impairment of £31 5 millien in the goodwill relating to the US Laboratories business, which was recognised 1n the group's interim financial
statements This transaction was completed on 29 December 2006 {see note 35)

16 Intangible assets

Computer Other
software assets Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2005 204 2 292 2334
Acquired (n business combination - 01 01
Additions 278 12 290
Disposals (14 6) (15) (1e 1)
Classified as held for sale (13) 03) {186)
Reclassifications and transfer 37 @h {131)
Exchange adjustments 01 06 07
At 1 Apni 2006 2125 199 2324
Additions 203 12 215
Disposals {8 2) (01) (9 3)
Disposal of subsidianes (24) (36) (60)
Exchange adjustments {(02) {0 6) (0 8)
At 31 March 2007 2210 168 2378
Amortisation
At 1 Apnil 2005 (98 1) {95) (107 6)
Amortisation for year (275) (18) (29 3)
Dispesals 140 13 153
Classified as held for sale 12 02 14
Reclassifications and transfer 20 (14) 06
Exchange adjustments oy (03 04
At 1 April 2006 {108 5) (11 5) (1200)
Amcrtisation for year (27 8) (16) (29 4)
Disposals 83 - 83
Disposal of subsidianes 14 27 41
Exchange adjustments 01 03 04
At 31 March 2007 (126 5) (101) (136 6)
Net book value
At 31 March 2007 945 67 1012
At 31 March 2006 1040 84 1124

Other assets primarily comprise capitalised development costs, brands and patents
Intangible assets include internally generated software of £108 8 million (2006 £112 4 mullion) Additions during the year totalled £4 7 mihon
{2006 £25 4 milhon)
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Infra

Fixed plant

Land and structure and Movable
Butldings assets equipment plant Total
im £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2005 22463 36093 26779 651 8,598 6
Acquisition of businesses - - 01 - 01
Additions 1011 809 2062 106 35978
Disposals (57) (06} (68 6) (132) (88 1)
Reclassifications and transfers 231 - {19 8) - 33
Classified as held for sale (182) - {62 8B) - B10)
Exchange adjustments 24 - 66 10 100
At 1 April 2006 23490 36896 2,7386 635 88407
Additions 1074 983 2137 80 427 4
Disposals {197} (14} (68 B) (130} (102 9)
Disposal/demerger of subsidiaries (3702) - (364 4) - (734 6)
Exchange adjustments (39) - (117) (03) (159)
At 31 March 2007 2,0626 3,7865 2,507 4 582 8,4147
Depreciation
At 1 April 2005 (7316) (9584) (1,2382) (310) (2959 2)
Charge for year (63 7) (20 5) (176 2) (75) (267 9}
Disposals 56 06 686 112 860
Reclassifications and transfers (100 - 24 - (76)
Classified as held for sale 143 - 440 - 583
Exchange adjustments (10) - (56) 086) (72)
At 1 Apnit 2006 (7864) (8783) (1.3050) (279) (30976}
Charge for year (59 6) {21 3) (166 0) (76) (254 5)
Disposals 133 14 553 113 813
Disposal/demerger of subsidiaries 1863 - 1781 - 3644
Exchange adjustrments 32 - 96 - 128
At 31 March 2007 (643 2) (998 2) (1,228 (24 2) (2,893 6)
Net book value
At 31 March 2007 1,419 4 27883 1,2794 340 55211
At 31 March 2006 15626 27113 1,4336 356 57431
The carrymng amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases
Infra Fixed plant
Land and siructure and Movable
Buildings assets equipment plant Total
£im m Lm £m £m

Net book value
At 31 March 2007 - 127 2 1851 - 31213
At 31 March 2006 193 1272 2329 - 3794

Fixed plant and equipment includes £180 3 million (2005
deprectation 1s charged
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18 Interests in joint ventures

2007 2006
£m £m

Group'’s share of
Long term assets 01 09
Current assets 09 42
Current habilities (0 6) 70
Long term liabilities - -
Amounts due {rom joint ventures 01 117
05 97

Group’s share of
Turnover 16 29
Cperating costs (11) (19)
Operating profit 05 10
Finance costs ©2) (04)
Profit before tax 03 06
Tax 01 01
Profit after tax 02 05

The joint venture has no significant contingent liabilities to which the group 1s exposed and the group does not have any significant contingent
liabihties 1n relation to its interests in the joint venture The group has no capital ceommitrnents 10 relation to its Interests in the joint venture

Particulars of the group's joint venture undertaking at 31 March 2007 are

Percentage
Nature of share A ordinary B ordinary
of business  capital held shares of £1  shares of £1
Cognica Limited Asset Management 50% 100,600% 100,000

*Held by the group

The country of incorporation and main operation of the joint venture 1s Great Brnitain and 1t 1s registered in England and Wales
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

19 Interests in associates

2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 April 19.6 163
Additions - 30
Disposals (15 0) -
Share of profits 09 16
Dividends recewvable 1s) (15)
Cther movements (0 6) 02
At 31 March 34 196
Group's share of
Total assets 146 3309
Total liabilities (11 2) (3113)
34 196
Turnover 246 419
Profit before tax 09 16

On 7 July 2006 the group sold its interest in Aguafin NV tc the Flermish Government for approproximatly £29 6 millign

The associate company has no significant contingent liabiities to which the group Is exposed and the group does not have any significant

contingent habilities in relation to its interest in the associate The group has no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the associate

The associate at 31 March 2007 was

Percentage
of share Nature of
Equity interest  capital held business
Sl Societa Consortile per Azioni 19,536,000 0f £1 25%, Water and sewerage

The country of incorporation and main operation is Italy
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20 Financial instruments

The group's palicies in respect of foreign currency and interest rate nisk management and the related use of financial instruments, which form part

of these financial statements, are set out below

a) Financial habihties analysed by currency and interest rate after taking account of various currency and interest rate swaps entered into by

the group

At 31 March 2007

Fixed rate borrowings

Weighted

average

Weighted penod for

Non interest Floating Fixed average which

2007 beanng inferest interest interest interest

Total labilities rate rate rate 15 fixed

Currency im im Em £m LA Years

Sterling 32952 261 1,1106 21585 57 135
Euro 85 €8 vy -
US dollar 29 29 - -
Total financial habihities at 31 March 2007 3,306 6 358 1,112 3 2,158 5

At 31 March 2006
Fixed rate borrowings

Weighted

average

Werghted period for

Non nterest Floating Fixed average which

2006 bearing interest interest interest interest

Total labiities rate rate rate 15 fixed

Currency im im im £m % Years

Sterhing 31129 436 9417 2,127 6 57 146
Euro 364 67 297 -
US dollar 138 gl 47 -
Total financial habilities at 31 March 2006 31631 554 9761 2,1276

Non-interest bearing habilities relate to onerous contracts and trade payables The weighted average period to matunity of the onerous contracts 1s
46 years (1 5 years) Trade payables are all due \n under 1 year

Included 1n the fixed rate debt above, the group has entered into a number of forward start accruing interest rate swaps These had an inshial
national value of £19 6 million and commence accreting notional value between 31 March 2007 and 2032 The maximum notional value of these

swaps 1s £135 0 million These swaps are floating to fixed and bear fixed interest at between 532% and 552%

The group has also entered into £236 0 rmillion of {orward start interest rate swaps (floating to fixed) that commence between May 2007 and May
2009 These swaps all terminate (n 2010 These interest rate swaps bear interest between 4 54% and 4 87%

Floating rate sterling denominated borrowings bear interest based on LIBOR, whilst euro denominated borrowings bear interest based on EURIBOR
and dollar borrowings bear interest based on dollar LIBOR

b) Investments in interest earning assets analysed by currency after taking account of various currency swaps entered into by the group

2007 2006

Currency im £m
Sterling deposits 1000 878
Sterling cash at bank 432 54 8
1432 1426

Sterling assets receive interest based on LIBID

Of the total £143 2 million interest earning assets, there 15 £49 6 million of cash held on short term deposit as secunty for external insurance, as
part of Derwent's reinsurance obligations In addition, Severn Trent Water has & total of £1 9 mullion on short term depasit as security for self

insurance obligations
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

c¢) Monetary assets and habilities by currency, excluding the functional currency

At 31 March 2007

MNet foreign currency monetary assets
US dollar Eurp Other Total
£m £m im £&m
Functional currency of operation
Sterling 02 10 - 12
At 31 March 2006
Net foreign currency monetary assets
US dollar Euro her Total
£m £m £m &m
Functional currency of operation
Sterling 57 Q7 - 64

Net currency gains/(losses) ansing from monetary assets/(labilities) not in the functional currency of an operation are recegnised in s income
statement Those ansing from the translation of US dollar and eure functionat currency financial statements into sterling are recognised in the

statement of recognised income and expense

d) Financial habilibes analysed by maturity date

Loans
payable by
instalments
any of which
are payable Other Other
after five repayment Finance financial 2007 2006
Overdrafts years terms leases liabilities Total Total
£m im £m £m £m £m £m
Current financial habilities 01 17 5973 327 333 6651 8666
Financial iabihties due after one year
Between one and two years - - 2137 409 03 2549 1645
Between two and five years - - 190 6 1056 06 2968 5543
After more than five years - 355 18234 2293 16 2,0898 15777
Non current financial habilities - 355 22277 3758 25 2,6415 22965
01 372 28250 4085 358 3,306 6 3,163 1

£461 0 milhan of funding instrurmnents contain certain financial covenants, breach of which can trigger early repayment
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e) Borrowing facihties
The group has the following undrawn commutted borrowing facilities available {all at floating rates)

2007 2006
£m £m

Expiring within one year - -
Expiring in more than one, but not more than two years - -
Expiring in more than two, but not more than five years 5000 5000

5000 5000

In addition, the group has a commutied facility of £80 mulhon (2006 £80 0 mulion), of which up to £60 mullion may be drawn in the form of
money market borrowings and the balance not utihsed by such drawings may be drawn as overdraft The amount undrawn at the year end was
£47 2 million {2006 £mib)

f) Derwvative contracts

2007 2006
Assets Liabihtles Assets Liabilitres
£m £m £m £m

Cross currency swaps — hedges of net investment - - - -
Cross currency swaps — jair value hedges 31 (65 3) 31 (370}
Cross currency swaps - not qualifying for hedge accounting 12 - 39 -
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 39 (05) 06 (30)
Interest rate swaps - net qualifying for hedge accounting 125 (57 5) 69 (104 5)
Total 207 (123 3) 145 (144 5)
Less non-current portion

Cross currency swap — fair value hedges 27 557) 31 27 1)
Interest rate swap - cashflow hedges 39 (05) 06 B0
Total 66 (56 2) 37 (30D
Current portion 141 (67 1) 108 (114 4}

Interest rate swaps
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swaps contracts at 31 March 2007 was £1,273 rmillion (2006 £1,232 milliom)
The fixed interest rates vary from 4 38% to 6 45% The main floating rate 1s LIBOR

Included within this are interest rate swaps with a notional value of £1,432 million (2006 £850 millien) which do not gualify for hedge accounting
The group has an engoing debt requirement and these swaps aim to fix the interest rates paid on a pertfolio of variable debt of various terms As it
15 not possible to specifically match these swaps to individual debt instruments, they do not qualify for hedge accounting

Cross currency swaps
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding cross currency swap contracts at 31 March 2007 was £491 3 mullion (2006 £467 6 million)
These swap a variety of currencies into sterling

Hedge of net investments in foreign entities

During the year the group held a US dollar cross currency swap that was designated as a hedge of net investment 1n the group's US subsidiaries
The swap matured in January 2007 and was not replaced The foreign exchange gain of £6 4 millan (2006 loss of £5 3 million) was recognised
in hedging reserves 1n shareholders’ equity
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

g) Faur values of financial instruments
Financ¢ial instruments by category

Asset/(hability)

2007 2006
Book value Fatr value Book value Fair value
£m £m &m £m

Primary financial snstruments held or 1ssued to finance the group's operations
Trade recewables 1813 1813 3026 3026
Short-term deposits 1000 1000 878 878
Cash at bank and in hand 432 432 548 54 8
Borrowings falling due within ane year (631 8) {603.6) (308 2) (791 2)
Borrowings falling due after more than one year (2,6390) (2,5722) (22955) (246860)
Provisions for onerous contracts (21) (31) (22) (22)
Trade payables (327 (327 (57 3) (573
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the currency and interest rate profile
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments (41 6) (41 6) (100 ) (100 Q)
Currency instrument - cross currency swaps (61 Q) (610) (300 (300)
Total net financial lhabilities (3,0847) (2,9897) (28480) (30041
Other long term assets
Other fixed asset investments 02 02 05 05

Where available, market rates have been used to determine farr values When market prices are not availlable, fair values have been calculated by
discounting cash flows at prevailling interest rates

h) Financial risk factors

The group's activities expose it to a vaniety of financial nsks market nisk {Including currency nsk), credit risk, iquidity sk and interest rate nsk The
group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the group’s financial performance The group uses derwvative financial instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures

Risk management is carried cut by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors Group
Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges fimancial nisks in close co-operation with the group's operating unsts The board provides written principles
for overall sk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of surplus funds

(1) Market risk
The group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from net investments in foreign operations, primarily with
respect to the US dollar and the euro In addition, the group has a significant value of foreign currency debt, primarily in US dollars, yen and euros

Foreign exchange risk anses when transactions are denominated in a currency that 1s not the entity's functional currency To manage the foreign
exchange risk ansing from foreign currency debt the group enters into cross currency swaps with external parties

External foreign exchange contracts are designated at group level and company level as hedges of foreign exchange risk on specific assets,
lliabihities or future transactions on a gross basis

The group's nsk management policy 1s to hedge 100% of all foreign currency denominated debt

The group has certain investments 1n foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk Currency exposure
anising from the net assets of the group’s foreign operations 1s managed through borrowings and forward foreign exchange contracts denorminated
in the relevant foreign currencies

(n} Credit nisk

Operationally, the group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk It has policies 1n place to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit hustory, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence obliges it to continue to supply
domestic customers even in cases where bills are not pad

For financing purposes, derivative counterparties and cash transactions are imited to high credit quality financial institutions The group has
pelicies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any cne financial institution

() Liquidity nisk

Prudent kquidity risk management imphes maintaining sufficient cash balances and the avallability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit faciliies and the ability to close out market positions Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group Treasury
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping comrmitted credit lines available

(v) Cash flow and fair value interest rate nsk
The group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates

The group's interest rate risk anses from long term borrowings Borrowings 1ssued at vanable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate nisk

Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate sk Group policy 1s to maintain over 50% of its borrowings in fixed rate
instruments At 31 March 2007 some 69% of the group's net debt was fixed
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The group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk by using floating to fixed interest rate swaps Such interest rate swaps have the economic
effect of converting borrowings from Hoating rates to fixed rates Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the group agrees with other parties
to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly semi annually), the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rates calculated by
reference to the agreed notional principal amounts The group has entered into a series of long dated nterest rate swaps to hedge future debt
Economically these act to fix floating rate debt within the group, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict criteria of IAS 39 This has
led to a credit of £562 7 million (2006 charge of £31 5 million) in the income statement

1) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded n active markets {such as trading and available for sale securities) 1s based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group 1s the current bid price

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded 1n an active market (for example, over the counter derivatives) 1s determined by using
valuation techniques The group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for the debt The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date

The nominal value less impairment provision of trade recevables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values The fair value of
financial liabilitres for disclosure purposes 15 estmated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s
avallable to the group for similar financial instruments

21 Available for sale financial assets

2007 2006
£m im
Investments in unquoted equity instruments 02 (632]

The fair values of the unqueted equity instruments cannot be measured reliably since there 1s no active market In the instruments Hence the
investments are held at cost It 1s not possible to determine a range of estimates within which the fair values are highly likely to e

22 Inventory
2007 2006
&m £m
Inventory and work 1n progress 224 341
Development land and properties - 203
224 544

Following the disposal of Severn Trent Property the group no longer holds develepment land and properties
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

23 Trade and other receivables

2007 2006
£m £m
Trade recelvables 2560 3727
Less provision for impairment of recevables (747) (70 1)
Trade recelvables — net 1813 3026
Recelvables from related parties 03 03
Corporation tax recoverable - 01
Other amounts receivable 378 121
Prepayments and accrued income 1677 166 4
3871 4815
The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair values
There 15 no concentration of credit nisk with respect to trade recevables
Prepayments include £8 2 million (2006 £9 & million} in respect of amounts due from customers for contract work
24 Cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 432 548
Short term bank deposits 1000 878
1432 1426

Of the £100 0 mullion of short term bank depasits, £51 5 milion ts net available for use by the group Further details are given in note 20 (&)

Cash and bank ¢verdrafts include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement

2007 2006

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 1432 1426
Bank overdrafts (note 25) 01) (322)
1431 1104
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25 Borrowings

2007 2006
£&m £m
Bank overdratfts 01 322
Bank loans 462 6 3814
Other loans 2,399 6 2,2013
QObligations under finance leases 408 5 4888
Borrowings 3,2708 3,1037
2007 2006
£m Lm

The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year {included in current habilities} 6318 8082
In the second year 254 6 1636
In the third to fifth years inclusive 296 2 5542
After five years 2,088 2 15777
Inciuded 1n non current habilities 2,6390 2,2955

3,2708 3,1037

The group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies after taking account of cross currency swaps

2007 2006

£m £m

Sterling 3,2691 30694
Euro 17 256
US dotlar - 47

3,2708 3,1037

The fair values of the group’s barrowings were

2007 2006

£m £m

Bank overdrafts 01 322
Bank loans 4297 3587
Cther loans 2,1701 2,3801
Cbhgations under finance leases 408 5 4888

3,0084 3,2698

Fair values are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward (nterest rates related to the expected uming of payments
Fixed debt has a weighted average nterast rate of 5 7% (2006 5 7%) for a weighted average penod of 13 5 years (2006 14 6 years)
Further details of bank facihties are given in note 20

Cbhgations under finance leases are as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Gross abligations under finance leases 5882 7216
Less future finance charges (1797 (232 8)
Present value of lease cbligations 4085 4888

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 4 to 25 years at 31 March 2007 Interest terms are set at the inception of the lease, no leases
(2006 3 4%) were at fixed interest rates The weighted average effective rate payable on fixed rate leases was 4 3% 10 2006 The lease obligations
are secured against the related assets The fair value of the finance lease obligations 1s not significantly different from their carrying value

There were no contingeni rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not impose
restrictions on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

26 Trade and other payables

2007 2006
£m £m
Current habilittes
Trade payables 327 573
Social security and other taxes 67 479
Other payables 342 333
Accruals and deferred income 3315 3961
4051 54086
Non current habilities
Deferred income 1830 1515
Other payables - 27
Accrued expenses 53 45
1883 1587
The directors consider that the carrying value of trade payables 1s not matenally different from their fair values
Accruals and deferred income includes £2 5 millian (2006 £3 1 mithon) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work
27 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recogrised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting period
Fair
Retirement value of
Accelerated tax benefit finangial
depreciation obligation Tax losses  tnstruments Other Total
£m £m £m im £m £&m
At 1 April 2005 9213 {95 5) (12) (212) 635 8669
Charge/(¢redit) to income 102 209 01 (110) (2060} (58)
Charge/(credit) to equity - 80 - 14 (08} 86
Acquisitions/disposals 01 - - - - 01
Assets held for sale - - 10 - - 10
Exchange differences - - - - (1)) 06)
At 1 April 2006 9316 (66 &) (o (308) 361 8702
Charge/{credit) to income (84) 177 86) 147 90 244
Charge/(credit) to equity - {4 3) - 32 (08 (17
Acquisitions/disposals (35 126 07 - {123) (25)
Exchange differences o - 03 - 05 07
At 31 March 2007 9196 (40 6) 77N (129) 327 8911
Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset The offset amounts are as follows
2007 2006
&m £m
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months (44 8) (689)
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 47) (30)
(49 5) {719)
Deferred tax hability to be recovered after more than 12 months 9378 9328
Deferred tax hability to be recavered within 12 months 28 93
9406 9421
8911 8702

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, at the balance sheet date the group had unused tax (csses of £4 9 million (2006 £33 3 mullicn)

available for offset against future profits No asset has been recogrised for these losses since 1t 1s not probable that there will be suifictent taxable

profit available against which the losses can be uhiised

The Chancellor's budget announced proposed changes to the future rate of corporation tax and industrial buldings allowances that, if enacted in
the Finance Act, will iImpact the deferred tax pension and future tax charges The group is currently assessing the likely impact of these changes
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28 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined benefit schemes

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covering the majonty of UK employees The defined benefit schemes
are funded to cover future salary and pension Increases and their assets are held in separate funds administered by trustees A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme 1s carried out at regular intervals by an independent professionally qualfied actuary Under the defined benefit schemes,
members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion (varying between one thirtieth and one eightieth for each year of service) of
their salary for the final year of employment with the group or, If higher, the average af the highest three consecutive years salary in the last ten
years of employment The final salary sectiens of all of the pension schernes listed below are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme
participants 1s expected to rise and hence service costs are alsc expected to nse in the future

The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of their last formal actuarial valuation are as follows

UK defined benefit scheme Date of last formal actuanal valuation
Severn Trent Pension Scheme ("STPS"y* 31 March 2004
Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme (“SSPS") 31 March 2004
Severn Trent Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2006

* The STPS 1s by far the largest of the group's UK defined benefit schemes

On the demerger of Biffa Plc the company entered into an agreement with that company and the trustees of the STPS, the SSPS and the UK Waste
Pension Scheme (“UXWPS") whereby the assets and habilities relating to Biffa Plc employees in the STPS and the SSPS would be transferred to
the UKWPS with etfect from 31 March 2007 The group has ne continuing responsibility for the UKWPS following this agreement The net deficit
relating to Biffa Plc employees at the dermerger date was £39 mellion This has been included in the net assets that formed the dividend 1n specie
on demerger The reduction in the deficit between the demerger date and 31 March 2007 has been treated as an exceptional Joss on settlement of
L7 8 million

The group has an obligation to pay pension to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted by the Finance
Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benehts amounting to £7 5 mithon (2006 £11 5 mullian} s included n the retirement benefit obligation

The major assumptions used 0 the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the valuations of all
group schemes) were as follows

2007 2006
Price inflation 30% 27%
Salary increases 45% 42%
Pension ncreases in payment and deferment 30% 27%
Discount rate 54% 49%
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retiring now
- men (years}) 192 183
- wornen (years) 221 210
Longevity at age 65 for pensioners retining in 20 years
- men (years) 199 189
- women (years) 230 218
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

2007 2006
£m £m

Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost 411) (389)
Past service cost (04) (0 B)
Exceptional settlerment (7 8) -

(49 3) (38 7)

Amounts charged to net finance costs

Interest cost (73 0) (75 4)
Expected return on scheme assets . 870 792

140 38
Total amount charged to the income statement (353) (359)

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported 1n the staterment of recognised income and expense

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's oblhigations under defined benefit schemes 1s as follows

2007 2006
£m im
Present vatue of defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (14922 (1,6133)
Total fair value of assets 1,364 6 1,402 9
(127 6) (210 4)
Present value of defined benefit obligations -~ unfunded schemes (75 (115)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (135 1) (2219)
Movements In the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows
2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 16248 1,394 4
Service cost 415 397
Exceptional 1oss on settlement 78 -
Interest cost 730 754
Contributions from scheme members 75 106
Liabtlitries transferred to Biffa Ple (201 5) -
Actuarial losses recaogrised in the statement of recognised income and expense 37 1528
Benefits paid (57 1) (48 1)
At 31 March 1,499 7 1,624 8
Movements tn the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
2007 2006
im £m
At 1 Apnil 1,4029 1,076 9
Expected return on scheme assets 870 792
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 97 4 1052
Contributions from scheme members 75 1086
Assets transferred to Biffa Plc (162 5) -
Actuarial gains and losses recognised 1n the statement of recogrised income and expense (10 6) 179 1
Benefits paid (57 1) 48 1)
At 31 March 1,364 6 1,402 9
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The analysis of the assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were

2007 2006
Expected Fair vatue Expected Fair value
return of assets return of assets
£Em m
Equities 825% 8115 8 00% 8075
Gilts 465% 2485 417% 2617
Corporate bonds 5 40% 1032 4 40% 635
Property 6 55% 863 6 20% 814
Cash 525% 1151 370% 888
Total fatr value of assets 1,364 6 1,4029

The expected rate of return on scheme assets 1s based on market expectations at the beginming of the period for returns over the hfe of the beneftt
cbligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields at the balance sheet date For equities, an equity
risk premium has been added to the gilt rate

The actual return on scheme assets was £76 4 milhon (2006 £258 3 million)

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the year ending 31 March 2008 1s £47 million

The tustory of actual and expected performance of pension scherme assets and habilities 1s

2007 2006 2005

£m im im

Present value of defined benefit obligaticns (1,499 7) (16248) (13944
Fair value of scheme assets 1,364 6 1,4029 10769
Deficit in the schemes (135 1) (2219) (3175)
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets (10 6) 1791 375
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 37 (152 8) 57

Defined contnbution schemes

The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees In September 2001, the Severn Trent
Group Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contribution scheme) was established to ensure comphance with stakeholder legislation and to
provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent
Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The total cost charged to operating costs of £2 7 million (2006 £4 0 million} represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group at
rates specified In the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2007, no contributions (2006 £nil) due (n respect of the current reporting period had
not been paid ¢ver to the schemes

29 Provisions

Environmental Terminated
and landfill Onerous operations
restoration Restructuring Insurance contracts and disposals GCther Total
Em £m £m im £m £m im
At 1 Apnl 2005 774 135 275 37 - 07 1228
Charged to income statement 98 40 105 - 45 10 298
Utiisation of provision (122} (99) (Y (15) - (17 (346)
Unwinding of discount 23 - - - - - 23
Reclassification (0 8) - - - - 04 (04)
Amounts classified as held for sale (100) - - - - - (100)
Exchange differences 03 - - - - - 03
At 1 April 2006 66 8 76 287 22 45 04 1102
Charged to income statement 26 11 90 31 45 08 211
Utihsation of provision (40) (5 4) 81 (0 5) 31 on (21 B)
Unwinding of discount 12 - - - - - 12
Disposal of subsidiaries {66 6) - (35 (17 - - (718}
At 31 March 2007 - i3 261 31 59 0§ 389
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2007 2006
£m £m

Included in
Current habilities 67 301
Non current hiabihties 322 801
389 1102

Environmental and landfill restoratton provisions reflect costs to be incurred over the operational life of individual landfill sites and in the case
of aftercare costs, for up to 30 years thereafter Further details are explained in note 2 {I) Discounting 1s applied Following the disposal of Biffa
Belgium and the demerger of Biffa Plc the group no longer has any landfill operations

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed programimes

Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, 1s 2 wholly owned subsidiary of the group Prowvisions for claims are made as set out in
note 2 {) The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a peniod of up to five years from the balance sheet date

The anerous or loss making contract provision relates to specific contractual habilities either assumed with businesses acquired or ansing In
existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues The associated outflows are estimated to
occur over a period of ten years from the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it 1s probable will be paid in respect of claims ansing from
services performed by these businesses, overseas employee tax habiliies and the indemnities described 1n note 37 {c)

30 Share capttal

2007 2006
&m Zm
Total authorised share capital
346,783,834 ordinary shares of 97%4sp (2006 520,175,751 ordinary shares of 65%4sp) 3395 3395
Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital
233,164,566 ordinary shares of 977%sp (2006 348,093,283 ordinary shares of 65Hap) 2283 2272

On the dermerger of Biffa Plc the ordinary share capital of the company was conschdated with the intention that the share price of Severn Trent Plc
shares would be similar before and after the demerger Two new Severn Trent shares were 1ssued for every three old Severn Trent shares held

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 655p
At 1 April 2006 348,093,283 227 2
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, B23p or 831p
under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 1,062,231 07
Shares 1ssued at 680 5p, 688p, 720p, 738p, 934p, or 1,005 3p under the group’s Share Option Scheme 375,725 02
At 6 October 2006 349,531,239 2281
Share conselidation (116,510,413) -
Ordinary shares of 97 17/19p 233,020,826 2281
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, 823p or 831p
under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 67,837 01
Shares issued at 680 5p, 688p, 720p, 738p, 334p, or 1,005 3p under the group's Share Option Scheme 75,903 01
At 31 March 2007 233,164,566 2283
31 Share premium
2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 April 486 384
Employee share option scheme 89 102
At 31 March 575 486
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32 Other reserves

Capital Translation Total

redemption Infrastructure exchange Hedging other

reserve reserve resernve reserve Teserves

£m im £&m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2005 1561 3142 (38) (57 0) 4095
Total recogmised income for the period - - 216 13 229
At 1 Apri 2006 1561 3142 178 (55 7) 4324
Total recognised inceme for the period - - (259) 121 (134)
At 31 March 2007 1561 3142 (77 (43 6) 4190

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to fair value as deemed cost on transition to IFRS

The translation reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidhianes as well as foreign

exchange differences anising from hedges of net investment

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses an hedging instruments taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions of IAS 39

and the transition rules of (FRS 1

33 Movement in shareholders’ equity

Equity
atiributable
to the equity

Share Share Other Retained ofhstis:rr: Minority
capital premium reserves earnings Trent Plc interests Total
£m £m £m Em £m &m £m

At 1 April 2005 2258 384 4095 11161 1,789 8 19 1,7817
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 14 102 - - 116 - 116
- value of employees’ services - - - 41 41 - a1l
Dividends - - - (171 3) (1713) (eI} (1720)
Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity - - - 08 o8 - 08
Total recognised income for the perod - - 229 2385 2614 14 2628
At 1 April 2006 2272 486 4324 1,1882 1,896 4 26 1,8990
Share cptions and LTIPs
- proceeds frorm shares 1ssued 11 89 - - 100 - 100
- value of employees’ services - - - 36 36 - 36
Dividends - - - (7395) (739 5) {10) (740 5)
Deferred tax onitemms posted directly to equity - - - 06 06 - 06
Demerger of Biffa Plc - - - (280 1) (280 6) - (280 6)
Total recognised income for the period - - (13 4) 2571 2437 15 2452
At 31 March 2007 2283 575 4190 4294 1,134 2 31 1,1373

Retained earnings are stated after deducting £7 3 million (2006 £7 3 million} representing own shares purchased by the Severn Trent Employee
Share Ownership Trust for certain senior employees under the Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs) The main features of the LTIPs are set out in the
directors’ remuneration report on pages 37 and 38 Following the demerger, the trust sold its halding of Biffa shares and reinvested the proceeds in
the purchase of Severn Trent shares At 31 March 2007, the trust held 819,240 shares of 37'%:p (2006 914,894 ordinary shares of 65%sp)

The market vaiue of these shares at 31 March 2007 was £11 7 mihon (2006 £10 2 miilvon)
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34 Share based payment

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees and detalls of the share awards outstanding during the year

are as follows

Employee Approved Share Unapproved Share
Sharesave Scheme Option Scheme Option Scheme

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number average Number average Number average

of share exercise of share exercise of share exercise

options price options price aptions price

Qutstanding at 1 April 2005 6,678,273 579p 424,582 766p 1,064,320 731lp
Granted during the year 1,017,512 823p - - - -
Forteited during the year (169,511) 534p (15,528) 892p (23,450) 784p
Cancelled during the year (142,669) 587p - - - -
Exercised during the year (1,652,278) 480p (155.617) 755p (295,786) 744p
Expired during the year (16,252) 623p - - - -
Outstanding at 1 Apnil 2006 5,715,075 64lp 253,437 768p 745084 724p
Granted durning the year 561,552 1,172p - - - -
Forfeited during the year {129,177 693p (86,656) 695p (264,860) 681p
Cancelled during the year {112,999) 734p - - - -
Exercised during the year (1,124,660) 559p (115,399) 800p (329.216) 749p
Exptred during the year (24,239) 628p - - - -
Qutstanding at 31 March 2007 4,885,552 717p 51,382 816p 151,008 728p

The weighted average share price during the perniod was £13 82 (2006 £1029)

Share option schemes

The optrons outstanding at the end of the penod are exercisable as shown below

1) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant those employees who have entered into an Inland Revenue approved Save As You
Earn contract for a period of three, five or seven years, the right to purchase ordinary shares in the company Options outstanding at 31 March

2007 were as follows

Normal daie Number of shares

Date of grant of exercise  Option price 2007 20086
January 1999 2004 or 2006 831p - 28,683
January 2000 2003, 2005 or 2007 473p 284,939 301,455
January 2001 2004, 2006 or 2008 568p 85,549 448,188
January 2002 2005, 2007 or 2009 548p 463,725 500,388
January 2003 2006, 2008 or 2010 536p 594,156 1,277.674
January 2004 2007, 2009 or 2011 592p 978,115 1,061,142
January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 759p 979,030 1,086,938
January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823p 943,247 1,010,607
January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1,172p 556,791 -

4,885,552 5,715075

n) Approved Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme (formerly the Executive Share Option Scheme), the board has granted directors and other executives
options to purchase ordinary shares in the company Options outstanding under this scheme at 31 March 2007 were as follows

Normal date Number of shares

Date of grant of exercise  Option price 2007 2006
June 1998 2001-2008 1005p 8,956 34,459
June 1999 2002-2009 934p 12,677 35005
June 2000 2003-2010 688p 14,360 54,335
July 2001 2004-2011 738p 7,722 12,770
June 2002 2005-2012 720p 7,667 22916
July 2003 2006-2013 680 5p - 93952

51,382 253437
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) Unapproved Share Qption Scheme

The board has granted executives ophions to purchase ordinary shares In the company under an unapproved share option scherne Qptions

outstanding under this scheme at 31 March 2007 were as follows

Normal date Number of shares
Date of grant of exercise  Option price 2007 2006
June 1998 2001-2008 1005p - 21,271
June 1999 2002-2009 934p 5,899 50,989
June 2600 2003-2010 688p 36,758 181,249
July 2001 2004-2011 738p 58,897 107,665
June 2002 2005-2012 720p 49,454 127,459
July 2003 2006-2013 680 5p - 256,451
151,008 745,084
) Fair values of awards made in the year
Number Fair value Number Fair value
£m £m
LTiP awards 339,564 21 704,790 56
Sharesave options 561,552 17 1,017,512 18
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 1,368 - 131,475 13
The fair values of the LTIP awards were calculated using the Monte Carlo method The principal assumptions were as follows
LTIP award year 2006/07 2005/06 2004405
Share price at grant date 1178p 1017p 903p
Number of shares awarded 339,564 704,790 980,591
Number of employees 46 190 231
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3
Expected volatiity 15%, 17% 20%
Expected life (years} 3 3 3
Expected diwvidend yield n/a n/a 65%
Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 0% 0% 0%
Expectation of meeting economuc profit performance criteria n/a 100% 100%
Fair vaiue per share (EP scheme/TSR scheme) 604p 1017p/468p 484p
Details of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on pages 39 to 40
The fair values of the Sharesave options were calculated using the Black Scholes madel The principal assurnptions were as follows
Scheme year 2006/07 2005/06 2004/05
Scheme type 3 year 5 year 7 year 3 year 5 year 7 year 3 year 5 year 7 year
Share price at grant date 1428p 1428p 1428p 1069p 1069p 1C69p 979p 979p S79p
Number of options granted 343,413 175,593 42546 605633 346,668 65,211 619,784 461,680 118,420
Number of employees 1,420 511 96 1775 676 111 1,826 756 175
Vesting period (years) 3 5 7 3 5 7 3 5 7
Expected volatility 15% 15% 15% 17% 17% 17% 30% 30% 30%
Option life (years) 35 55 75 35 55 75 35 55 75
Expected life (years) 325 525 725 325 525 725 325 525 725
Risk free rate 5199, 5 049%, 4929, 431% 4 28% 424% 4529, 4549, 4 56%
Expected dividend yieid 4 0% 4 0% 4 0% 6 5% 6 5% 65% 6 5% 65% 65%
Proportion of employees expected to
cease employment before vesting 1509, 17 0% 13 0% 150% 170% 130% 150% 17 0% 130%
Fair value per share - sharesave 295p 305p 306p 189p 168p 149p 232p 227p 216p

The SIP shares are purchased on the open market and vest with the employees immediately and hence the value of the shares purchased 1s

charged straight to the income statement

During the periad, the group recognised total expenses of £3 & milkon (2006 £4 1 million} related to equity settled share based payment transactions

Volatility 1s based on histonical abservations as adjusted for unusual market fluctuations
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

35 Disposal of subsidiaries

0On 30 June 2006 the group sold Biffa Belgium to Veolta Proprete SA, on 3 November the group seold Severn Trent Property Lirmited {0 Prologis
Group Holdings Limited and on 29 December the group sold Severn Trent Laboratories Inc to Test America Holdings Inc

The net assets at the date of sale were

Severn
Severn Trent
Biffa Trent Laboratories
Belgium Property in¢ Totak
£m im £m £m
Praperty, plant and equipment 216 - 307 523
Intangible assets and goodwill 23 - 244 267
Interests in jont ventures - 78 - 78
Inventory 03 286 49 338
Trade and cther recevables 150 16 276 44 2
Trade and other payables (156) (62) (88) (306)
Net cash - - 17 17
Current and deferred tax 14 (26) 09 2D
Provistons (100) - - (100)
150 292 796 1238
Foreign exchange movements recycled from reserves @8) - on [(OF°))
Profit/(loss) on disposal 95 27 (@28 98
Total consideration 237 319 77.1 132.7
Satistied by
Cash 237 319 771 1327
Net cash inflow anising on disposal
Cash consideration 237 319 771 1327
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of - - (21) (21)
237 319 750 1306

The profit on dispesal 15 included in the exceptional costs analysed in note 8 Biffa Belgium and Severn Trent Laboratories Inc have been classitied
as discontinued activities

The contracts relating to the disposals of Biffa Belgiurn, Severn Trent Property and Severn rent Laboratones Inc included adjustments to the
consideration based on the values of certain assets and habilities 1in completton accounts drawn up to the date of disposal The completion
accounts for Biffa Belgium and Severn Trent Property were agreed with the respective purchasers during the year ended 31 March 2007 The
process of reviewrng and agreeing the completion accounts for Severn Trent Laboratories Inc 1s ongoing The consideration included above
represents the directors’ best estimate of the outcome of that process

On 6 October 2006 the group completed the demerger of Biffa Plc The net assets of Biffa Plc at the date of demerger were

Biffa
Plc
£m
Property, plant and equipment 3395
Intangible assets and goodwill 3916
interests in joint ventures 11
inventory 30
Trade and other recevables 1570
Trade and other payables (1232)
Net debt (3557
Pension deficit (390
Current deferred tax {(219)
Prowisions {71 8)
Net assets demerged 2806
Net cash outflow arising on demerger
Cash and cash equivalents demerged (21 9)

The demerger of Biffa Plc has been accounted for as a distnibution of the Biffa Plc net assets at their carrying values on the date of demerger
Biffa Pl¢ has been classified as a discontinued operation
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36 Cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

sjuatuaiels jerdueun) Auedwo)

2007 2006
(restated)
£m £m
Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 4300 3774
Profit before interest and tax from discontinued operations 349 910
464 9 468 4
Oepreciation of property, plant and equipment 2545 2679
Amortisation of intangible assets 294 293
Impairment of goodwill 315 -
Pension service cost 493 397
Pension contributions (97 43) (105 2)
Share based payments charge 36 41
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (39 6) (43
Profit on sale of subsidianies and associates (24 5) -
Deferred income movement 39 (35
Prowisions for habilities and charges 211 298
Utihsation of provisions for iabibiies and charges (21 8) (34 6)
{Increase)/decrease in stocks 45) 134
Increase in debtors (92 0) (108)
Oecrease In creditors 30 647
Cash generated from operations 5740 7589
Interest pard (148 6) (139 4)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments {20 2) 451)
Tax paid (36 0) (68 3)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3692 506 1
b) Analysis of net cash and cash equivalents
2007 2006
im £m
Cash and cash equivalents 143 2 1426
Bank overdrafts (01) (322)
1431 1104

¢} Non cash transactions
No additions to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases (2006 £0 3 milhon)
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

37 Contingent habilities

a) Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered into bonds in the narmal course of business No liability 1s expected to anse in respect of either bonds or

guarantees

b} Regulatory matters
In May 2004 an employee of Severn Trent Water raised a number of allegations relating, in particular, to alleged accounting inaccuracies and
regulatory returns

On 31 Cctober 2005, as a result of a referral by Ofwat, the Serious Fraud Office (SFO) informed the company that it was undertalung a criminal
investigation into alleged reporting irregularities made to Ofwat by Severn Trent Water Limited between 2000 and 2003 Ofwat had been
conducting its own investigation following the allegations made by the employee of Severn Trent Water Oiwat began its investigation into the
altegations in January 2005 The matter reported to the SFQ concerned data on leakage

On 7 March 2006 Ofwat published its interim report concerning the allegations of false reporting made against Severn Trent Water in 2004
In responding to the report Severn Trent Plc agreed to credit customers' accounts and reduce future tanffs

The company alsc acknowledged that Ofwat may expect further amends to be made to customers Ofwat has stated that this penalty will be
discussed with Severn Trent Water on completion of the SFO investigation into leakage

In April 2006 the company announced that the board believed there was prima facia evidence of custemer relations data being rmisstated by
Severn Trent Water \n submissions to Ofwat We are working and fully cooperating with Ofwat and Ernst & Young LLP on their investigations into
this In June 2006 Ofwat 1ssued a notice under section 22A of the water Industry Act stating its intention to fine Severn Trent Water for fallure to
meet{ customer service standards

No rehable estimate can currently be made of the amounts that might become payable as a result of the SFQ enquiry, Ofwat's final con¢lusion in
respect of the allegations of false reporting or 1ts review of customer refations data Conseguentty, except as noted above, no provision has been
included in these financial statements in respect of these matters

¢) Disposal of subsidianes
The group has given certain guarantees and indemmittes in relation {o disposals of businesses

In June 2005 the Flermish Waste Agency (OVAM) instigated an investigation by the Antwerp Examining Magistrate into Biffa Belglum’s waste
recycling operations in connection with the payment of environmental taxes Although two of the Biffa Belgium comparues were indicted by the
Flemish prosecuting authorittes on 13 December 2005, the proceedings against these companies have not progressed any further since that date
Separately, the Niwvelles Public Prosecutor 1ssued a claim on 22 November 2006 against Biifa Belgium that may relate to the same matters
investigated in the Flanders region

No provision has been made for any criminal penalties that rmight result from this investigation since ne reliable estimate can be made of the
amount that might become payable Pursuant to the sale agreement of 11 May 2006, the group has given an indemnity 1n refation to certain costs
that may be suffered by the former Biffa Belgium businesses as a result of these proceedings A provision of £1 5 million has been made In these
financial staterments for labilities that that may result from this indemnity

Pursuant to the sale agreement of 11 May 2006, the group has given an indemnity in relation to certain costs that may te suffered by the former
Biffa Belgium businesses as a result of these proceedings A provision of £1 5 mullion has been made in these financial statements for habilities
that may result from this indemnity

Cn 5 March 2007 the group received notice of a claim for €23 4 million from Veolia Proprete S A alleging breach of warranty in relation to the
disposal of Biffa Belgium The group considers that there 18 no basis for this claim and hence no provision has been recorded in the financtal
statements in relation to this matter

The group 1s not aware of any other liatility that is Ikely to result from these guarantees and indemnities that has not been provided for in these
financial statements
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38 Financial and other commitments

2007 2006
£m £m

Investment expenditure commitments
Contracted for but not prowided 1n the financial statements 2427 1485

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include investments to
achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services and to provide for growth 1n demand for water
and sewerage services

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum operating lease payments under non cancellable
coperating leases, which fall due as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

Within one year 70 193
In the second to fifth years inclusive 170 336
After more than five years 100 540
340 1069

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

39 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of 38 68 pence per share Further detalls of this are shown in note 13

40 Related party transactions
Jransactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on ¢onsolidation and are not included In
this note Transactions between the group and i1ts associates and jomnt ventures are disclosed below

a) Trading transactions

Amounts due Amounts due
Sale of goods Purchase of goods from related parties to related parhies

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £m im &m £m £m im

Cognica - - 01 01 - 01 - -
Detroit Water 02 02 - - - 01 - -
Sl 77 g1 - - 95 117 - -
Severn Trent De Nora - - - 02 - C2 - -
79 93 01 03 95 121 - -

The related parties are associated and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest

b) Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the executive directors and senior management of Severn Trent Plc, Severn Trent Water, and Severn Trent
Services

The remuneration of the directors 15 included within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of individuat
directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 41 to 43

2007 2006

£m Im

Short term employee benefits 64 87
Post employment benefits 08 16
Termunation benefiis 05 03
Share based payments 01 11
78 117
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

41 Prnncipal subsidiary undertakings and their directors
Details of the principal operating subsidiaries are given below

A complete list of subsidiary undertakings 15 available on request
to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Return

Water and Sewerage

Severn Trent Water Limited

2297 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 3PU
Telephone 0121 722 4000

Directors

Sir John Egan C S Matthews
8 Bulkin M J E McKeon
R H Davey J B Smith

M J Houston A P Wray

Water Technologies and Services

Severn Trent Services Inc

Suite 300, 580 Virginia Drive,

Ft Washington Pennsylvania 15034 2707, USA

Telephone 001 215 646 9201

(Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)

Directors

D L Chester
C S Matthews

L F Grazianc

Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc

Park 10, 16337 Park Row

Houston, Texas 77084, USA

Telephone 001 281 578 4200

{Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)

Directors

D L Chester
K J Kelly

L F Graziano

Severn Trent Services Limited
Park Lane, Minworth, Sutton Coldfield, West Midlands B76 SBL
Telephone 0121 313 2300

Directors
L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Porntt P M Senior

Severn Trent Water Purification inc

3000 Advance Lane, Calmar

Pennsylvania 18215, USA

Telephone Q01 215 997 4000

{Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)

Directors

D L Chester
K J Kelly

L F Graziano

Severn Trent Metering Services Limited
Smeckley Wood Close

Chesterfield Trading Estate
Chesterfield S41 SPZ

Telephone 01246 456658

Directars

L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Pornitt P M Senior
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Severn Trent Services International Limited
{tormerly Severn Trent Water International Limited)
2308 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 3JZ
Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors
L F Graziang R C McPheely
K A A Porritt P M Sentor

C2C Services Limited

(80% awned)

2308 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 312
Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors

W F Earp A J Handford
8 M Horner R J Phillips
W G Weatherdon E A Wilson

Severn Trent Laboratones Limited

STL Business Centre, Torrington Avenue
Coventry Cv4 9GLl

Telephone 024 764 21213

Directors
L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Porntt P M Senior

Other Businesses

Cerwent Insurance Limited

BA Queensway, PO Box 64, Gibraltar

Telephone 00 350 47529

(Insurance company — incorporated and operational in Gibraltar)

Durectors

N Feetham F B Srmith
F White

Country of incorporation and main operation 1s Great Britain and
registration 15 England and Wales unless otherwise stated

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise
indicated Ali shareholdings are in ordinary shares

All subsidiary undertakings have been inctuded in the consalidation

As at 5 June 2007




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which compnse the balance
sheet, staterment of total recognised gains and losses and the related notes 1 to 19 These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting poticies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 and on the infermation i
the directors’ remuneration report that i1s described as baving been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditars’ report and for
no other purpose To the fuilest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assurne responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, {or this repori, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsitalities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibihities for preparing the Annual Report, the directors' remuneration report and the parent company financial statements (n
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out
in the statement of directors’ responsibilities

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors' remuneration report to be audited In
accordance with relevant legal and regutatory requirements and Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company
financial statements have been properly prepared 0 accordance with the Companies Act 1985

We also report to you whether n our optmion the directors' report 1s consistent with the parent company financiat statements The information
given in the directers’ report includes that specific Information presented in the chairman's statement, the group chief executive’s review and
the performance review that 15 cross referred from the business review section of the directors’ report

In addition we report to you if, in our opmion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether it 1s consistent with the
audited parent company financial statements We consider the implications for our report «f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial staterments Our responsibilities do not extend te any further information cutside the
Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence refevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements 1t also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate o the company’s circurnstances, cons:stently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the infermation and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opimion we alsc evatuated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the parent company financial statements

Opinion
In our opimion

> the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the company's aifairs as at 31 March 2007,

> the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

fari at:on-gﬂW:Zrect@r‘%s consistent with the parent company financial statements
=

‘eloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, UK

5 June 2007
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2007

2007

20086

Notes £m &m
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 2 01 58
Investments In subsidiaries 3 3,2609 3,6705
Derivative financial instruments o6 07
3,261 6 3,6770
Current assets
Debtors 4 108 2 54 4
Derwvative financial instruments 16 39
Short term deposits - 400
Cash at bank and in hand 498 0 3302
607 8 4285
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5 (703 9) {873 5)
Net current habilities (96 1) {445 Q)
Total assets less current habilities 3,1655 3,2320
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (238 3) (269 9)
Net assets 2,927 2 29621
Capital and reserves attributable to the company’s equity shareholders
Called up share capital 10 2283 2272
Share premium account 11 575 486
Other reserves 12 1408 137 6
Retained earnings 13 2,500 6 25487
Equity attributable to the company’s equity shareholders 13 2,927 2 29621
Signed op pehalf of the board who approved the accounts on 5 June-2007
W’Qﬂlﬁo
r Jo¥in Egan Michael McKeon
Chairman / Group Finance Director
Company statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2007
2007 2006
£m £m
Transfers
Transfers to profit and loss account on cashflow hedges 32 32
Deferred tax on transfers to profit and loss account 10 08)
22 24
Profit for the period 1,4024 1454
Tatal recognised gains and losses for the period 1,404 6 1478
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Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventton as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and habihties
(including dervative instruments) at fair value through profit er loss and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Aceounting Standards and
comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 1985 (‘the Act’)

b} Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land 15 not depreciated Other assets are depreciated on a2
straight line basis over their estimated economic lives, which are principally as follows

Years
Buldings 30-60
Vehicles, computers and software 2-15

t) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
{finance leases}, the assets are accounted for as if they had been purchased and the fair vatues of mimimum lease payments are shown as an
obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and loss account aver the period of the lease in proportion to the
capital amount outstanding Depreciation s charged over the shorter of the estmated useful life and the lease per:iod All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the e of the lease

d) Impairment of fixed assets and investments

Impairments of fixed assets and investments are calculated as the difference between the carrying value of net assets of iIncome generating units,
including where appropriate investments and goodwill, and their recoverable amounts Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net
realisable value or estimated value in use at the date the impairment review 1s undertaken Net realisable value represents the net amount that can
be generated through sale of assets Value in use represents the present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis, using
the estimated cost of capital of the income generating unit Impairment reviews are carried out if there 1s some indication that an impairment may
have occurred, or, where atherwise required, to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carried above their estimated recoverable amounts
Imparrments are recogmsed 1n the profit and less account and, where material, are disclosed as exceptional

e) Financial instruments

Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the net fair value of the consideration received After initial recognition, interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Where a ican or borrowing
15 1n a fair value hedging relationship 1t 1s remeasured for changes In fair value of the hedged risk at the balance sheet date with gains or losses
being recogrused in the income statement (see below)

Gans and losses are recogrised in the profit and loss account when the habilities are derecognised or impaired, as well as thraugh the
amartisation process

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
nisks associated with foresgn currency and interest rate fluctuations Such derivative instruments are inthially recorded at cost and subsequently
remeasured at fair value for the reported balance sheet The fair value of cross currency swaps, Interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts
1s calculated by reference to market exchange rates and interest rates at the pernod end

In relation to fair value hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 15 taken to the profit
and loss account where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged 1item {(see above)

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s
determined io be an eflective hedge 1s recogrnised directly in reserves, and the ineffective portion in the profit and loss account The gains or losses
deferred 1n reserves in this way are recycled through the profit and loss account in the same peried in which the hedged underlying transaction or
firm commitment is recognised in the profit and loss account

For derivatives that de not qualify for hedge accounting, gains or losses are taken directly to the profit and loss account In the period

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, 1s sold, termtnated or exercised, ar no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that date any cumuiative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in reserves 15 kept In reserves unti the forecast
transaction ¢ccurs, or transterred to the protit and loss account if the forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to occur

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their nsks and characteristics

are not closely related to those of the host contract or the host contract is not carried at fair vatue with gains and losses reported in the profit and
lass account
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

f) Investments
Investrments in subsichary undertakings are held at histancal cost

After imhal recogmtion at cost (being the fair value of the consideration paid), investments which are classified as held for trading or avallable for
sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in income or equity respectively When an available for sale investment 1s disposed
of, or iImpaired, the gain or loss previously recognised (n reserves s taken to the profit and loss account

Other investments are classified as held to matunity when the group has the positive intention and abuiity to hold to maturity Investments held for
an undefined period are excluded from this classtfication Such investments (and those held to matunity) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or losses being recognised 1n the profit and loss account

g) Share based payments
The company operates a number of equity settled, share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee serwices
received 1n exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

The fair value of employee services i1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted calculated using a pnicing meodel, excluding
the impact of any non market conditions The number of awards expected to vest takes into account non market vesting conditions including,
where appropriate, continuing employment by the group The charge 15 adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of falling to meet a
nen market based condition

h) Cash flow statement
The company has taken advantage of the exernption under Financial Reporting Statement 1 'Cash flow statements’ and has not produced a cash
flow statement

1) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation (s fuily provided for in respect of iming differences between the treatment cf certain items for taxation and accounting purposes
only to the extent that the group has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax assets are only
recagnised to the extent that taxable profits are expected to arise (n the future Material deferred taxation balances ansing are discounted by
applying an appropriate risk free discount rate

1) Penswons

The company participates in the group's defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes, details of which are set ocut In note 28 to the
group financial statements However, the company Is currently unable to identify its share of assets and habilities refating to the defined benefit
schemes The pension costs charged against the operating profit are the contributions payable to the scherne in respect of the accounting peniod
in respect of the defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes

2 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Plant and

buildings equipment Tatal
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2006 67 62 129
Disposals ®0) (20) 80
At 31 March 2007 07 42 49
Depreciation
At 1 April 2006 21 50 71
Charge for year - 03 03
Disposals (14) (12} (26)
At 31 March 2007 Q7 41 48
Net book value
At 31 March 2007 - 01 01
At 31 March 2006 46 12 58
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3 Investments

Subsidiary undertakings
L

Shares cans Total

£m &m £m

At 1 Apnil 2006 1,291 5 23790 36705
Additions/loans advanced 38 737 775
Disposals/loans repaid 38) {4708) (474 6)
Dividend 1n specie received 7113 - 7113
Dwidend in specie pad (711 3) - 7113
Loans exchanged for shares 26 (26) -
Foreign exchange movement - (125) (125)
At 31 March 2007 1,294 1 1,966 8 3,260 9

Details of the principal subsidianes of the company are given in note 41 of the group financial statements

The dwidend in specie received represents the cost oif shares in Biffa Plc which were distributed to the company by its subsidiary, from Severn
Trent Holdings Limited The dvidend in specie paid represents the same shares in Biffa Plc that were transferred to Severn Trent Plc's shareholders

on demerger

4 Debtors

2007 2006
£m im
Amounts owed by group undertakings 940 142
Corporation tax recewvable - 142
Deferred tax 96 174
Cther debtors 09 08
Prepayments and accrued income 37 78
108 2 544

5 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
2007 2006
£m £m
Bank overdrafts - 259
Cther Ioans 5512 6718
Borrowings 5512 6977
Dervative financial instruments 188 403
Trade creditors 08 -
Amounts ¢ue to group undertakings 101 3 108 4
Other creditors 73 77
Taxation and social security 08 c8
Corporation tax payable 100 -
Accrued expenses 137 186

7039 8735
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

€ Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

2007 2006
£m £m
Borrowings - other loans 207 4 2445
Dervative financial instruments 234 117
QOther creditors 75 137
238.3 2699

7 Employee costs and auditors’ remuneration
2007 2006
£m £m
Wages and salaries 107 108
Social security costs 08 10
Pension costs 10 42
Total employee costs 125 160

For details of directors’ remuneration see pages 43 to 45

Auditors’ fees In respect of the company were £200,000 (2006 £135,000) For full details of the fees paid to the auditors by the group, see note 7

of the group financial statements

Fees payable to Delotte & Touche LLP and their associates for non audit services to the company are not required to be disclosed because the

group financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

8 Employee numbers

Average number of employees of the company (including executive directars) during the year {full time equivalent) was 73 (2006 88)

All were based in the United Kingdom
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9 Borrowings

2007 2006

£m £m

Bank overdrafis - 259
Other loans 7586 9163
Borrowings 7586 9422

The company's borrowtngs are denorninated 1n the following currencies after takang account of cross currency swaps the company has
entered into

2007 2006

£m £m
Sterling 7586 9163
Euro - 259

7586 9422

The fair values of the company's borrowings were
2007 2006
£m £m

Bank overdrafts - 259
Other loans 7113 9194

7113 9453

Fair values are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments
After taking into account interest and cross currency swaps, 38% of the cornpany's borrowings are at fixed interest rates (2006 32%) The
remainder of the company’s debt 15 held at floating rate Sterling debt bears interest at LIBOR, US dollar debt bears interest at US dollar LIBOR,
whilst euro debt bears interest at EURIBOR

Fixed rate debt has a weighted average interest rate of 6 4% (2006 6 4%) for a weighted average period of 7 2 years (2005 8 2 years)

Borrowings analysed by matunty date

2007 2006

£m £m

Borrowengs due within one year 5290 6977
Borrowings due after one year

Between one and two years 1307 174

Between two and five years 534 1920

After more than five years 455 351

Total borrowings due after one year 2296 2445

7586 942 2
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

10 Share capital

2007 2006
£m £m
Total authorised share caprtal
346,783,834 ordinary shares of 37'%sp (2006 520,175,751 orcinary shares of 65%sp) 3395 3395
Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital
233,164,566 ordinary shares of 97'%sp (2006 348,093,283 ordinary shares of 65%p) 2283 227 2

Cn the demerger of Biffa Plc the ordinary share capital of the company was consolidated with the intention that the share price of Severn Trent Ple
shares would be similar before and after the demerger Two new Severn Trent shares were 1ssued for every three old Severn Trent shares held

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 65Xp
At 1 Apnl 2006 348,093,283 2272
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, 823p or 831p
under the group’s Employee Sharesave Scheme 1,062,231 07
Shares 1ssued at 680 5p, 688p, 720p, 738p, 934p, or 1,005 3p
under the group's Share Option Scheme 375,725 02
At 6 October 2006 349,531,239 2281
Share consohdation (116,510,413) -
Ordinary shares of 97 p 233,020,826 2281
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, 823p or 831p
under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 67,837 01
Shares 1ssued at 680 5p, 688p, 720p, 738p, 934p, or 1,005 3p
under the group's Share Option Scheme 75,803 01
At 31 March 2007 233,164,566 2283
11 Share premium
2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 Apnil 486 384
Employee share option schemes 89 102
At 31 March 575 486
12 Other reserves
Capital Total
redemnption Hedging Special other
reserve reserve reserve reserves
£m £m im £m
At 1 Apnl 2005 1561 (217) - 1344
Cash flow hedges - transfer to net profit - 32 - 32
At 31 March 2006 1561 (18 5} - 1376
Cash flow hedges - transfer to net profit - 32 32
Transfer from profit and loss account - - 7113 7113
Dividend (n specie paid - - (711 3) {7113)
At 31 March 2007 1561 (15 3) - 1408

The capital redemption reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares This s not distributable
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13 Reconciliation of shareholders' equity

Equity
attnbutabte
to the equity
holders
Share Share Other Retained of Severn
capital premium reserves earnings Trent Plc
Em £m £m £m £m
At i Apnil 2005 2258 384 1344 2,5709 29695
Cash flow hedges
- Transfers to net profit - - 32 - 32
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 14 102 - - 116
- value of employees’ services - - - 41 41
Net profit for the year - - - 1454 1454
Owmdends - - - (1713) (171 3)
Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity - - - 04) (04)
At 31 March 2006 2272 486 1376 25487 29621
Cash flow hedges
- Transters to net profit - - 32 - 32
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 11 89 - - 100
- vatie of employees’ services - - - 14 14
Net profit for the year - - - 1,402 4 1,402 4
Transfer to special reserve - - 7113 (7113 -
Dividend in specie paid - - (711 3) - (711 3)
Dividends - - - (739 4) (739 4)
Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity - - - (12 {12)
At 31 March 2007 228 3 575 1408 2,500 6 2,927 2

In previous years £1,221 2 milion of the company's retained profit arose as a result of group restructunng exercises, and I1s not considered likely
to be distributabte As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1885, no profit and loss account is presented for the company

14 Employee share schemes
For details of employee share schemes and oplions granted over the shares of the company, see note 34 of the group financial staterments

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant those employees who have entered into an Inland Revenue approved Save As You
Earn contract for a period of three, five or seven years, the right to purchase ordinary shares in the company

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

options price

Quistanding at 1 Apnl 2006 11,068 994p

Granted during the year 1,106 1,172p

Forfested during the year {539) 1,128p

Exercised duning the year (2,257) 1,065p

Outstanding at 31 March 2007 9,382 1,029p
The weighted average share price during the year was £13 82 (2006 £1029%)

Cptions outstanding at 31 March 2007 were as follows

Normal date Number of shares

Date of grant of exercise  Option prnce 2007 2006

January 2000 2007 831p 2,688 2,688

January 2001 2006 473p - 2,257

January 2002 2007 or 2009 548p 1,614 1,614

January 2004 2009 536p - 535

January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 759p 249 249

January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823p 3,725 3,725

January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1,172p 1,106 -

9,382 11,068
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

During the period the following LTIP awards, SIP awards and share options have been granted to company employees

2007 2006
Fair value Fair value
Number £m Number £m
LTIP awards 200,345 12 203,450 15
Sharesave options 7,377 - 20,766 -
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 1,368 - 1,900 -

Details of the calculation of the fair value of share awards (s given in note 34 of the group financial statements
The company has charged £1 4 mullion (2006 £1 1 mullton) to the profit and loss account in respect of share based payments

15 Pensions

The company operates a number of defined benefit schemes (being the Severn Trent Pension Schemne, the Severn Trent Water Mirror Image
Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Serior Staff Pensien Scheme) In addition, the group operates an unfunded arrangement for certain
employees whose earnings are above the pension cap

Further details regarding the operation of these schemes are given In note 28 of the group financial staterments

The company 15 currently unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liatnlities from the group’s defined benefit schermes, and hence it
continues to account far the cost of contributions as if the schermes were defined contribution schermes

The pension charge for the year was £1 0 million (2006 £4 2 million)

16 Related party transactions
The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 and not disclosed details of transactions with other undertakings within Severn
Trent group of companies

17 Contingent habilities

a) Bonds and guaraniees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No habilities are expected {o arise in respect of either the
bonds or guarantees

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate an a pooled basis with certain of its subsidiaries undertakings Under these arrangements
participating companies guarantee each others' overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances, which can be offset against balances of
participating companies

18 Post balance sheet events
On 6 June 2007 the board of directors proposed a final dmdend of 38 68 pence per share

19 Dividends
For details of the dividends paid and proposed in 2006/07 and 2005/06 see note 13 in the group financial statements
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Five Year Summary

IFRS IFRS IFRS UKGAAP UKGAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(restated) (restated) (restated)
Continuing operations {IFRS)/Continuing and discontinued (UK GAAP) £m £m £m £m im
Turnover 1,4802 14553 12523 20151 1,8520
Profit before interest, goodwill amortisation and exceptional 1items 4053 3930 3095 4406 4098
Goodwill amortisation - - - (29 8) {(252)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 405 3 3930 3095 4108 3846
Net exceptional tems 247 (157) (23) 116 {40 8)
Net interest payable befere fair value movements on treasury instruments (153 8) (1639) (164 1) (168 0) (159 4)
Fair value mavements on treasury instruments 48 8 367) - - -
Results of associates and joint ventures 05 11 Q7 - -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3255 1778 1438 2544 184 4
Current taxation on profit on ordinary activities (58 5) (61 5) (18 1) (333) (24 8)
Deferred taxation (18 4) 73 (343) (363) 59 5)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 248 6 1236 S04 1848 1001
Discontinued (IFRS) 200 994 677 - -
Prohit for the pericd 268 6 2230 1581 1848 1001
Net assets employed
Fixed assets 56755 63916 6,2908 58039 54806
Other net habilities exciuding net debt, retirement benefit
obligation and provisions (242 9) 212 2) (2183) (266 7) (2321)
Financial instruments (102 &) (1300) - - -
Retirement benefit obligation (135 1) (2219) (317 5) - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges and deferred tax (930 0) (9804) (10109 (5720) (523 1)
Net assets held for sale - 130 - - -
4,264 9 4,860 1 4,744 1 49652 47254
Financed by
Called up share capital 2283 227 2 2258 2252 2244
Reserves 9059 16692 1,6218 1,9885 19932
Tota!l shareholders' funds 1,134 2 18964 18476 22137 2,217 6
Minority shareholders” interests 31 26 19 24 22
Net debt 3,127 6 29611 28946 2,7491 2,5056
4,264 9 48601 4,744 1 4,965 2 47254
Statistics
Earnings per share {continuing) (UK GAAP continuing and discontinued) 106 1p 52 9p 390p 80 3p 43 4p
Adjusted earnings per share 82 4p 7C4p 526p 92 1p 87 2p
Dmndends per share 61 45p 5113 48 51p 47 04dp 459p
Dividend cover (before exceptional items and befare deferred tax) 18 13 12 13 13
Gearing 733% 609% 61 0% 554% 530%
Ordinary share price at 31 March 1,434p 1,117p 915p 76lp 716p
Average number of employees - Water and Sewerage 5,289 5,188 5,106 4,998 4,780
- gther 7172 11,124 11,268 10,795 9,867

Following the impiementation af UITF 38 — ‘Accounting for ESOP Trusts', the 2004 balance sheet was restated to reflect shares held Dy the Severn
Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which have not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date The 2003 comparatives have not been
restated for thns in the above table

Gearing has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of net equity and net debt
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Information for Shareholders

Financial calendar and results announcements
Annual General Meeting

24 July 2007, at 11 00am

at the National Motorcycle Museumn, Coventry Road,
Bickenhill, Solihull, West Midlands B92 OEJ

Diwnidend payments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007
Interim dwidend - paid 24 January 2007

Proposed final dividend - payable 3 August 2007

The results of the group will normally be published at the following
times

Interim results for the six months to 30 September November
Pretiminary results for the year to 31 March June
Report and accounts for the year to 31 March June

Shareholder enquiries

If you have a question about your shareholding i the company you
should contact our registrar, Lloyds TSB Registrars, who are responsible
for making dividend payments and updating the register of
shareholders, including details of changes to addresses and names

Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2007

You should also contact the registrar if you would Iike to have your
dividends paid directly into your bank or buillding society account

The registrar's contact details are

Telephone helphne 0870 600 3967

E-mail severntrent@lloydstsb-registrars co uk
Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing,
West Sussex, BNS9 6DA

Online communication

Shareview, i1s operated by Lioyds TSB Registrars and gives you access
to services over the internet that enable you to check details of yaur
shareholding at any time

You can also elect to receive communications from the company
electronically You will receive an e-mail notificaticn when the Annual
Report and Notice of Annual General Meeting become avadable on
our website

You can register for both of these services at www shareview co uk

Company information

The company's website at www severntrent com provides news and
details of the company's activities, latest results, information on the
share price and links to our businesses’ websites

Number

Number of % of of shares
Category shargholders  sharehalders {milhons) of shares
Individual and joint accounts 72,688 9282 265 1137
Other* 5619 718 2067 8863
Total 78307 10000 2332 10000

Number

Number of % of of shares %
Size of Holding shareholders shareholders {rmilhons} of shares
1-499 58856 7516 115 493
500-999 13,549 17 30 96 411
1,000-4,999 4920 628 83 356
5,000-9,999 263 034 18 077
10,000-49,99% 334 043 81 347
50,000-98,999 114 015 80 344
Over 100,000 271 034 1859 7972

Total

78307 10000 2332 10000

*Includes insurance companies, nominee companies, banks, pension funds, ather corporate bodies limited and pubhc mited companies
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